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Regulation IA
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The following information is filed pursuant to Rule 3of Regulation IA in respect of proposed
issues of Securities of the Inter-American Development Bank(hereinafter referred to as the
"Bank"). As authorized by Rule 4 of Regulation IA, certain information is provided in the
form of an Information Statement (hereinafter referred to as the "Information Statement"),
which is attached hereto as an exhibit. Certain information specified in Schedule A to
Regulation IA is not available at the date of this report, but when available will be filed as
promptly as possible.

Item 1. Description of Securities

See cover page. When the terms of an offering of any Securities are
established, such Securities will be described in a Prospectus.

Item 2. Distribution of Securities

Not yet known.

Item 3. Distribution Spread

Not yet known.

Item 4. Discounts and Commissions to Sub-Underwriters and Dealers

Not yet known.

Item 5. Other Expenses of Distribution

Not yet known.

Item 6. Application of Proceeds

See pages 6 and 18 of the enclosed Information Statement.

Item 7. Exhibits

Information Statement, dated March 3, 2017.



Information Statement

Inter-American Development Bank

The Inter-American Development Bank (Bank or IADB) intends from time to time to issueits debt securities with maturities and
on termsbased on market conditions at the timeofsale. Thedebtsecurities may besoldto dealers or underwriters, whomay resell
them in publicofferings or otherwise, or theymaybesoldbythe IADB directlyor through agents. The detailsof the debt securities
beingofferedat a particular time will be explained in a prospectus or supplemental information statement.

Unlessotherwisestated, all information in this annual Information Statement isprovided as of December31,2016,and allamounts
are expressed in current United States dollars.

AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION

The IADB willprovide, upon request,copiesof this InformationStatementwithout charge. Written, or e-mail requestsshould be di
rected to the principalofficeof the Bankat 1300 NewYork Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C.20577, Attention: FinanceDepartment,
e-mail: treasury@iadb.org.

The Information Statement is also availableon the IADB's websiteat http://www.iadb.org/infostatement/. Other documents and in
formation on this websiteare not intended to be incorporated by referencein this Information Statement.

Recipients of this Information Statementshould retain it for future reference, since it is intended that each prospectus and any supple
mental Information Statement issued after the date hereof will refer to this Information Statement for a description of the IADB and
its financial condition, until a subsequent Information Statement is issued.

March 3,2017



SUMMARY INFORMATION

As of December 31,2016

The IADB is an international institution established in 1959,
pursuant to the AgreementEstablishing the Inter-American
Development Bank (the Agreement), and is owned by its
member countries. These members include 26 borrowing
member countries and 22 non-borrowing member coun
tries. The fivelargestmembers by shareholdings(with their
share of total voting power) are the United States (30.0%),
Argentina(11.4%), Brazil (11.4%), Mexico (7.3%) and Japan
(5.0%). The purpose of the IADB is to further the economic
and socialdevelopment of LatinAmericaand the Caribbean
bypromoting environmentally sustainable growth, aswell as
poverty reductionand socialequity. Alongside theseobjec
tives are two strategic goals: addressing the special needs
of the less developed and smaller countries and fostering
developmentthrough the privatesector.

The resources of the IADB consist of the Ordinary
Capital, the Fund for Special Operations (FSO), the Inter
mediateFinancingFacility Account(IFF)and the IDBGrant
Facility (GRF). Unless otherwise stated, all information
provided in this Information Statement refers to the IADB's
Ordinary Capital.

Capital Increase
On February29,2012, the IDB-9entered into effectprovid
ingforan increasein the IADB's OrdinaryCapitalof$70,000
million,subscribedby IADBmembers in fiveannual install
ments beginning in 2012. Of this amount, $1,700 million
was paid-in capital stock and the remainder constituted
callablecapital stock.

On February 29, 2016, the effective date of the fifth
and last installment, 1,160,644 shares in the amount of
$14,001 million were made effective ($340 million paid-in;
$13,661 million callable).

Operating Income
Income before net fair value adjustments on non-trading
portfolios and foreign currency transactions and Board of
Governors approved transfers, which is defined as "Operat
ing Income" in this Information Statement, totaled $1,027
million in 2016.

Equityand Borrowings
Equity: The equity of the IADB includes the subscribed
capital stock and retained earnings. The subscribed capital
stock is divided into paid-in capital stock of $6,015million,
net of subscriptions receivable of $24 million, and callable
capitalstockof $164,901 million.The callablecapitalstockis
availableas needed for debt service payments and thus pro
vides the ultimate backing for borrowings and guarantees.
It cannot be called to make loans. Retained earnings totaled
$20,660 millionat the end of the yearand the TotalEquity'-
to-Loans Ratio (TELR)equaled 32.0%(SeeTable 8).

The IADB's Capital Adequacy Policy (CAP) consists
of a Capital Adequacy PolicyMandate (Mandate) and regu

"Total Equity" is defined as Paid-incapital stock, net ofCapital subscriptions
receivable, less Receivable from members, plus Retained earnings, minus
borrowing countries' local currency cash balances.

lations that determine capital requirements for credit and
market risk, in both its lending and treasury operations.
The CAP also includes capital requirements for pension
and operational risks. The Mandate, approved by the Board
of Governors, requires the IADB to maintain its Triple-A
foreign currency long-term issuer rating and includes the
establishment of capital buffers2, specifically to assume fi
nancial risks in times of stress, while preserving the IADB's
lending capacity.

The CAP allows the IADB to measure the inherent

risk in its loan portfolio due to the credit quality of its bor
rowersand the concentration of its loans. Specificrisk limits
in terms ofcapitalrequirementsfor investments and deriva
tives are also included that enables Management to design
more efficient funding and investmentstrategies following
the risk appetite established by the Board of Executive Di
rectors.

As of December 31,2016, the IADB's capital adequacy
position is within the parameters established by its capital
adequacypolicy.

Borrowings: The IADB diversifies its borrowings by cur
rency, maturity, format, and structure to provide flexibility
and cost-effectiveness in funding. Outstanding borrowings
of $80,326 million, before swaps, were denominated in 17
currencies and included $540 million of short-term bor

rowings.
The IADB limits its Net Borrowings3 to the callable

capital stock of its non-borrowing member countries (the
United States' share of such capital stock was 60.1% with
the balancefrom Canada,Japanand the other non-regional
members). Net Borrowings were $55,544 million,or 67.4%
of the $82,430 million of callablecapital stock of the non-
borrowingmembercountries.Accordingly, the unused bor
rowingcapacityat the end of the year amounted to $26,886
million.

During 2016 and as of the date of this Information
Statement, the IADB continues to be rated Triple-A by the
major credit rating agencies.

Loan Portfolio: The IADB's principal earning asset is its
loan portfolio which amounted to $81,952 million as of De
cember31,2016.The IADB's lendingcapacity is limitedby
both its borrowing and capitaladequacy policies.

The IADB makes loans to its developing member
countries, agencies or political subdivisions of such mem
bersand to privateenterprisescarryingout projectsin their
territories. In the case of sovereign guaranteed loans to bor
rowers other than national governments or central banks,
the IADB follows the policy of requiring a joint and several
guaranteeengaging the full faith and credit of the national
government. Non-sovereign-guaranteed (NSG) loans and

A capitalbuffer zone equals the amount ofcapital required in excess ofthe
minimum capital requiredto meet the Mandate.

"Net Borrowings" are borrowings (after swaps) and guarantee
exposure, less qualified liquid assets (after swaps).
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guarantees may finance projects in borrowing member
countries in all sectors, subject to an exclusion list, and are
capped to an amount suchthat riskcapital requirements for
such loans andguarantees donotexceed 20% ofTotal Equity.
AtDecember 31,2016, approximately 93% of the loan port
folio consisted ofsovereign-guaranteed loans.

Withrespect to sovereign-guaranteed loans, loanser
vice delays bya borrower in a member countrypreclude new
loanapprovals to borrowers in the same member country.
Such delays may lead to the suspension of loan disburse
ments, may result in the loan being placed in non-accrual
status, and maycause the loan to be declared due and pay
able. Historically, virtually all the sovereign-guaranteed loan
portfolio has been fully performing. The IADB does not
reschedule sovereign-guaranteedloans and has not written
off,and has no expectation of writingoff,such loans from
its OrdinaryCapital. The allowances for loan and guarantee
losses chiefly cover probable losses related to NSG loans
and guarantees and totaled $535million as of December31,
2016, or approximately 0.7% of total outstanding loansand
guarantees.

Liquid Investments: Under the current policy, the IADB's
liquidity floor covers, at a minimum, 12 months of pro
jected net cash requirements, after accounting for liquidity
haircuts,while the liquidityceilingis set to allowthe entire
borrowing program to be executed in the first quarter of the
year. The IADBhas remained compliant with the required
liquidity levels.

Liquidity for this purpose is definedas non-borrowing
countries' convertible currency cash and investments, ex
cluding assets with limited or restricted availability. At De
cember 31, 2016, liquidity,as defined, was $27,367 million,
within the policy limits. During the year,liquidity averaged
$33,443million compared to $29,628million in 2015.

Net cash and investments totaled $27,750 million at

the end of the year, or 33.6% of totaldebt (afterswaps), com
pared to $27,969 million and 34.7%, respectively, in 2015.

Risk Management

The IADB conducts its operations within a framework of
prudent financial and riskmanagement policies and follows
a well-defined risk management decision-making process,
directedto limit its riskexposure.Theasset/liability manage
ment policyminimizes exchange rate risk by matching the
IADB's liabilities in various currencies with assets in those

same currencies while hedging open positions. The IADB
also limits the interest rate risk in its debt funded loan and
liquidityportfoliosby hedging the interest rate exposureor
passing through the cost of borrowings that fund the loans.
For equity funded assets, the policy mandates managing
interest rate exposure through an equity duration strategy.

Commercial credit risk in the liquid asset investment
portfolio and derivatives portfolio is managed throughcon

servative risk policiesthat requireexposuresto be limited to
highquality issuers and counterparties. Credit exposures to
swap counterparties are further mitigated through netting
and collateralization arrangements.

IADB Group'sActivities with the PrivateSector
On January 1,2016,the transferof operational and adminis
trative functions and non-financial resources associated with
NSG activities from the IADB to the Inter-American Invest
ment Corporation (IIC) became effective. During a seven-
year period, NSGactivities will be originatedby the IIC and
largely cofinancedby the IADB and the IIC.The IIC willalso
execute and monitorthe IADB's NSG portfolio, including the
legacyoperations.

As part of the above mentioned reorganization, the
IADB willcontinue to providecertain servicesto the IIC and
the IIC commencesprovidingcertain servicesto the IADB.

The IIC will be capitalized in part through annual
transfersof a portion of our income by the IADB to the IIC
on behalf of the IADB's shareholders. This is intended to be

achieved during the period 2018-2025 and for an amount
not exceeding $725 million. Transfers of income are con
ditional upon annual Board of Governors' approval, which
shall take into account the continued maintenance of the

IADB's Triple-Along term foreigncurrency credit rating, the
CAP, the preservation of the sovereign-guaranteed lending
envelope consistent with IDB-9, and the construction of the
capital buffers in accordance with the CAP, as wellas other
applicable financial policiesof the IADB.

Proposal forTransferofNet Assets from the Fund for Special
Operations(FSO) to the IADB
As part of the mandate from the G-20 proposing that Multi
lateral Development Banks(MDBs)optimize their respective
balance sheets, on September 1, 2016 the IADB's Board of
Governors unanimously approved a proposal to transfer all
assets and liabilities of the FSO to the IADB, effective Janu
ary 1, 2017. Such transfer would ensure the IADB's ability
to continue to provide resources to its least developed bor
rowing membercountriesat concessional terms, and would
result in approximately$5.2billion of additional equity,thus
strengthening the IADB's financial position.

The aboveinformation is qualifiedby the detailedinformationand financial statements appearingelsewherein this Informa
tion Statement. In addition, the Information Statement contains forward-looking information, which may be identified by
such terms as"believes", "expects", "intends" or wordsof similarmeaning. Such statements involvea number ofassumptions
and estimates that are based on current expectations, which are subject to risks and uncertainties beyond the IADB's control.
Consequently, actual future resultscould differ materiallyfrom those currentlyanticipated.The IADB undertakes no obliga
tion to update any forward-looking statements.



FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
Unless otherwise indicated, all information provided in this
InformationStatementrefersto the Bank's Ordinary Capital.,

The financial strength of the Bank is basedon the support it
receives from its members and on its financial policies and
practices. Member support is reflected in the capital backing
received and in the diligence with whichborrowing members
meettheir debt-service obligations. Prudent financial policies
and practices haveled the Bankto build its retainedearnings,
diversify itsfunding sources, holda large portfolio ofhighqual
ity liquid investments and limit a variety of risks, including
credit, market and liquidity risks. The objectiveof the Bank is
to earn an adequate level of income to preserve its financial
strength and sustain its development activities. Box 1 presents
selectedfinancialdata for the last fiveyears.

The Bank's principal assetsare loans to its member coun
tries. As of December 31,2016,93% of loans outstanding were
sovereign-guaranteed. In addition,subjectto certain limits,the
Bank makes loans and guarantees without a sovereignguaran
tee on the basis of market-based pricing (i) in all economic
sectors (subject to an exclusion list), and (ii) to any entity re
gardlessof the degree of private or public sector ownership,as
long as the entity does not benefit from a sovereignguarantee
for repayments of itsobligations and the ultimatebeneficiary of
the financing is a project in a borrowing member country (eli
gible entities). The Bank can also lend to other development
institutions without sovereign guarantee. NSG operations are
currently capped to an amount such that risk capital require
ments for such operations do not exceed 20% of the Bank's
TotalEquity, calculated in the context of the Bank's capitalad
equacy policy. As of December 31, 2016, the risk capital re
quirement for NSG operations was $1,763 million, or 6.7%4 of
the Bank'sTotal Equity.

The Bank issues debt securities in a variety of currencies,
formats, maturities and structures to investors worldwide.
Theseborrowings, togetherwith the Bank's equity, are used to
fundlendingand investment activities, aswell asgeneral opera
tions.

Assets and liabilities, after swaps, are held predominantly
in UnitedStatesdollars. The Bankminimizesexchange raterisk
by matching the currencies of its liabilitieswith those of its as
sets and by maintaining virtually all equity in United States
dollars.

Financial Statement Reporting
The financial statementsare prepared in accordance with US.
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Theprepara
tionofsuchfinancial statements requires Management to make
estimatesand assumptions that affect the reported results.See
the "Additional Reporting and Disclosure" section for relevant
accounting policies used to present the financial results in ac
cordance withGAAP, whichmayinvolve a highdegree ofjudg
ment and complexity and relate to matters that are inherently
uncertain.

Mostof the Bank's borrowings and all swaps, including
borrowing, lending, and equityduration5 swaps, are measured

4 Forpurposesof calculatingthe limit for non-sovereign-guaranteed operations,
loans to the IIC, a separateinternational organization within the IDB Group,in
the amount of$100 million are not included.

5 In order to manage the sensitivity to changes in interest rates (duration or
modified duration) of its equity, the Bank utilizes equity duration swaps to
maintain the modified duration of its equity within a defined policy band of
four to six years.

at fair value through income. The reported income volatility
resulting from these non-trading financial instruments is not
fully representative ofthe underlying economics ofthe transac
tions as the Bankintends to hold them to maturity.Accordingly,
the Bankexcludes the impact of the fair value adjustments as
sociated with these financial instruments from "Operating In
come", which is defined as Income before Net fair value adjust
ments on non-trading portfolios and foreign currency
transactions and Boardof Governors approved transfers6. Net
fair value adjustments on non-trading portfolios and foreign
currencytransactions and Boardof Governors approved trans
fers are reported separately in the Statement of Income and
Retained Earnings.

Accounting Developments: In May 2014, the Financial Ac
countingStandardsBoard (FASB) issuedAccountingStandards
Update (ASU) No. 2014-9, Revenue from Contracts with Cus
tomers (Topic 606), which supersedes the previous revenue
recognition requirements and guidance. This new guidance
does not apply to financial instruments and guarantees. Suple-
mentalguidancehas been issuedin the form of additionalASUs
related to the revenue recognition topic. For the Bank, these
ASUs are effective in 2018, including interim periods within
that fiscal year. The Bank is currentlyevaluating the new stan
dard, but does not expect it to have a material impact on its fi
nancial statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Fi
nancial Instruments-Overall: Recognitionand Measurementof
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The changes to the
current GAAP modelprimarilyaffectthe accountingfor equity
investments, financial liabilities under the fairvalueoption,and
the presentation and disclosure requirements for financial in
struments.The accountingfor other financialinstruments, such
as loans, investments in debt securities, and other financial lia
bilities is largely unchanged. For the Bank,this ASU is effective
in 2018, including interim periods within that fiscal year. The
Bankis currently in the process of assessing the impactof this
ASU on its financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issuedASU 2016-02—Leases
(Topic 842) to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by recognizingleaseassetsand leaseliabilitieson
thebalance sheet anddisclosing key information about leasing
arrangements. Therecognition, measurement, and presentation
ofexpenses andcashflows arising froma lease bya lessee have
not significantly changed from previousGAAP. However, the
principal difference fromprevious guidance is that the lease as
setsand lease liabilities arisingfrom operatingleases shouldbe
recognizedin the balance sheet. For the Bank,this ASUis effec
tive in 2019, including interim periods within that fiscal year.
TheBankiscurrentlyevaluating the newstandard,but doesnot
expect the ASUto have a material impact on its financial state
ments.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Finan
cial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. This ASU removes the
probable initial recognition threshold in the current "incurred
loss" modeland requiresentitiesto reflectcurrent estimateof all
expected credit lossesover the contractual term of the financial
assets in the allowance for credit losses. In addition to past
events and current conditions, entities are required to also in
corporate reasonableand supportable forecasts in the measure-

6 Reference to captions in the financialstatements and relatednotes are identified
by thenameofthecaptionbeginningwith a capitalletterevery time they appear
in this Information Statement.
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Box 1: Selected Financial Data

The following information isbased upon, and should beread incojunction with, the detailed information appearing inthis Information Statement.

(Amounts expressed in millionsofUnitedStatesdollars)

Years endedDecember 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Operational Highlights

Loans andguarantees approved'" $ 10,803 $ 10,404 $ 12,652 $ 13,290 $ 10,799

Grossloan disbursements 9,600 9,719 9,423 10,558 6,883

Netloan disbursements(2) 3,577 4,587 4,210 2,096 2,312

Balance Sheet Data

Cashand investments-net*3', afterswaps $ 27,750 $ 27,969 $ 27,458 $ 21,226 $ 14,592
Loans outstanding**' 81,952 78,745 74,585 70,679 68,640
Undisbursed portionofapproved loans'5' 30,007 30,711 31,601 29,207 26,987
Totalassets 113,325 111,116 106,277 96,987 92,194

Borrowings outstanding,afterswaps 82,641 80,464 76,664 67,440 59,739

Callable capitalstock"' 164,901 151,240 138,901 123,840 112,240

(ofwhich,subscribedby UnitedStates,

Canada, Japan and the other

non-regional members) 82,430 75,601 70,095 63,439 57,884

Equity 26,460 25,253 23,697 23,550 20,681

Income and Comprehensive

Income (Loss) Statements Data

Operating Income'7' S 1,027 $ 717 $ 652 $ 881 $ 910

Netlair valueadjustmentson non-tradingportfolios

andforeign currency transactions'8' (179) 443 96 626 194
BoardofGovernors approved transfers - (200) (200) (200) (200)

Netincome 848 960 548 1,307 904

Othercomprehensive income (loss) (48) 229 (750) 1,506 (300)
Comprehensive income (loss) 800 1,189 (202) 2,813 604

Ratios

Netborrowings'"as a percentage ofcallable

capitalstocksubscribedby UnitedStates,

Canada,Japanand the other

non-regional members 67.4% 70.7% 71.2% 74.4% 80.0%
Total Equity"0'to loans"" ratio"2' 32.0% 31.8% 31.5% 32.7% 29.3%
Cashand investments as a percentage of

borrowings outstanding, after swaps 33.6% 34.8% 35.8% 31.5% 24.4%
Cost toincome ratio"3' 33.1% 37.3% 40.3% 33.4% 37.5%

<u Excludes guarantees issued under theTrade Finance Facilitation Program, non-sovereign-guaranteed loan participations, and exposure and exchange agreements.

12' Includes gross loandisbursements lessprincipal repayments.

"' Net ofPayable for investment securities purchased. Payable for cash collateral received, and Receivable for investment securities sold.
(" Excludes lending swaps inanetasset position of$336 million in2016 (2015 - netliability of$30 million; 2014 - netliability of$568 million;

2013- net liability of $650million; 2012- net liability $1,831 million).

<S) AsofDecember 31,2016, theundisbursed portion ofapproved loans includes $20,535 million related tosigned loans (2015 -$22,625 million; 2014 -$23,809 million).

<6> Includes capital subscription received from Canada ofnon-voting callable capital stock asfollows: 2014 - $1,390 million;

2013- $3,066million;2012- $3353 million.See"Sourcesof Funds- Equity"for furtherinformation.

(" Seepage 18 fora fulldiscussion of Operating Income.

(*> Net fair value adjustments onnon-trading portfolios and foreign currency transactions mostly relate tochanges inthefair value of(a) borrowings atfair value due
tochanges inthe Bank's own credit spreads, (b) lending and certain borrowing swaps due tochanges inUSD interest rates, which arc not offset with changes inthe
value of therelated loans andborrowings since theyare notrecorded atfair value, aswell as(c)equity duration swaps duetochanges in USD interest rates.

(,)Borrowings (after swaps) andguarantee exposure, lessqualified liquid assets (after swaps).

001 "Total Equity" isdefined asPaid-in capital stock, netofCapital subscriptions receivable, less Receivable from members, plus Retained earnings

minusborrowing countries' local currency cashbalances (non-GAAP measure).

1111 Includes loansoutstanding and guaranteeexposure.

<u) Effective in2015, theTotal Equity used tocompute theTotal Equity-to-loans ratio nolonger excludes thecumulative effects ofNetfair value adjustments onnon-trading

portfolios and foreign currency transactions, and does not add back the Allowance for loan and guarantees losses. Prior year ratios were recalculated toconform with the new definition.
,1J 'Administrative expenses, excluding pension and posoretirement benefit costs, divided byTotal income, netofInvestments -netgains (losses) and Borrowing expenses.



mentofexpected creditlosses. Theallowance forcreditlosses is
considered a valuation account that is deducted from the amor
tized cost basis of the financial asset to present the net carrying
value at the amount expected to be collected on the financial
asset. The ASU alsoexpandsthe currentlyrequiredcreditqual
ity indicator disclosures in relation to the amortized costof fi
nancing receivables to befurtherdisaggregated byyearoforigin
or vintage forpublic business entities. Forthe Bank, thisASU is
effective in 2020, including interim periods within that fiscal
year. The Bankis currently in the process of assessing the im
pact that this standard willhave on its financial statements.

In August2016, the FASB issuedASU No.2016-15, State
ment of Cash Flows(Topic230):Classification of Certain Cash
Receipts and Cash Payments. This ASU clarifies how entities
should classify certain cash receipts and cash payments on the
statement of cash flows to reduce the current and potential fu
ture diversity in practice.For the Bank,this ASU is effective in
2018, including interim periods within that fiscal year. The
Bank is currently evaluating the new standard, but does not
expect the ASUto have a material impact on its financial state
ments.

Financial Highlights
LendingOperations: During 2016, the Bank's loan and guaran
tee approvals increased by $399 million as compared to 2015.
Approvedloans amounted to $10,714million (169 loans), com
pared to $10,292million (159 loans) in 2015.The undisbursed
portionof approved loansdecreased to $30,007 million at year-
end 2016 (2015—$30,711 million), ofwhich $20,535 million are
related to signed loans (2015—$22,625 million).

During2016,57tradefinance guarantees in the aggregate
amountof $84million wereissued(2015—17 guarantees in the
aggregate amount of $11million).There were two approvals of
non-trade related guarantees without sovereign counter-guar
antee for $89 million (2015—two for $112 million); and no
guarantees withsovereign counter-guarantee were approved by
the Bank in 2016 and 2015.

The portfolio of NSG loans, including loansto other de
velopment institutions, decreased to $5,930 million compared
to $5,980 million at December 31, 2015. In addition, the non-
sovereign guarantees exposure increased $23 million to $170
million compared to $147 million the previous year. As of De
cember 31,2016,7.4% of the outstanding loans andguarantees
exposure was NSG, compared to 7.8%at December 31,2015.

Totalallowances for loan and guaranteelossesamounted
to $535millionat December31,2016comparedto $446million
in 2015. TheBank hadNSG loans withoutstanding balances of
$494millionclassified as impairedat December31,2016,com
pared to $466 million at December 31, 2015. Impaired loans
have specific allowances forloanlosses amounting to $334 mil
lionat December31,2016,comparedto $235millionat Decem
ber 31,2015.

Liquidity Operations: Substantially all of the Bank's invest
ments are held in high quality securities. As of December 31,
2016, the liquid asset portfolio totaled $27,428 million, a de
crease of $340 million compared to December 31, 2015. The
decrease is drivenbythe Bank's liquidity policy.

In 2016, the trading investments portfolio experienced
net mark-to-marketgainsof $35million,comparedto $51 mil
lion losses in 2015 mainlydue to the widening of swapspreads
and the tightening of credit spreads.

BorrowingOperations: In 2016, the Bank issued medium- and

long- term debt securities for a total face amount of $15,583
million equivalent (2015—$18,790 million) that generatedpro
ceeds of $15,569 million equivalent (2015—$18,787 million)
and had an average lifeof5.2years(2015—5.2 years). Suchdebt
securities were issued through a strategy of combining large
global benchmark bonds with smallertransactions targeted to
particular segments of demand. The lowerlevel of borrowing
operations whencompared to 2015 wasmostlydue to lowerli
quidity needs.

During 2016,and as of the date of this InformationState
ment, the Bank continues to be rated Triple-A by the major
credit rating agencies.

Capitalization: On February 29, 2012,the IDB-9entered into
effectproviding for an increase in the Bank's Ordinary Capital
of $70,000 million,subscribedby Bankmembersin five annual
installmentsbeginning in 2012.Of this amount, $1,700 million
waspaid-in capitalstock and the remainder constituted callable
capital stock.

On February 29, 2016, the effectivedate of the fifth and
last installment, 1,160,644 shares in the amount of $14,001 mil
lion weremade effective ($340millionpaid-in;$13,661 million
callable).

As part of the IDB-9, the Boardof Governors agreed, in
principle and subject to annual approvals by the Board of
Governors, to provide $200 million annually in transfers of
Ordinary Capital income to the GRF, beginning in 2011 and
through2020. During 2011 - 2015, the Bankapproved income
transfers from the Ordinary Capital in the amount of $200
millioneach year for a total of $1,000million.

Consistent with G-20 recommendations to Multilateral
Development Banks to seek further financial efficiencies, in
April 2016 the Board of Governors reaffirmed its support for
Haiti's reconstruction anddevelopment andagreed to consider
further transfers of Ordinary Capital income (up to a total
amount of $1,000 million), consistent with the disbursement
needs of the GRF's operations in Haiti, and maintaining the
GRF's fund balance at$300 million asofJanuary 1ofeach year.
Ordinary Capital income transfers remain subject to the re
quirements of the Agreement and other applicable financial
policies. Asa result, noOrdinaryCapital income transfers were
approvedby the Boardof Governorsin 2016.

Financial Results: Operating Incomefor 2016was$1,027 mil
lion, compared to $717 million in 2015, an increase of $310
million. This increase was mainly dueto higher net interest in
comeand net investment gains,aswell asa decrease in net-non-
interest expense, partially offset byan increase in the provision
forloanand guarantee losses.

Net interest income

For2016, the Board ofExecutive Directors maintained charges
for sovereign-guaranteed financing comprised of a lending
spread of 1.15%, a credit commission of0.50% andnosupervi
sion and inspection fee, the same levels as those in effect in the
second semester of2015. For2017, theapproved lending spread
andcredit commission will be0.85% and0.50%, respectively.

Although changes in interest rates will, over thelongterm,
result in corresponding changes in Operating Income, theeffect
on a single yearis relatively small due to the factthat equity is
mostlyfunding fixedrate assetsand that for debt- funded assets
the interest rateexposure is mostly hedged through the useof
derivative instrumentsor passedthrough to the borrowers.

The Bank had net interest income of $1,749 million dur-
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ing2016compared to $1,576 millionlastyear. The increase was
mainly due to anincrease in lending charges and a larger loan
portfolio.

Net fair value adjustments on non-trading portfolios and foreign
currency transactions
The Bank had net fair value losses on non-trading portfolios
andforeign currency transactions of $179 million, compared to
gains of $443 million in 2015. Net fair value adjustments on
non- trading portfolios and foreign currency transactions
mostly relate tochanges in the fair value of (a) borrowings at fair
value due to changes in the Bank's own creditspreads, (b) lend
ingandcertain borrowing swaps dueto changes in USD interest
rates, which arenot offset with changes in the value of the re
lated loans and borrowings since they arenot recorded at fair
value, as well as (c) equity duration swaps due to changes in
USD interest rates. For further information, refer to Note S—
Net Fair Value Adjustments on Non-trading Portfolios and
Foreign CurrencyTransactions of the financial statements.

Net Investment Gains (Losses)
The Bank had net investment gainsof $35 million comparedto
lossesof $51million in 2015,that weremainlydue to the widen
ing of swap spreads and the tightening of credit spreads.

Provision forLoan andGuarantee Losses
The Bank had a provision forloan and guarantee lossesof $142
million, compared to $73 million in 2015. The increase was
mainlydue to an increase in the specificloanlossallowance due
to new impaired loans and worsening of the conditions of cer
tainloanspreviously classified asimpairedin the non-sovereign
guaranteed portfolio.

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans (Plans): During
2016, increases in pension liabilities due to decreases in dis
countrates, werepartially offsetby increases in the Plans' assets
due to strongpositive returnsin both global equitymarkets and
fixed income assetsreturns.The net resultwasa slightdecrease
in the funded statusof eachplan from prioryearlevels.

At December 31, 2016, the Balance Sheet presents net li
abilities under retirement benefit plans of $361 million, com
pared to $342 million atDecember 31,2015. The increase in the
funded status of the Plans of $19 million reflects an increase in
the benefit obligation of $258 million to $5,794 million, par
tially offsetby higher Plans' assets of $239 million to $5,433
million. At the end of 2016 and 2015, the Plans' assets repre
sented 94% of the benefit obligations. For further information,
refer to Note T - Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans of
the financial statements.

In 2016, the Board of Executive Directors reaffirmed the
Funding Policy thatwas originally approved in 2015. The Fund
ing Policy established stable contribution rates to obtain con
stantannualBankcontributions forthe Plans fora periodof five
years beginning in 2015, subject to annual reaffirmation by the
Board of Executive Directors.

Equity: EquityatDecember 31,2016was$26,460 millioncom
paredwith $25,253 million at December 31,2015. The increase
of $1,207million reflects Net Income of $848 million, paid-in
capital received underthe IDB-9 of $392 million, the collection
of Receivable from members of $15 million, offset by the recog
nition of the changes in assets/liabilities related to the Bank's
pension $40 million, and the reclassification of prior service
credit of $8 million from other comprehensive income to net

income.

The Total Equity-to-Loans Ratio(TELR) at December 31,
2016 was32.0% compared to 31.8% at the end of lastyear (See
Table 8).

Exposure Exchange Agreement: The Bank reduced its loan
portfolio concentration by entering into bilateral transactions
with other MDBs undera Master Exposure Exchange Agree
ment(EEA) jointly signed withotherMDBs. The EEA provides
for the simultaneous exchange of coverage for potential non-
accrual eventson exposures fromborrowing countries in which
the Bank is concentrated, to countries in which the Bank has no,
or low, exposure. Each EEA transaction is accounted for as an
exchange of two separate financial guarantees (given and re
ceived). For further information, refer to Financial Risk Man
agement - Credit Risk - Exposure Exchange Agreement sec
tion.

IDB GROUP'S ACTIVITIES WITH THE PRIVATE SECTOR:

On January 1,2016, the transferof operationaland administra
tive functions and non-financial resources associated with NSG

activities from the Bank to the Inter-American Investment

Corporation (IIC) became effective. During the seven-yearpe
riod, NSG activities are originated by the IIC and largelycofi-
nanced by the Bank and the IIC. The IIC also executes and
monitors the Bank's NSG portfolio,including the legacyopera
tions. During 2016, two NSG loans amounting to $73 million,
were originated by the IIC and cofinanced by the Bank. For
cofinanced NSG loans, the Bank and the IIC maintain separate
legal andeconomicinterests in their respectiveshareof the loan
principal balance, interest, and other elements of the lending
arrangement

As part of the above mentioned reorganization, the Bank
and the IICalsoenteredinto servicelevelagreementsforcertain
administrative and overhead services that include human re

sources and information technology support provided by the
Bank, as well as loan origination, execution, and monitoring
servicesprovided to the Bank.

The IIC will be capitalized in part through annualtrans
fer of a portionof our incometo the IICon behalfof the Bank's
shareholders. This is intended to be achieved during the period
2018-2025 and for an amount not exceeding $725 million.
These transfersof income areconditionalupon annualBoardof
Governors' approval, which shall take into account the contin
ued maintenance of the Bank's Triple-A long term foreign cur
rency credit rating, the CAP, the preservation of the sovereign-
guaranteed lending envelope consistent with IDB-9, and the
construction of the buffers in accordance with the CAP, as well
asotherapplicable financial policies of the Bank.

PROPOSAL FOR TRANSFER OF NET ASSETS FROM THE
FUND FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS (FSO) TO THE BANK:
As part of the mandate from the G-20 proposing that MDBs
optimize their respective balance sheets, on September 1, 2016
the Bank's Boardof Governors unanimously approved a pro
posal to transfer allassets andliabilities of the FSO to the Bank,
effectiveJanuary 1,2017.Such transferwould resultin approxi
mately $5.2 billion of additional equity for the Bank, thus
strengthening the Bank's financial position andensure itsability
to continueto provide resources to its least developed borrow-

-ingmembercountries atconcessional terms.The nominalvalue
of the Bank's existing capital stock and voting rights are not
impacted by the transfer.
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General

The Bank makes loans and guarantees to the governments, as
well as governmental entities,enterprises, and development in
stitutionsof its borrowingmembercountries to helpmeet their
development needs. In the caseof loansand guarantees to bor
rowers other than national governments or central banks, the
Bank follows the policy of requiring a joint and severalguaran
tee engaging the full faith and credit of the national govern
ment. Loans and guarantees mayalsobe madedirectlyto other
eligible entities carrying out projects in the territories of bor
rowing member countries, including private sector entities or
sub-sovereign entities, without a sovereign guaranteeand in all
sectors (subject to an exclusion list), provided they meet the
Bank's lending criteria. The Bank also provides financing to
borrowing member countries for non-reimbursable and contin
gent recoveryassistance that is aligned with its overall strategy
for the region.

Development Objective
The Bank's objective is to promote sustainable growth, poverty
reduction and social equity in Latin America and the Carib
bean. The Report on the IDB-9 further identifies five sector
priorities to work towards achieving this objective:

• Social policy for equity and productivity.
• Infrastructure for competitiveness and social welfare.
• Institutions for growth and social welfare.
• Competitive regional and globalinternational integration.
• Protectionof the environment, response to climatechange,

promotion of renewable energy and ensuring food secu
rity.

Figure 1 presents the approvals for loans of the Ordinary

Capital by sector priorities:

Figure 1: LOAN APPROVALS BY SECTOR PRIORITIES
For the years ended December 31,2016 and 2015
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For more information regarding the implementation
and evaluation of the Ninth General Increase, see the Mid-Term
Evaluation IDB-9 Commitments Report.

Throughits institutional strategyand mandates,the Bank
is committed to exp;nding the focus on environmental and
social sustainability, gender equality and diversity, response to
climate change, promotionof sustainable energy, and ensuring
foodsecurity. Formore information, seethe latestIDBSustain
ability Report, Development Effectiveness Overview and the
Update to the Institutional Strategy 2010-2020.

Lending cycle
The process of identifying and assessinga project and approv
ingand disbursing a loan often extendsover several years, de
pending on the nature, objectiveand purpose of the individual
project. However, on numerous occasions, the Bank has short
ened the preparation and approval cycle in response to emer
gency situations such as natural disasters or economic crisis.
Generally, the Bank's operational staff, which includes econo
mists, engineers, financial analysts and other sector and coun
try specialists, assesses the projects. With certain exceptions,
where this authority has been delegated to Management, the
Bank's Board of Executive Directors approveseach loan.

Loan disbursements are subject to the fulfillment of con
ditionsset forth in the loanagreement. During implementation
of the Bank-supported operations, experienced Bank staff re
view progress, monitor compliance with Bank policies and as
sist in resolving any problems that may arise. The Office of
Evaluation and Oversight, an independent Bank unit, evaluates
loan operations pur:uant to an annual work plan approved by
the Board of Executive Directors to determine the extent to

which major objectives have been met. The results of these
evaluationsare reported directly to the Board of Executive Di
rectors and are publicly available.

The Bank's lending operations conform to certain prin
ciples that, when combined, seek to ensure that loans made to
member countries are for financially and economically sound
purposes to which these countries have assigned high priority,
andthat funds lentareutilized asintended. Theseprinciples are
detailed in Box 2.

Loans

The Bank's sovereign-guaranteed lending generally falls into
one of two categories: investment loans for specific projects,
including loans to intermediaries foron-lending purposes, and
policy-based loans. Under these lending categories the Bank
provides support to the following economic sectors: energy,
industry and mining, agriculture and fisheries, transportation
and communications, trade finance, education, science and
technology, water,sanitation and health, tourism, urban devel
opment, planning and reform, modernization of the state and
theenvironment, among others. TheBank also lendsdirectly to
eligible entities without a sovereign guarantee generally for the
financing of investments for transactions in all sectors, subject
to an exclusion list.

Sovereign-Guaranteed InvestmentLoans

Investment lending is generally used to finance goods, works,
and services in support of economic and social development
projects.
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Box 2: Lending Operations Principles

(i) TheBank makes sovereign-guaranteed loans and guarantees primarily to central governments, aswell assub- na
tional governments, governmental entities, public enterprises, and development institutions of its borrowing
members. In addition, the Bank makes NSG loans andguarantees to eligible entities and otherdevelopment institu
tions.

(ii) Loan applicants must submit a detailed proposal to the Bank specifying the technical, economic and financial
merits of the project. The proposal must include an evaluation of the project'sexpected environmental risks or
impact and proposed mitigation measures aswell asits impact on gender and indigenous groups, asapplicable.

(iii) The Bank neither renegotiates nor takes part in debt rescheduling agreements with respect to its sovereign-guaran
teed loans.

(iv) In making loans, the Bank evaluates the capacity of the borrower to carryout its financial obligationsunder the
loan agreement, theprevailing macroeconomic climate anddebt burden ofthecountry, theability oftheexecuting agen
cies to executeBank financed projects,and other policyand institutional issues relevant to the loan.

(v) The Bankconsiders the ability of the borrower to obtain private financing under reasonable termsand conditions. The
Bankservesas a catalyst to promoteprivate investment, not to compete with it.

(vi) The useof loan proceeds is supervised. Bank staffmonitorand supervise the on-goingprogress with respect to the de
velopment objectives of eachoperationthrough the Bank's CountryOffices in eachof its 26 borrowing membercoun
tries, and fiduciary arrangements arcin place to ensure proper useof Bank resources to achieve the operations objec
tives.

Sovereign-Guaranteed Policy-Based Loans
Policy-based lending provides fungible resources to support an
agreed program of policyreformsand/or institutional changes
in a sector or sub-sector and it aims at assisting borrowing
member countries to develop and implement their economic
and sectorial policy reforms and institutional changes to con
tribute to the achievement of sustainable growth levels and
poverty reduction.

Non-Sovereign-Guaranteed Loans
Non-sovereign-guaranteed loans and guarantees generally fi
nance investments for transactions in all sectors, subject to an
exclusion list. The NSG loans are made on the basis of market-

based pricing, and are subject to certain eligibilityrequirements
and risk management limits. In addition, the Bank lends to
other development institutions for on-lending purposes without
a sovereign guarantee.

The Non-sovereign-guaranteed (NSG) Risk Framework
(Framework) is structured in three levels, namely (i) the NSG
risk appetite, which limits the amount of economic capital al
locatedto NSG loansand guaranteesto 20% of the Bank's Total
Equity, (ii) the portfolio exposure limits and supplemental
guidelines, which seek to provide portfolio diversification and
establish limits per project, per obligor and group of obligors,
per sectoras well as per country and (iii) the NSG risk manage
ment bestpracticesthat support projectoriginationand portfo
lio management. With respect to the single obligor limits, the
Framework establishesa limit equal to the lesser of 2.5% of the
Bank's Total Equity and S500million at the time of approval.

As discussed above, NSG operations are currently capped
to an amount such that risk capital requirements for such op
erations do not exceed20%of Total Equity. As of December 31,
2016, the risk capital requirements of NSG operations were
$1,763 million, or 6.7% of Total Equity. During the seven-year
period that started on January 1,2016, NSG activities are being
originated by the IIC and largely cofinanced by the Bank and
the IIC.

Figure 2 presents a breakdown of approvals by loan type
during the last five years. Over the past five years, sovereign-
guaranteed investment lending per year has fluctuated between
$5.0 billion and S7.3 billion, policy-based lending between $1.8
billion and $3.9 billion, and NSG lending between $1.4 billion
and $2.2 billion.

Figure 2: LOAN APPROVAL BY TYPE
For the years ended December 31, 2012 through 2016
(Expressed in billionsof UnitedStatesdollars)

14 Total 13.3^,0 i
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

HSovereign-Guaranteed Investment • Sovereign-Guaranlced Policy-Based
D Non-Sovereign-Guaranteed D Development Sustainability Credit Line

During 2016, loan approvals totaled $10,714 million
compared to $10,292 million in 2015. A summary of loan ap
provals by country during 2016and 2015appears in Table 1.

At December 31, 2016, the total volume of outstanding
loans was $81,952 million, $3,207 million higher than the
$78,745 million at December 31, 2015. This increase was
mainlydue to a higher level of loan disbursements ($9,600 mil
lion) than loan collections ($6,023 million), partially offset by
negative currency transaction adjustments ($301 million).
Undisbursed balances at December 31, 2016, totaled $30,007
million, a decrease of $704 million from December 31, 2015.

This change was mainly due to loan approvals less disburse
ments that were offset by cancellations.

During 2016, the portfolio of NSG loans decreased to
$5,930 million, compared to $5,980 million at December 31,
2015, while the non-sovereign-guarantee exposure increased
$23 million to $170 million, compared to $147 million the
previous year.As of December 31, 2016,7.4%of the outstand
ing loans and guarantees exposure was NSG, compared to 7.8%
at December 31, 2015.
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Table 1:LOAN APPROVAL BY COUNTRY(1)
For the years endedDecember 31,2016and 2015
(Expressed in millions of United States dollars)

2016 2015

COUNTRY
Argentina

Bahamas

Barbados

Belize

Bolivia

Brazil

Chile

Colombia

Costa Rica

Dominican Republic
Ecuador

EI Salvador

Guatemala

Guyana

Honduras

Jamaica

Mexico :

Nicaragua

Panama

Paraguay
Peru

Suriname

Trinidad and Tobago
Uruguay
Regional

Total $ 9,018

SG NSG

$ 422

Total

$ 1,549

SG NSG

$ 56

Total

$ 1,127 $ 750 $ 806

25 - 25 20 - 20

34 - 34 30 - 30

10 - 10 15 - 15

586 14 600 380 10 390

1,197 138 1,335 56 378 434

360 63 423 360 45 405

950 376 1,326 941 158 . 1,099

- 44 44 300 85 385

290 70 360 325 10 335

388 95 483 550 82 632

30 14 44 200 118 318

310 120 430 150 83 233

20 - 20 9 - 9

102 39 141 102 75 177

165 - 165 205 175 380

1,995 52 2,047 1,550 229 1,779

119 6 125 165 - 165

602 95 697 550 16 566

150 16 166 392 24 416

120 61 181 700 15 715

70 - 70 20 - 20

- 15 15 65 - 65

328 56 384 608 205 813

40 - 40 20 65 85

$ 1,696 $ 10,714 $ 8,463 $ 1,829 $ 10,292

(1) SG: Sovereign-Guaranteed Loans.NSG: Non-Sovereign-Guaranteed Loans.

A statement of loansoutstanding by country at December
31, 2016 and 2015 is set forth in Schedule 1-2 to the financial
statements.

Financial Terms of Loans

CurrentlyAvailableFinancial Terms: SinceJanuary 2012,the
Flexible Financing Facility(FFF) is the only financial product
platformfor approval of all regularOrdinary Capitalsovereign-
guaranteed loans.With FFFloans, borrowershave the abilityto
tailor financial terms at approval or during the life of a loan,
subject to market availability and operational considerations.
The FFF platform allows borrowers to: (i) manage currency,
interest rate and other types of exposures; (ii) address project
changing needs by customizingloan repayment terms to better
manageliquidityrisks;(iii) manageloans under legacyfinancial
products;and, (iv)executehedges with the Bankat a loan port
folio leveL The FFF loans' interest rate is based on LIBORplus
a funding margin or actual funding cost, as well as the Bank's
spread. Table 2 presents the currently availableterms for sover
eign-guaranteedloans.

The Bank offersconcessional lending through a blending
of loans from the Ordinary Capital and the FSO (blended
loans). The Ordinary Capital's portion of blended loans are
fixed-base cost rate loans with 30 years maturity and 6 years
grace period.

Effective January 1, 2017, the Bank offers concessional
lending from itsOrdinary Capital through a blending ofregular

and concessional financing. The concessional portion of
blended loanshavea graceperiodand maturityof40years, and
a 0.25% fixed interestrate.The regular financing portion has a
25 years maturity.

Non-sovereign- guaranteed loans can be denominated in
United States dollars, Japanese yen, euro, Swiss franc or local
currency,and borrowershave the option of either fixed interest
rate loansor floating rate loans.For floating rate loans,the in
terest rate resetseveryone, three, sue, or twelvemonths substan
tially allbasedon a LIBOR rateplusthelending spread. Lending
spreadsand fees are set on a case-by-case basis.

Discontinued Financial Terms: The most significant financial
products discontinued for which outstanding loan balances
remain, are described below.

Up to December 31, 2011, the Bank offered two basic
types of sovereign-guaranteed loans, each denominated in the
currency or currencies chosen by the borrower, as available
under the programs: Single Currency Facility (SCF) LIBOR-
based loans and LocalCurrency Faculty(LCF)loans.

SCF LIBOR-based loans have an interest rate that is ad

justed quarterly, based on the currency-specific three-month
LIBOR plusa pool-basedmargin reflecting the Bank's funding
cost,as wellas the Bank's spread.Borrowers havethe option to
convert their SCF LIBOR loan balances to fixed-base cost rate.

Forloans approvedunder the LCF, publicand privatesec
tor borrowers have the option to receive localcurrency financ-
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Table 2: CURRENTLY AVAILABLE FINANCIAL TERMS OF LOANS WITH SOVEREIGN GUARANTEE

Flexible Financing Facility
Interest rate option Libor-based loans'3'

Currencies offered

Approval USDor borrowing member local currency
Disbursement Currencyofapproval or convertedcurrency
Repayment Currency disbursed/converted

Cost base

LIBOR ± funding margin, or
currencyequivalent of LIBOR ± estimatedfundingmargin,or

actual funding cost

Funding margin to LIBOR Actual funding costor estimated fundingmarginat the timeof
disbursement/conversion

Lending spread(I>(2> 85<5>

Credit commission(l,(2) 50<5>

Supervision and inspection fee(l)(2) 0<«

Front-end/Standby fee(l> Not applicable/Not applicable<6)

Maturity(4) Up to 20yearsfor policybasedloansand up to 25yearsfor investmentloans

Grace Period Minimun of 6 months afteroriginal disbursement period

Repayment Profile
Flexible repaymentprofilebased on loan's contractual weighted

averagelife

"> Loancharges expressed in basispoints(bps).
(2) Loancharges on sovereign-guaranteed loansareestablished annually bythe Boardof Executive Directors. In no casecan the creditcommission

exceed0.75%or the inspectionand supervisionfeeexceed,in a givensix-monthperiod, the amount that would result from applying1%to the
loan amount dividedby the number of six-month periods includedin the originaldisbursementperiod.

,3) FFFLIBOR-based loanbalances canbe converted to fixed-base costrateand to anymembercurrency, subjectto market availability. A0.25%
fixedinterest rate appliesto the concessionalportion of blendedloans.

I4> Forthe concessional portionof blendedloans,the maturityandgraceperiodis40years.
<5> Loan charges effective January 1,2017.
(6> Policy basedloanswithdeferreddrawingoptionshavestandbyand front-end fees of40bpsand 50bps, respectively.15'

ing under three differentmodalities: i) direct localcurrencyfi
nancing or conversion of future loan disbursements and/or
outstanding loan balances; ii) direct swaps into local currency
against existing Bankdebt;and iii)localcurrencydisbursement
ofcalledguarantees. The useof thesemodalitiesissubjectto the
availability of the respectivelocal currency and the appropriate
risk mitigation instrument(s) in the financial markets. Out
standing loan balances in the LCF carry a fixed-base cost,
floating or inflation-linked interest rate.The LCF wasincorpo
ratedinto the FFFproduct for sovereign-guaranteed loans ef
fective January 1, 2012 and is still available for NSG opera
tions. At December 31, 2016, the Bank had local currency
loans outstanding of $2,697 million (2015 - $2,872 million),
whichhavesubstantially been swappedback-to-back to United
Statesdollars,or economicallyhedged with local currency debt.

Table 3 presents a breakdown of the loan portfolio by
main product. For more information, seeSchedule 1-3 to the
financial statements.

Of the $30,007 million (2015 - $30,711 million) undis
bursed loan balances at December 31,2016,22% (2015 - 28%)
pertains to the SCF-LIBOR-based, 66% (2015 - 61%) to the
FFF-LIBOR-based, and 10% (2015 - 9%) to the NSG-floating
portfolios.

The Bankusescurrency and interest rate swapsin order
to hedgeexposures fromloanswherethe currencyor the inter
est rate typeisnot the sameasthat of the underlying funding.
Figure3 displaysa breakdown of loans outstanding, before
swaps, by interest rate type.

Chargeson Loans with Sovereign Guarantee
Loan charges are established by the Board of Executive Direc
tors annually, or more frequently if deemed necessary, taking
into consideration the trade-offs presented in the Long-Term
Financial Projections (see the "Financial Risk Management-

Table 3: LOANS OUTSTANDING BY LOAN PRODUCT*"

December 31,2016 and 2015
(Amounts expressed inmillions ofUnited States dollars)

2016 2015

Amount % Amount %

SCF-LIBOR-based S 26,226 31.9 $ 26,526 33.6

SCF-fixed-base cost 24,519 29.9 26,290 33.4

LCF-fixed-basecost 719 0.9 409 0.5

LCF-variable 821 1.0 1,408 1.8

Currentlyavailable:

Flexible Financing
Farility-LIBOR-based 19,002 23.2 13,080 16.6

FlexibleFinancing

Facility-fixed-basecost 1,584 1.9 1,624 2.1

Flexible Financing

Facilily-fixed-base cost

localcurrency 241 0.3 305 0.4

FlexibleFinancing

Facility-variable localcurrency 596 0.7 549 0.7

Non-sovereign-guaranteed-

fixcd 875 1.1 838 1.1

Non-sovereign-guaranteed-

floating 4,641 5.7 4,846 6.2

Non-sovereign-guaranteed-

local currency. 293 0.4 168 0.2

Others'21 2,435 3J) 2,702 3A
Total $ 81,952 100.0 $ 78,745 100.0

'" Non-sovereign-guaranteed loansin the amount of S121 million (2015- $128million)

to otherdevelopment institutionsareincludedin SCF-LIBOR-based. SCF-fixed-base
cost,and Others,asapplicable.

<sIncludeslocalcurrency financingamounting to $27million in 2016(2015- S33million).
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Figure 3: LOANS OUTSTANDING BY INTEREST RATE
TYPE BEFORE SWAPS'"

December 31,2016 and 2015

Total loans outstanding: $81,952 million

2015

Total loans outstanding: S78.745 million

'" Dala is rounded; detail may not add up due to rounding.
'" Includes a total of S1.033 milium in fixed rate loans (2015—51,009 million).

Capital Adequacy Policy—Income Management Model" sec
tion). At a minimum, the level of loan charges for sovereign-
guaranteed loans should be sufficient to generate enough
income so as to cover 90%of the Ordinary Capital'sadministra
tive expenses on a three-year rolling basis, adjusted for 90%of
the income from the Bank's NSGoperations.

For 2016, the Board of Executive Directors maintained

charges for sovereign-guaranteed financing comprised of a
lending spread of 1.15%, a credit commission of 0.50% and no
supervision and inspection fee, the same levelsas those in effect
in the secondsemesterof 2015. For 2017, the approved lending
spread and credit commission were 0.85%and 0.50%, respec
tively.

A unique feature of the Bank's loan charge structure on
the sovereign-guaranteed portfoliois that changes applyto sub
stantially all the portfolio, including loansalreadydisbursedand
outstanding. Asa result, the Bankhasthe abilityto raiserevenue
bythese means, when needed. In addition, loancharges arealso
approved by the Bank's borrowingmembercountries whoulti
mately incur the higher costs.

Table 4 shows loan charges prevailing during the periods
indicated.

Table 4: LOAN CHARGES

Supervision

Lending Credit and inspection

spread commission fee

% % %

2014 0.85 0.25

2015

First semester.... 0.85 0.25 -

Second semester. 1.15 0.50 -

2016 1.15 0.50 _

Guarantees

The Bank may make political risk and partial credit guarantees
either without a sovereign counter-guarantee under the limit
established for NSG operations, or with a member country
sovereign counter-guarantee. These guarantees are denomi
nated in United States dollars or in local currencies.

Aspart of its NSG lendingactivities, the Bankhas issued
politicalriskand partial credit guaranteesdesigned to encourage
private sector infrastructure investments, local capital market
development, and trade finance. The political risk guarantees
and partial credit guarantees may be offered on a stand
alone basis or in conjunction with a Bank loan. Political risk

guarantees cover specific risk events related to noncommercial
factors (such as currency convertibility, transferability of
currencies outside the host country, and government non
performance). Partial credit guarantees cover payment risks
for debt obligations. On a case-by-casebasis, depending upon
the risks covered and the nature of each individual project, the
Bank may reinsure certain guarantees. Guarantee exposure is
measured as the callableamount. During 2016, there were two
approvals of non-trade-related guarantees without sovereign
counter-guarantee for $89 million (2015 - two for SI 12million).

The Bank's Trade Finance Facilitation Program (TFFP)
provides full credit guarantees without sovereign counter-
guarantees on trade-finance transactions. This Program
authorizes lines of credit in support of approved issuing
banks, with an aggregate program limit of up to SI,000
million outstanding it anytime. During 2016, 57trade-finance
guarantees, in the aggregate amount of $84 million, were
issued. 'Ihis compaies with 17 guarantees in the aggregate
amount of $11 million issued in 2015.

The Flexible Guarantee Instrument (FGI) for sovereign-
guaranteed operations allows for the structuring of sovereign
counter-guaranteed partial credit and political risk guarantees,
which can be used :o support investment projects or policy-
basedinterventions. During 2016and 2015, no guarantees with
sovereign counter-guarantee wereapproved.

As of December 31, 2016, guarantees of $230 million
(2015—$207 million), including $62 million issued under the
TFFP (2015—$11 million), were outstanding and subject to
call. Sovereign and non-sovereign guarantees exposure was$60
million (2015—$60 million) and $170 million (2015—$147
million), respectively.

Technical Assistance

Inaddition to loans and guarantees, the Bank provides technical
assistance to its member countries both in connection with,
and independent of. its lending operations. Such assistance fo
cuseson transferringknowledge, and supports projectprepara
tion, feasibility studies, regional programs, and training. Tech
nical assistance activities are currently funded by resources
from the Ordinary Capital's special programs and the funds
under the Bank's administration. In 2016, the Bankapproved
technical assistance for a total of $262 million (2015—$261 mil
lion), including $100 million (2015—$105 million) funded by
the Ordinary Capital.

The Policy for Fee-Based Advisory and Knowledge Ser
vices, approved in .1014, allows the Bank to provide fee-based
advisory and knowledge services that are not linked to the de
sign and execution of Banklendingoperations. Specific guide
linesand operational requirements applyto the Bank's staff in
volved in providin> advisory and knowledge services to the
clients.
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LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Bank's liquidity management is to
preserve capital andto ensurethatadequate resources areavail
able to meet anticipated contractual obligations andensure un
interrupted financial operations in the event the Bank were to
refrain from borrowing in response to unattractive market
conditions or otherconstraints. The Banksliquidity manage
ment principles areset forth in Box 3.

Box3: LiquidityManagement Principles

The primaryobjective in the management of the
Bank's liquid assets is preservation of capital, and
maintaining a portfolioof adequate size investedin
high qualityliquid assetsto enablethe Bank to meet
its financial obligationswithoutthe needto access the
capital markets. The secondary investmentobjective
is to efficientlymanage risk/return trade-offs of all
eligibleassetclasses within the defined risk tolerance
of the Bank, in order to help minimize the cost of
carryingliquidity.

The Bankmanages its liquiditythrough financial
policies and guidelines. The Investment Resolution
approved by the Board of Executive Directors pro
vides the basic authority within which liquidity is
invested. The Investment Guidelines approved by
Management establish the detailed operating, com
pliance andmonitoringconditionsforthe implemen
tation of the liquidity management Both are de
signed to ensure that the Bank assesses marketand
credit risks, and establishes investment constraints
consistent with the Bank's level ofrisk tolerance. For

informationconcerning the management of risk ex
posures on liquidityseethe "Financial Risk Manage
ment" section.

The Banksubstantially invests its liquid assets in highly
rated securities and bank deposits. These instruments include
obligations of highly-rated sovereign and sub-sovereign gov
ernments' agencies, multilaterals, banks and corporate entities,
including asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities. The
Bank also uses derivatives, mosdy currency and interest rate
swaps, to manage its investment portfolios. In addition, the
Bank carries local currency assets to support local currency
operations.

Under the Bank's liquidity policy, the Bank's liquidity
floor covers, at a minimum, 12 months of projected net cash
requirements, after accounting for liquidity haircuts, while the
liquidityceiling is set to allow the entireborrowing program to
be executed in the first quarterof the year.

The policy allows Management to manage liquidity dy
namically based on the Bank's expected future cash flow needs.
It requires a liquidity level ranging within a band established
early in the year. The Bankhas remained compliant with the
requiredliquidity levels.

Liquidity is definedas non-borrowing countries convert
iblecurrency cash and investments, excluding assets with lim
ited or restricted availability.

At December 31, 2016, the liquid asset portfolio totaled

$27,428 million, a decrease of $340 million compared to De
cember 31, 2015. Liquidity, as defined, was $27,367 million,
within policy limits. During the year, liquidity averaged $33,443
million compared to $29,628 million in 2015.

Liquid investments (trading investments portfolio) are
maintained in fourdistinctsub-portfolios: transactional, opera
tional, the External Managers Program, andlocal currency, each
with different risk profilesand performancebenchmarks. The
transactional portfolio is used to meet the day-to-day cashflow
requirements. The operational portfolio holds the majority of
the Bank's liquid holdings.

The External Managers Program focuses on the U.S.
agency mortgage-backed securityexposures in the tradingin
vestments portfolio. Separate investment guidelines that con
form to the Bank's overall InvestmentGuidelines are provided
to each externalmanager. At December 31,2016 and 2015,the
sizeof the program was$506millionand $502 million,respec
tively,or 1.8% of the portfolio for both periods.

The local currency assets are available to support local
currency operations.

The return of the trading investments portfolio in 2016
and 2015 is shown in Table 5. The increase in the return of the

portfolio was mainly due to the widening of swap spreadsand
the tightening of credit spreads.

Table 5: TRADING INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO"'

December 31,2016 and 2015

(Amounts expressed in millions of United States dollars)
2016 2015

„ ,. Financial _ ,. Financial
!n,dmg Return (%) J"*"* ReturnPortfolio Balance (2)(3)<4) Balance (%)mm)

Transactional. $ 704 0.58 $ 2,704 0.17

Operational. 26,026 1.04 24,465 0.22

External Managers

Program 506 0.83 502 0.20

Localcurrency..... 192 13.48 97 13.39
Overall Portfolio... $ 27,428 0.92 $ 27,768 0.20

'"After swapsandnet of payableand receivable forinvestmentsecurities purchased or sold.

121 Combinedreturnforall currenciesin each portfolio.

"'Geometrically-linkedtime-weightedreturns.
<"Includes gains and losses.

Performance and exposure of the Trading Investments port
folio

The exposure for the entire investments portfolio, excluding
swaps, amounted to $27,417 million at December 31, 2016
compared to $27,999 million atDecember 31,2015. The quality
of the overall portfolio continues to be high, as 78.7% of the
credit exposure is rated AAA7 and AA (2015—82.5%), 9.5%
carry the highest short-term ratings (A1+) (2015—7.8%),
10.8% is rated A (2015—8.8%), and 1% is rated below A/A1+
(2015—0.9%).

Table 6 shows a breakdown of the trading investments
portfolio at December 31, 2016 and 2015 by major security
class together with unrealized gains and losses included in In
come from Investment-Net gains(losses), on securities held at
the end of the respective year.

7 Letter ratings refer to the averageratings from major rating agenciesand to
the entirerange in that ratingcategory including numeric(i.e., 1-3), symbolic
(i.e.. +/-), or similar qualifications used by eligible rating agencies.
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Table 6: TRADING INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO BY

MAJOR SECURITY CLASS
December 31,2016 and 2015
(Amounts expressed inmillions ofUnited States dollars)

2016 2015

Unrealized _ . Unrealized

Faur Gains FMr Gains
Security Class Value'" (Losses) Value"' (Losses)

Obligationsof the United
States Government and

its corporationsand
agencies. $ 2,037 $ (12) $ 3,977 $ (9)

U.S. Government-

sponsored enterprises.. 462 (3) 296 (2)
Obligations of non-U.S.

governments 5,900 (2) 5,757 (4)
Obligationsof non-U.S.

agencies 8.319 (15) 8,633 (20)
Obligations of non-U.S.

sub-sovereigns 1,440 (1) 1,496 (4)
Obligations of

supranational. 1,683 - 2301 (2)
Bankobligations. 6,881 4 5,023 (9)

' Corporate securities. 490 (3) 55

Mortgage-backed
securities 171 3 213 (3)

Asset-backed securities.. 34 (2) 48 (2)
Totaltrading

investments 27,417 (31) 27,999 (55)

Currencyand interest
rate swaps -

investments-trading.... 90 43 (137) (7)
Total S 27.507 S 12 $ 27,862 $ (62)

">Includesaccrued interest of S12Smillion (2015 - S98million) and $(83) million (2015 •
$(71)million),presentedin the BalanceSheetunder Accruedinterestand other charges-on
investments and Accruedinterestand other charges-onswaps-net,respectively.

Contractual Obligations
In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into vari
ous contractual obligations that require future cash pay
ments, the most significant of whichrelate to the repayment
of borrowings. Table 7 presents borrowings by remaining
maturity as of December31,2016.

Table 7: CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

December 31,2016

(Amounts expressed in millions of UnitedStates dollars)

One year 2 to 3 4 to 5 More than _ . ,
, _ Totalorless years years 5 years

Borrowings1"... S 12,280 $ 31.417 $ 18,300 $ 18,304 $ 80301

(" Amounts arebefore swaps andcontractual interest.

Inaddition,the Bankhasa numberofotherobligations to
be settledin cash, including leases, undisbursed loans, payable
for currencyand interest rate swaps, Payable for investment se
curities purchased, Payablefor cash collateral received,Due to
IDB Grant Facility, and Pension and postretirement benefit
obligations.

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Equity
Equity at December 31, 2016 was $26,460 million compared
with $25,253 million at December 31, 2015. The increase of

$1,207 million reflects Net Income of $848 million, paid-in
capital received underthe IDB-9 of$392 million, the collection
of Receivable from membersof $15million,offsetby the recog
nition of the changes in assets/liabilities related to the Bank's
pension and postretirement benefit plans of $40 million, and
the reclassification of prior servicecredit of $8 million from
other comprehensiveincome to net income.

The Bank's equitybaseplaysa criticalrole in securing its
financial objectives, enabling the Bankto absorbrisk out of its
own resources and protectingmember countries from a possi
blecall on callablecapitalstock.Table 8 presents the composi
tion of the TELR at December 31, 2016 and 2015. See "Finan
cial Risk Management—Credit Risk—Capital Adequacy
Framework" for further information.

Aspresentedin Table8, the TELRincreasedfrom 31.8%
at December 31, 2015, to 32.0% at December 31, 2016, due to
an increase of $1,163 millionin TotalEquityand an increaseof
$3,230 million in loans outstanding and guarantee exposure.
Figure 4 presents the changes in the TELRduring the last five
years.As can be seen, the TELRhas remained relatively stable
during this period.

Table 8: TOTAL EQUTTY-TO-LOANS RATIO

December 31,2016 and 2015

(Amounts expressed in millions ofUnited States dollars)
2016 2015

Equity

Paid-incapitalstock. $ 6,039 $ 5,699
Capital subscriptions receivable (24) (75)

6,015 5,624

Less: Receivable from members 215 230

Retained earnings:
General reserve(l> 18,095 17,294
Specialreserve"' 2,565 2365

26,460 25,253

Minus:

Borrowingcountries' local currency
cash balances 192 148

Total Equity. $ 26.268 $ 25,105

Loans outstanding and guarantee
exposure. $ 82,182 $ 78,952

Total Equity-to-Loans Ratio. 32.0% 31.8%

(l> Includes Accumulated othercomprehensive income.

Figure 4: TOTAL EQUITY-TO-LOANS RATIO
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Capitalization

Shareholders' support for the Bankis reflected in the capital
backing it has received from its members. At December 31,
2016, subscribed capital stock, net of subscriptions receivable,
was $170,916 million, of which $6,015 million is paid-in and
$164,901 million is callable.

Paid-in and callable capital stock subscriptions are pay
able as follows:

Paid-in Capital Stock: Each subscription to paid-in capital
stockhasbeenpaid, in wholeor in part, in UnitedStates dollars
or the currencyof the respective member country. In the case
of most paymentsmade in the currencyof the respective mem
ber country,the member country hasmadearrangements satis
factory to the Bank to assure that, subjectto the provisions of
the Agreement, its currency will be freely convertible (or the
member country hasagreedto convert its currencyon behalfof
the Bank) into the currencies of other countries for the pur
poses of the Bank's operations. The Bank has accepted non-
negotiable, non-interest-bearingdemand obligations in lieu of
the immediate payment of all or a part of the member's sub
scription to the paid-in capital stock. Under the Agreement,
such obligations areacceptedwhere currenciesarenot required
for the Bank'soperations.

Callable Capital Stock The callableportion of the capital stock
subscriptions is subject to call only when required and to the
extentnecessary to meet the obligations of the Bankon borrow
ingsof funds or guarantees. In the event of acall, paymentmay
be made at the option of the member in gold, United States
dollars, fullyconvertible currencyof the member countryor in
the currencyrequired to discharge the obligations of the Bank
forthe purpose forwhich the callis made.Calls are required to
be uniform, but obligations of the members of the Bank to
make paymentupon such calls are independent of each other.
Failure of one or more members to make paymentson anysuch
callwould not excuse any other member from its obligation to
make payment, and successive calls couldbe madeon non-de
faulting members if necessary to meet the Bank's obligations..
However, no membercouldbe required on anysuchcall to pay
morethan the unpaid balance of its capital stocksubscription.
No callhasever been made on the Bank's callable capital stock.
Total callable capital by Standard &Poor's (S&P) countryrating
is shown on Table 9.

At December31,2016, the total subscriptionof the United
States, the Bank's largest shareholder, was $51,314 million, of
which$1,813 millionis paid-in capital stock,andtheremainder
constitutes callable capital stock.Of the United States' callable
capital stocksubscription of $49,501 million, $3,800 million
hadbeenfully authorized andappropriated, without fiscal year
limitation, by United States legislation, andno further appro
priation is necessary to enable the Secretary of the Treasury to
paythisamount if anypart were tobecalled to meetobligations
of the Bank. The balance of the United States' callable capital
stocksubscription, $45,701 million, hasbeenauthorized by the
United States Congress but not yet appropriated. In 1979, in
connection with the United States' subscription to an increase
in the callable capital stock,the Bankobtained anopinionof the
General Counsel of the Treasury stating that appropriations
were not legally required to backsubscriptions to suchcallable
capital stock unless and until payment was required of the
United States on a callmade by the Bank.The opinion further
states that an appropriation is not required to makeUnited
States callable capital stocksubscriptions, authorized by United

Table 9: CALLABLE CAPITAL BY S&P COUNTRY RATINGS <8)

December 31,2016 and 2015

(Expressed in millions ofUnited States dollars)

CountryRating 2016 2015
AAA $ 11,925 $ 12,421

AA+ 50,028 45,885

AA 5,261 3364

AA- 5,152 4.697

A+ 8309 7,804

A 49 654

A- 713 45

BBB+ 17,799 16,220

BBB 7,909 7,204

BBB- 3,242 3,272

BB+ 431 17,154

BB 22,031 3,688

BB- 1,758 1,047

B+ 1,648 1,370

B 1,954 1,990

B- 19,719 173

CCC 5,568 5,568

CC 190

SD - 17,073

N.R(I) 1,015 1,611

Total $ 164,901 $ 151,240

(,)Sovereigns not ratedby S&P.

States legislation, binding obligations backed by the full faith
and credit of the United States, and that an obligation con
tracted by the United States pursuant to a Congressional grant
of authority for constitutional purposesis fully binding on the
United States notwithstanding that a future appropriation
might be necessary in orderto fund that obligation.

Capital Increase: On February 29,2012,the IDB-9enteredinto
effect providing foran increase in the Bank's Ordinary Capital
of $70,000 million, subscribedby Bankmembers in fiveannual
installments beginningin 2012. Of this amount,$1,700 million
was paid-in capital stockandthe remainder constituted callable
capital stock.

On February 29,2016, the effective date of the fifth and
last installment, 1,160,644shares in the amount of$14,001 mil
lion weremade effective ($340million paid-in;$13,661 million
callable).

Temporary Increase in Canada's Callable Capital: In 2009,
Canada subscribed to 334,887 shares of non-voting callable
capital stock. The terms and conditions of Canada's subscrip
tion stipulated that the subscription wason a temporary basis,
with Canada havingthe rightto replace its temporarysubscrip
tion with shares issued under a future capital increase, as and
when effective. Accordingly, when the IDB-9 becameeffective,
Canada exercised its right,and from 2012 to 2015 replaced a
total of 181,212 non-voting callable shares in the amount of
$2,186 million with an equal amount of voting callable shares.
In addition, in July 2014 and 2015, Canada returned the re
maining non-voting callable shares (83,722 and 69,953 in the
amount of $1,010million and $844 million, respectively).

8 Represents the countries' SckP long-term sovereign foreign currency creditrat
ing.
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Borrowings

The Bank raises funds in the international capital markets pri
marily through the issuance of debt securities. Todiversify its
sources of funding, the Bank issues its debt securities in vari
ous currencies, maturities, formats, and structures to meet the
needs of global institutional and retail investors. Under the
Agreement, theBank may borrow only with theapproval ofthe
member countryin whose markets the debtsecurities aresold
and the member country in whose currency the borrowings
are denominated. In addition, the Bank is required to obtain
the agreement of eachsuch membercountry that the proceeds
maybe exchanged by the Bankfor the currency of any other
member country without restriction.

The Bank also has a short-term borrowing program (the
Discount NoteProgram) underwhichdiscountnotesare issued
in amounts of not less than SI 00,000 and maturities of no more

than 360days. This funding program is used to manageshort-
term cash flow needs.

The Bank's borrowing policy is summarized in Box4.

Box 4: Borrowing Policy

The Bank's policy is to limit its Net Borrowings to the
amount of the subscribed callable capital stock of its non-
borrowing member countries (the United States, Canada,
Japanand the other non-regional members).NetBorrow
ings is the amount of borrowings (after swaps), plus gross
guarantee exposure, less qualified liquid assets (after
swaps), which include the special reserve assets.Special re
serve assetscan only be used for meeting the Bank's obliga
tions on borrowings and guaranteesAs of December 31,
2016, Net Borrowings represented 67.4% of the subscribed
callablecapital stock of the non-borrowing member coun
tries compared to 70.7% in 2015. Accordingly,the unused
borrowing capacity at the end of the year amounted to
$26,886 million, compared to $22,102 million in 2015.
The objectives of the Bank's borrowing strategy are to se
cure long-term capital market access, volume and cost ef
fectiveness. The Bank uses derivatives, mostly currency
and interest rate swaps, for economic hedging purposes as
part of its liability management to achieve the desired
currency composition and interest rate structure as wellas
to lower its funding costs.TheBank closely monitors and
regulates its activities with dealers and counterparties (see
the "Financial Risk Management—Credit Risk—Com
mercial Credit Risk" section).The amount and timing of
the Bank's borrowings are determined in part by loan
disbursements, maturing debt and liquidity levels (secthe
"Liquidity Management" section).

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, short-term borrowings
consist of U.S. dollar denominated discount notes. Table 10pres
ents information about theBank's short-term borrowing operations.

Table 10: SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

December 31, 2016 and 2015

(Amounts expressed in millions ofUnited Stales dollars)

Balanceat year-end
Average daily balance during the year..
Maximum month-end-balance

Weightedaverage rate at the end of the
year.

Weighted average rate during the year.

2016 2015

$ 540 $ 513

620 671

715 871

0.49% 0.19%

0.33% 0.09%

Medium- and long-term borrowing operations for 2016
and 2015 are summarized in Table 11. In 2016, the proceeds
from medium- and long-term debt raised directly in financial
marketsamounted to 515,583 million compared to $18,790mil
lion in 2015.The lower level of borrowings when compared to
2015 was mostly due io lowerliquidity needs.

Table 11: SUMMARY OF MEDIUM AND LONG-TERM

BORROWING OPERATIONS

For the years ended De:ember 31,2016 and 2015

(Amounts expressed in nillions ofUnited States dollars)

Total medium- and lon{,- term
borrowings,u

Average life(years)(2)
Number of transactions

Number of currencies

2016

$ 15,583

5.2

86

2015

$ 18,790

5.2

94

9

111 Representsproceeds on a trade date basis.
,2) Average lifecalculate, d consideringthe time to the next calldate.

Borrowings raised in any given year are used for general
operations, including loan disbursements and refinancing of
maturing debt. In 20 .6, the Bank executed five strategic bench
mark global bond issues denominated in United States dollars
with three, five and ten year maturities for a combined amount
of $10,200 million. Borrowings denominated in borrowing
member country currencies in the aggregate amount of $217
million were issued (2015—$137 million), composed of: Brazil
ian reais—$217 mil ion (2015—Brazilian reais—$49 million,
Colombian pesos - S22 million and Mexican pesos—$66 mil
lion). In addition, the Bank transacted various bonds denomi

nated in Australian dollars, Indian rupees, Indonesian rupiahs,
New Turkish liras, Mew Zealand dollars, British pound, and
United States dollars. Newmedium- and long-termborrowings
bycurrencyfor2016, as comparedto 2015, are shownin Figure
5.

Medium- and long-termborrowings outstanding bycur
rency as of December 31, 2016and 2015are shown in Table 12.

The Bank may retire its debt earlier than the maturity
date. Forexample, d<:bt maybe repurchased to facilitate second
ary market liquidity and bonds may be called to reduce the cost
of borrowing. During 2016, the Bank early retired$256million
of its borrowings (2015—$488 million).

Use of Derivatives: The Bank mayenter into currency and in
terest rate swaps contemporaneously with borrowing transac
tions in order to corvert the proceedsmostly into UnitedStates
dollars and floating rate funding to meet its loan disbursement
obligations. In 2016 all the new borrowings, as applicable, were
swapped into United States dollars at floating rates. Figures 6
and 7 illustrate the effect of swaps on both the interest rate
structure and currency composition of the medium- and long-
term borrowing poitfolio at December 31, 2016. More detailed
information with aspect to the Bank's borrowings and related
derivatives is contained in Notes I, J, K, L, X and Schedule 1-4 to
the financial statements.
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Figure 5: NEW BORROWINGS BY CURRENCY'"
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Others
2016

United States

dollars

87%

United States

dollars

89%

111 Includesmedium- and long-term borrowings,excludingswaps,
and representsproceedson a trade date basis.

Table 12: OUTSTANDING BORROWINGS'"

BY CURRENCY

December 31, 2016 and 2015

(Expressed inmillions of United States dollars)

Currency 2016

Australian dollars $ 7,328

Brazilian reais 458

British pound 1,395

Canadian dollars 1,264

Colombian pesos 40

Costa Rican colones

Euro 623

Indian rupees 466

Indonesian rupiahs 828

Japaneseyen 331

Korean won 35

Mexican pesos 428

New Turkish liras 103

New Zealand dollars 738

Peruvian new soles 58

South African rands 31

Swiss francs 491

United States dollars 64,681

Total $ 79,298

111 Medium-and long-termborrowings net of unamortized
discounts and debt issuance costs (before swaps and fair
value adjustments).

2015

$ 7,294

294

1,299

1,211

38

47

642

448

665

322

36

697

147

655

95

42

649

63.076

$ 77,657

Figure 6: EFFECTS OF SWAPS ON INTEREST RATE
STRUCTURE OF OUSTANDING BORROWINGS'"

December 31, 2016

Borrowings, before swaps

Floating &
Adjustable

Fixed

84%

Floating&
Adjustable

97%

Borrowings, after swaps

' Medium- and long-term borrowings only.

Fixed

3%

Figure 7: EFFECTS OF SWAPS ON CURRENCY
COMPOSITION OF OUSTANDING BORROWINGS"

December 31,2016

Borrowings, before swaps

Others

19%

Borrowings, after swaps

1Medium-and long-termborrowingsonly.

United States

dollars

81%

United States

dollars

99%
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Operating Income

Operating incomeincludes the net interest incomeon earning
assets and the income contribution of the Bank's equity,other
loanincome, net investmentgains, the provision for loanand
guarantee losses andnet non-interest expense. Box5 displays
the most significant elements of the Bank's Operating Income
and the related influences on the results. Table 13 shows the
breakdown of Operating Incomeduringthe lastthreeyears.

Operating Income
Year2016 versus 2015: The increase in Operating Income was
mainly due to higher net interest income and net investment
gains, as well as adecrease innetnon-interest expense, partially
offset by an increase in the provision for loan and guarantee
losses.

Year2015 versus 2014: The increase in Operating Income was
mainly due to higher net interest income and other loan in
come, and a lower provision for loan and guarantee losses,
which were partially offset by a reduction in net investment
gains, and an increase in net non-interest expense.

Net Interest Income

Year 2016 versus 2015: The increase in net interest income was

mainlydue to an increase in lendingcharges and a larger loan
portfolio.

Year 2015 versus 2014: The increase in net interest income was

mainlydue to an increase in lendingcharges in the secondse
mesterof 2015 and a larger loan portfolio.

The average interest earning asset and interest bearing
liabilityportfolios,after swaps,and the respectivereturns and
costs for 2016,2015, and 2014 are shown in Table 14.

Net Investment Gains (Losses)
Year 2016 versus 2015: Net mark-to-market investment gains
weremainlydue to the wideningof swapspreads and the tight
ening of credit spreads.

Year 2015 versus 2014: Net mark-to-market investment losses

weremainlydue to the significant contraction of swapspreads
and widening of the credit spreads.

Provision for Loan and Guarantee Losses

Year 2016 versus2015:The increase was mainly due to an in
crease in the specific loan lossallowance due to new impaired
loans and worsening of the conditions of certain loans previ
ously-classified as impaired in the non-sovereign guaranteed
portfolio.

Box 5: Operating Income Elements and
Significant Influences

Elements Significant Influences

Loan interest income Loanvolumes, lending spreads,
and interest rate environment

Borrowing expenses Interest rate environment,

includingchanges in LIBOR.

Net investment gains ' Mark-to-market gainsor losseson
(losses) the Banks trading investments

portfoliowhich aredrivenby '
external factors such as: the

interest rate environment, and

credit spreadswithin the liquid
assetportfolio.

Net non-interest Increase or decrease in

expense administrative expensesdrivenby
staffcosts,includinghigheror
lower pension and postretirement
benefit costsand special
programs.

Provision for Riskassessment of non-sovereign
loan and guarantee borrowers andprobability of
losses default andLossgivendefault

Table 13: OPERATING INCOME

For the years ended December 31,2016,2015 and 2014
(Expressed inmillions ofUnited States dollars)

Loan interest income

Investment interest income

Other interest income

Less:

Borrowing expenses
Net interest income

Other loan income

Net investment gains (losses)

Other expenses:
Provision for loan and guarantee losses.
Net non-interest expense
Operating Income.

•016 1015 2014

$ 1,659

2016 vs. 2015 2015 vs. 2014

$ 2,237 $ 1,839 $ 398 $ 180

286 111 74 175 37

23 35 44 (12) (9)

2,546 1,985 1,777 561 208

797 409 398 388 11

1,749 1,576 1,379 173 197

128 107 82 21 25

35 (51) 40 86 (91)

142 73 118 69 (45)
743 842 731 (99) 111

$ 1,027 $ 717 $ 652 $ 310 $ 65
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Table 14: ASSET/LIABIUTY PORTFOLIOS AND RETURNS/COSTS

For the years ended December 31,2016,2015 and 2014

(Amounts expressed in millions of UnitedStatesdollars)

Loans(1)

Liquidinvestments U)(J>.

Totalearning assets

Borrowings

Net interestmargin<4)...

2016 2015 2014

Average

Balance

Return/Cost

%

Average

Balance

$ 76,674

29,898

$106,572

$ 80,677

Return/Cost

%

Average

Balance

$71,280

25,683

$ 96,963

$ 72,097

Return/Cost

%

$ 79,831

34,205

$114,036

2.80

0.92

2.24

2.40

0.20

1.78

2.33

0.47

1.84

$ 86,617 0.92 0.51 0.55

1.53 1.48 1.42

'" Excludes loan fees.

(2) Geometrically-linked time-weighted returns.

(3) Includes gains and losses.

<4) Represents net interest incomeasa percent of average earning assets, after swaps.

Year2015 versus 2014: In 2015, the provision for loan losses
was mainly due to new impaired loans and worsening of the
conditions of previously impaired loans, while in 2014, the
provision forloanlosses wasmostly drivenby asignificant new
loan classifiedas impaired.

Net Non-interest expense
The main components of net non-interest expense are pre
sented in Table 15.

Year 2016 versus 2015: Net non-interest expense decreased
mainly due to a reduction in net pension and postretirement
benefit costsof $87million asa resultof not havingto amortize
unrecognized net actuarial lossesin 2016and a decrease in the
service cost due to the increase in the rate used to discount the

pension liabilities at the end of 2015.

tear 2015 versus 2014: Net non-interest expense increased
mainly due to higherstaff costs asa resultofhighernet pension
and postretirement benefit costs of $72 million mostly due to
the amortization of unrecognized net actuarial losses and an
increase in the service cost due to the decrease in the rate used

to discount the pension liabilities at the end of 2014.

Core Operating Income (Non-GAAP Measure)
Although the Bank prepares its financial statements in accor
dance with U.S. GAAP, management reviews certain results,
such as core operating income, on a non-GAAP basis. This
measure provides information about the underlying opera
tional performance and trends of the Bank while excluding
volatile net investment mark-to-market gainsand losses, non
recurring gains and losses associated with equity duration
management and loan prepayments, aswellas,the provision for
loanand guarantee losses.Table 16displaysreportedOperating
Income (GAAP) with the adjustments to arrive at core operat
ing income (Non-GAAP).

Managementconsiders core operating income as a useful
measure of the Bank's operations. Changes in core operating
income are driven mainly by changes in the Banks approved
sovereign lending charges and the impact of changesin interest
rates, as well as changes in net non-interest expense. During
2016and 2015,core operatingincome changeswere mostly re
lated to the fluctuations in the lending chargesand in the net
pension and postretirement benefit costs.

Table 15: NET-NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

Forthe years ended December 31,2016,2015 and 2014
(Expressed inmillions ofUnited States dollars)

Administrative expenses

Staff costs

Consultant fees.

Operationaltravel
Other expenses

Total gross administrative expenses

Less:

Shareof Fund for SpecialOperations

Net administrative expenses

Service fee revenues

Special programs
Other income

Net non-interest expense

2016 2015

$ 503

2014

$ 419

2016 vs.2015 2015 vs.2014

$ 390 $ (113) $ 84

128 136 137 (8) (1)

25 32 33 (7) (1)

153 120 98 33 22

696 791 687 (95) 104

(4)(20) (23) (19)

676 768 668 (92) 100

(13) (7) (10) (6) 3

91 95 107 (4) (12)

(11) (14) (34) 3 20

$ 743 $ 842 $ 731 $ (99) $ 111
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Table 16: CORE OPERATING INCOME

For the years ended December 31,2016,2015 and 2014

(Expressed in millions of United States dollars)

Core Operating Income (Non-GAAP Measure)

Operating Income (Reported)

Less:

Net investment gains (losses)

Add:

Provision for loan and guarantee losses
Core operating income

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

2016 2015

$ 717

2014

$ 652

2016 vs. 201 ;

$ 310

2015 vs. 2014

$ 1,027 $ 65

35 (51) 40 86 (91)

142 73 118 .69 (45)

$ 1,134 $ 841 $ 730 $ 293 $ 111

As part of its development banking services, the Bank is ex
posed to a varietyof risks includingcredit risk (loan portfolio
or country credit and commercial credit); market risks (interest
rate, spread and exchange rate); liquidity risk (funding and liq
uidation); pension risk; and operational risk.

Governance

The Bank conducts its operations within a framework of finan
cial and risk management policies,uses only specifically autho
rized financial instruments and follows a well-defined risk

management decision-making process.
The Bank manages its risks in accordance with the Agree

ment, and such other policies as are approved by its Board of
Governors, its Board of Executive Directors and the Finance

Committee composed of members of Management. The Bank's
Risk Management Office reports to the Executive Vice Presi
dent, and consists of four risk management units, which are
responsible for capital adequacy/asset-liability management,
treasury risk, credit risk, and financial controls/operational
risk, respectively.The Asset Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) is the forum to consider risk and financial manage
ment issues. This includes asset/liability management, capital
adequacy assessments, financial products (lending, investment,
funding, etc.) review and planning, treasury risk management,
credit risk management, capital markets (i.e.,funding and invest
ments) analysis, liquidity management, and loan management.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential loss that could result from the default
of borrowers (loan portfolio credit risk or country credit risk) or
from the default of investment, trading or swap counterparties
(commercial credit risk).

Loan Portfolio Credit Rish Loanportfoliocredit risk is the risk
that the Bank may not receive repayment of principal and/ or
intereston one or more of its loansaccordingto the agreed- upon
terms. It is directly related to the Bank's core businessand is the
largest financial risk facedby the Bank. The Bank's loan portfolio
credit risk is determined by the credit quality of, and exposure to,
each borrower. The Bank manages credit risk in its loan portfolio
through: i) its overall lendinglimitation,ii)a comprehensive CAP
(designed to ensure that the Bank holds sufficient equity at all
times given the quality and concentration of its portfolio), iii) a
policyfor the treatment of non-performingloans,and iv)a policy
for the maintenance of a loan loss allowance, among others.

The credit quality of the sovereign-guaranteed lending
portfolio as of December 31,2016 and 2015as represented by the

long-term foreign currency credit ratings assigned to eachbor
rowing country by S&P, is depicted in Figure 8.

Compared to December 31, 2015, Figure 8 shows that the
relative amount of lending exposure to sovereign borrowers
rated at investment gride, B+ to B-, increased 0.4%,and 14.1%,
respectively in 2016, while the lending exposure to sovereign
borrowers rated BB+ to BB-, CCC+ to CC and SD decreased
0.8%,0.1%and 13.2% respectively. The decrease in SD is mainly
due to the upgrade o'Argentina in 2016. The relative lending
exposure in the NSG category decreased 0.4%. Note that the
weighted average crec.it quality of the Bank'ssovereign lending
exposureas of December31, 2016is at the BB level.

Takingintoconsiderationthe regionalnatureof the Bank's
operations and the relativesizes of the economies of its borrow
ing members, the Bank expects to consistently have a concen
trated portfolio. As shown in Figure 9, from 2015 to 2016, the
lending exposure concentration held by the fivelargest borrow
ers decreased from 58.7% to 58.2%.

Figure 8: CREDIT QUALITY OF SOVEREIGN-
GUARANTEED LENDING EXPOSURE REFLECTED IN

RATING OF BORROWING MEMBER COUNTRIES'"

December 31,2016 and 2015

CCC+ to CC

2.7%

B+ to 11-

Non-sovercign
guarantee

CCC+ to CCC-

Il* to II-

11.3%

Non-sovereign
guarantee

7.8%

2016'"

2015"'

Investment

grade
36.0%

Investment

grade

'" Data is rounded; det.iil may not add up due to rounding.
"' Afterconsideration df EEA agreements.
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Figure9: CONCENTRATION OF LENDING

EXPOSURE'"

December 31, 2016 and 2015

'" Data is rounded; detail may not add up due to rounding.
'" After consideration of EEA agreements.

The Bankand other regional multilateral development
banks (MDB) have actively been identifying ways to reduce
SG portfolio concentration. The Bank has taken the following
measures to address its concentration of credit risk:

Sovereign-GuaranteedSingleBorrower Limits:Since 2015, the
Board of Executive Directors approved a two-tiered exposure-
basedsingle borrower limit policy(i.e.,Country Limits) for its
sovereign-guaranteed credit portfolio. This policymeasuresthe
Bank'scredit concentration based on its exposure at default,and
limits it through a mechanism with thresholds of different na
ture and level named "Hard Limit" and "Soft Limit". All Bor

rower Member Countries (BMCs) are conditioned by both
limits, with the exception of Brazil for whom the "Soft Limit"
(lower limit) is not currently binding. If the "Hard Limit" is
surpassed by a BMC,the subsequent year flowof new approvals
for such particular BMC is reduced to an amount no greater
than the scheduledamount of debt repayment. Ifonly the "Soft
Limit" is exceeded, the BMC in breach could have access to ad

ditional lending subject to a premium determined to compen
sate the marginal cost of capital incurred by the Bank on this
additional lending and based on country risk considerations.
Such risk-based price differentiation mechanism will also en
able the Bank to accumulate additional resources to quickly
offset the impact that exposure beyond the soft limit entails on
the Banks capital position. Although no significant changes of
the current portfolio composition are anticipated, the frame
work is expected to contribute over time to further portfolio
diversification.

Exposure Exchange Agreement: In November 2015, the Board
of Executive Directors authorized Management to reduce the
Bank's loan portfolio concentration by entering into a Master

Exposure ExchangeAgreement (EEA)jointly with other MDBs,
and executing bilateral transactions under such framework.
Conceptually, the EEA reduces portfolio concentration by si
multaneously exchanging coverage for potential non-accrual
events between MDBsfor exposures from borrowing countries
in which a MDB is concentrated, to countries in which the

MDB has no, or low,exposure.
In 2015, the Bank entered into an EEA with certain other

MDBs pursuant to which it also executed two bilateral EEA
transactions within Bank limits, which require such transac
tions to remain within 10%of the outstanding loan balance of
the SG portfolio and, individual country exposures not exceed
ing the Bank's 10th largest SG exposure. Each EEA transaction
was accounted for as an exchange of two separate financial
guarantees (given and received). As of December 31, 2016 and
2015, the Bankis the EEA Buyer (receives a financial guarantee
from other MDBs) and the EEA Seller (provides a financial
guarantee to other MDBs) for the following countries and expo
sure amounts (in millions):

Table 17: EXPOSURE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT

TRANSACTIONS

December31, 2016and 2015
EEA Seller

Country Amount
Angola $ 85
Armenia 118

Bosnia & Herzegovina 99
Egypt 720
Georgia 97
Indonesia 535

Jordan 144

Macedonia 130

Montenegro 116
Morocco 990

Nigeria 95
Pakistan 276

Serbia 195

Tunisia 990

Turkey. 311
Total $ 4,901

EEA Buyer

Country
Argentina
Bolivia

Brazil

Chile

Colombia

Costa Rica

Dominican Republic...
Ecuador.

Mexico

Panama

Trinidad & Tobago
Total

Amount

$ 750

92

820

66

397

43

460

1,066

800

207

200

$ 4,901
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As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, no non-accrual
events have occurred, and the current carrying amount under
the guarantees given amounts to S563 million and $605 mil
lion, respectively. The Bank continues to expect full recovery
of all its sovereign-guaranteed exposures.

Lending Limitation: The Bank's Agreement limits the total
amount of outstanding loans and guarantees to the subscribed
capital (including callable capital), plus reserves and surplus,
exclusive of income assigned to certain reserves. However, the
Bank's lending capacity is also limited by its borrowing and
capital adequacy policies.

Capital Adequacy Policy (CAP): The Bank's CAPconsists of
a CAP mandate (Mandate) and regulations that determine
capital requirements for credit and market risks in both its
lendingand treasuryoperations. TheCAPalsoincludes capital
requirements for pension and operational risks. The Mandate,
approved by the Board of Governors, requires the Bank to
maintain its Triple-A foreign currency long-term issuer rating
and includes the establishment ofcapital buffers,specifically to
assume financial risks in times of stress, while preserving the
Bank's lendingcapacity. Box6 includes the Bank's Mandate as
approved by its Board of Governors.

Box 6: Capital Adequacy Policy Mandate

"The Bank provides funding at competitive pricing
for projects in Latin American and Caribbean coun
tries with and without a sovereign guarantee. Based
on the limited number of borrowing member coun
tries and the distribution of economic activity in the
Region, the Bankoperateswith high single-borrower
concentration. In addition, the Bank stands ready to
support the Region during a down-turn, i.e., continu
ing lending during a regional crisis.

Therefore, the Bank shall establish regulations, poli
cies,guidelines, and related initiatives, including the
definition of appropriate capital buffers, to maintain
its firm financial footing and ensure a long-term for
eign-currency credit rating of triple-A (or equivalent)
level, with all major credit rating agencies. These
regulations,policies,guidelines,and related initiatives
shall adhere to international best practices for finan
cial risk management, in particular those adopted by
similarly rated regional and multilateral development
financial institutions. The Bank shall maintain its

commitment under the 9th General Capital Increase
to provide preferential support to small and vulnera
ble countries in Latin America and the Caribbean."

The CAP allows the Bank to measure the inherent risk

in its loan portfolio due to the credit quality of its borrowers
and the concentration of its loans. Specific risk limits in terms
of capital requirements for investments and derivatives are
included that enables Management to design more efficient
fundingand investment strategies following the risk tolerance
established by the Board of Executive Directors.

Income Management Model: The Bank's IMM establishes the
rules for: i) capital azcumulation consistent with the Bank's
capital adequacy policy;and, ii) minimum levelof loan charges
on sovereign-guaranteed loans, which requires that, at a mini
mum, the income from loan charges for sovereign-guaranteed
loans, plus 90%of the loan charge income from the Bank's NSG
operations, be sufficient to cover 90% of the Ordinary Capital's
administrative expenses on a three-year rolling basis. As such,
it relates annual decisions on the uses of Ordinary Capital in
come with the trade-offs associated with the inter-relations of

various parameters, sjch as: the level of loan charges; the an
nual lending capacity and disbursement programs; the annual
level of administrativt: expense budget; and annual transfers of
income. The IMM provides the Board of the Executive Direc
tors and Managemen- with a methodology to review these pa
rameters in an integrated and simultaneous fashion.

Non-performing Loans: Except for NSG loans, loan service
delays by a borrower in a member country preclude new loan
approvals to borrowers in the member country, may lead to the
suspension of loan disbursements, may result in the loan being
placed in non-accrual status, and may cause the loan to be de
clared due and payable. The Bank exercises its policy under a
graduated approach as summarized in Table 18.

If loans made to a member country funded with resources
of the FSOor certain other funds owned or administered by the
Bankarenon-performing,allloansmade to or guaranteedbythat
member government are also considered non-performing. The
Bank maintains a continuous dialogue with its borrowers to en
sure prompt payment on all of its loans.

In the case of NSG loans, the Credit Risk Committee,

chaired by the Chief Risk Officer, determines when the loan is
classified in non-accrual status, which can happen anytime be
tween30and 90 daysof being overdue,or earlierwhen Manage
ment has doubts of it; future collectibility.

Loanand Guarantee LossAllowances: In the Bank's57 years of
history, the Bank ha.1 had an essentially fully performing sover
eign-guaranteed loan portfolio and has collected the full princi
pal and interest due on all its sovereign-guaranteed loans, with
only fiveborrowing countries having been placed in non-accrual
status for varying times during 1988—2001. The maximum ag
gregate balance in non-accrual has never exceeded 8% of total
loans outstanding. Eecause of the nature of its borrowers and
guarantors, the Bank expects that each of its Ordinary Capital
sovereign-guaranteed loans will be repaid. Table 19 displays in
formation related to the countries, the periods of time, and the
maximum amounts of Ordinary Capital sovereign-guaranteed
loans that havebeen placedin non-accrualstatus throughout the
Bank's history.

The Bank maintains allowances for loan and guarantee
losses to recognize the probable losses inherent in its loan and
guarantee portfolios, primarily related to NSG operations. At
December 31, 2016, the Bank has NSG loans classified as im

paired for $494 million (2015—$466 million). A provision for
loan and guarantee1assesof $142million was recognized during
2016 (2015—$73 million). Total allowances of $535 million were
maintained at December 31, 2016 (2015—$446 million). The
NSG allowances for loan and guarantee losses were 8.8% of the
corresponding combined outstanding portfolios at December 31,
2016 (2015—7.2%).

For the sovereign-guaranteed loan portfolio, the Bank deter
mines the nature and extent of its exposure to credit risk by con
sidering the long-term foreign currency credit rating assigned to
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Table 18: TREATMENT OF NON-PERFORMING SOVEREIGN-GUARANTEED LOANS

30 daysafterloan due date The Bank suspends disbursements on the loan in arrears and all other loans to the borrower.The Bank in
forms the guarantor of the arrears by the borrower and requests prompt payment of the amountin arrears.
No loan contract witha borrower in thecountry in question is signed by the Bank andno loan proposal is
approved.

120daysafterloan due date The Banksuspends disbursements on allloans to theguarantor if the guarantor fails to paytheamounts due.

180daysafter loandue date The Bank places in non-accrual statusall loans for the country in question of which the government, the
central bank or anygovernment entity is a borrower or guarantor, unlessit is determinedthat all payments
of amounts in arrears arein process and will be collectedin the immediate future. Placement in non-accrual
status impliesa reversal of allaccruedincome to dateand no further income accumulationuntil all pending
amounts arereceived All Bank missions to the country intended for programming,preparing or processing
of loansaresuspended.

Table 19: HISTORICAL DATA OF COUNTRIES

IN NON-ACCRUAL STATUS

As ofDecember 31,2016
(Amounts expressed inmillions ofUnited States dollars)

Maximum

In Non- Out ofNon- Outstanding
Country Accrual Accrual'" Days Loan Balances,2>

Panama. 29-Mar-88 18-Mar-92 1.450 $ 320

Nicaragua ll-May-88 17-Sep-91 1,224 78

Peru. l-Mar-89 17-Sep-91 930 674

Honduras. 4-Dec-89 6-IuI-90 214 223

Suriname. 10-Nov-92 23-Dec-92 43 12

Suriname. 9-Nov-93 14-Feb-94 97 13

Suriname 13-Dec-00 6-Jun-01 175 27

"> Repayment dates.
<2> Maximumoutstanding loanbalanceasof any given year-end duringthe period

the countrywas in non-accrual.

each borrower country by S&P, adjusted bythe probabilities of
default to the Bank.

For the NSGloan portfolio, the Bank manages and mea
sures credit riskusing acredit riskclassification system thattakes
into consideration the risk of the borrower, the associatedsecurity
or features of the transaction and the country related risk.The
Bank's creditriskclassification system mapsits ratingscale, on a
one to onebasis, to that ofthe foreign currencyS&P creditrating.
Italso separates theborrower riskrating from thetransaction risk
rating to provide transparency of the different risk factors that
determine the final ratingscoreand produces the incurred loss
associated with the transaction.

Commercial CreditRisk: Commercial credit risk is the expo
sure to losses that could result from the default of one of the
Bank's investment, tradingor swap counterparties. The main
sources of commercial credit risk are the financial instruments
in which the Bank invests its liquidity. In accordance with its
conservative risk policies, the Bank will only invest in high
quality debtinstruments issued bygovernments, agencies, mul-
tilaterals, banks,and corporateentities, including asset-backed
andmortgage-backed securities. TheBank's process forcontrol
ling itscommercial credit risk includes: a)specifying authorized
investments; b) establishing approved listsof acceptable coun
terparties, issuers, and dealers; c) defining acceptable credit
rating limits; andd) specifying exposure limits and termlimits
for acceptable counterparties, issuers, and dealers based on
their size and creditworthiness.

As part of its regular investment, funding, and asset and
liability managementactivities, the Bankusesderivative instru
ments, substantially swaps, primarily for economic hedging
purposes.The use of derivatives is limitedto authorizeddealers
and counterparties selected on the basis of conservative risk
managementpolicies.The Bankhas establishedexposurelimits
for each derivative counterparty and has entered into master
derivativeagreements that contain enforceabledoseout netting
provisions. Theseagreements also providefor collateralization
in the event that the mark-to-market exposure exceedscertain
contractual thresholds. Counterparty exposure against estab
lished limits are calculated and monitored on the basis of po
tentialcreditexposures modeledthrough the lifeof eachcoun
terparty's portfolio. Simulation is used to model the complex
interactions of market risk factors, the dynamics of the portfo
lio,and the impactof risk mitigation mechanisms such as col
lateral thresholds and termination triggers, to estimate the po
tential credit exposure. Monitoring the Bank's exposures and
managing such risksare continuous processes. The Bankdoes
not expect nonperformance byanyof its swapcounterparties.

The Bank considers current credit exposure as the re
placement cost of the relevant derivative instrument. This is
also referred to as replacement risk or the mark-to-market ex
posure amount. Mark-to-market exposure is a measure, at a
point in time, of the value of a derivative contract in the open
market. When the mark-to-market is positive, it indicates that
the counterparty owes the Bank and, therefore, creates a credit
exposure for the Bank. When the mark-to-market is negative,
the Bankowesthe counterpartyand does not havereplacement
risk. The Bank's derivatives are subject to enforceable master
netting agreements. Whenthe Bank hasmore thanonederiva
tive transaction outstanding witha derivative counterparty, the
"net" mark-to-market exposure represents the netting of the
positive andnegative exposures with thesame counterparty. If
this net mark-to-market is negative, the Bank's exposure to the
counterpartyis consideredto be zero.

Table20 provides details of the estimated current credit
exposure on the Bank's investment and swap portfolios, netof
collateral, bycounterparty rating category. AsofDecember 31,
2016, the credit exposure amounted to $27,480 million, com
pared to $28,050 million as of December 31, 2015. The credit
quality of the portfolios continues to be high, as 78.6% of the
counterparties are rated AAA and AA, 9.5% carry the highest
short-term ratings (A1+), 10.9% are rated A, 0.2% are rated
BBB, and 0.8% are rated below BBB at December 31, 2016,
compared to 82.5%, 7.8%, 8.8%, 0.1% and 0.8%, respectively, in
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2015. Excluding collateral, the current credit exposure from
swaps decreased from $600 million at December 31, 2015 to
$272 million at December 31, 2016.This swap credit exposure
is offsetby collateral (U.S. Treasuries or cash) of $209 million
(2015—$549 million),resulting in an uncollateralized swapex
posure of $63 million at December 31,2016, compared to $51
million in 2015.The Bank also has excess collateral amounting
to $119 million (2015—$156 million) from swap counterpar
ties.

As of December 31, 2016, the Bank's total current credit
exposure in Europe was $13,299 million (2015—$13,385 mil
lion).There wasno directexposureto the three Eurozonecoun
tries rated BBB or lower in 2016 or 2015. In these countries, the
Bank had $145 million (2015—$171 million) of exposure in
asset-backed andmortgage-backed securities, whichwasgener
allyrated higherthan the sovereigns, andno net swapexposure
in 2016or 2015. The remaining European current creditexpo
sure of $13,154 million (2015—$13,214 million), regardless of
assetclass, was in countries rated AA- or higher.

Table 20: CURRENT CREDIT EXPOSURE, NET OF COLLATERAL HELD, BY COUNTERPARTY RATING CATEGORY*"

(Amounts expressed in millions ofUnited States dollars)
December 31,2016

Counterparty rating

A1+

AAA

AA

A

BBB

BB

B

CCC

CC and below.

Total

Governments

and Agencies

$ 2,493

8,577

7,017

1326

50

178

$ 19,841

Investments

Banks Corporates

750

4,759

1,372

$6,881

$ 110

134

246

$ 490

ABSand

MBS

•10

74

73

17

17

14

$205

Net Swap
Exposure

49

14

$ 63

Total

Exposure on
Investments

and Swaps
$ 2,603

9,471

12,145

2,985

67

195

14

$ 27,480

%of

Total

9.5

34.5

44.1

10.9

0.2

0.7

0.0

0.0

0.1

100.0

December 31,2015
Investments Total

Exposure onGovernments ^ ^ ABSand Net Swap T^^nts *°\
Counterparty rating and Agencies r MBS Exposure and Swaps TotaI
A1+ $ 2,179 $ - $ - $ - $ '- $ 2,179 7J"
AAA 10,537 598 - 17 - 11,152 39.7

AA 8,266 3,533 55 98 49 12,001 42.8

A 1,483 892 - 90 1 2,466 8.8

BBB 23 1 24 0.1

BB 195 17 - 212 0.7

B- ..... - 0.0

ccc ..... - 0.0

CC and below. - - - 16 - 16 0.1
Total $ 22,660 $5,023 $ 55 $261 $ 51 $ 28,050 100.0

(1) Letter ratings refer tothe average ratings from major rating agencies and tothe entire range inthat rating category including numeric (Le. 1-3),
symbolic (i.e. +/-), orsimilar qualifications used byeligible rating agencies. The group A1+refers tothehighest short-term ratings.

Market Risk teristics of itsdebt with theassets it is funding. The Bank uti-
TheBank faces risks that result from market movements, pri- hzes derivatives to manage the modified duration of itsequity
marily changes in interest andexchange rates, which are miti- within adefined policy band. Inaddition, the Bank's policy for
gated through its integrated asset and liability management asset/liability management, among others, provides rules for
framework. the active management of equity duration and for limiting the

amounts of debt redemptions within any 12-month period. As
Asset and Liability Management: The objective of asset and ofDecember 31,2016, asset/liability management swaps with a
liability management is to manage the currency composition, notiond amount of$1,930 million (2015-$2,386 million) were
maturity profile and interest rate sensitivity characteristics of outstanding to maintain the equity duration within policy lim-
the portfolio of assets and liabilities in accordance with the
prescribed risk parameters. The Bank employs derivatives to
manage its asset and liability exposures byaligning the charac- Interest Rate Risk The Bank is exposed to two potential

sources of interest rate risk. The first is theexposure to changes
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in the net spread between the rate earned on assetsand the cost
ofborrowings that fundthose assets. Thesecond istheexposure
to changes in the income earned on the portion of the assets
funded with equity.

The Bank mitigates its exposure to net spread changes
through either a cost pass-through formulation, calculated on
an actual or estimated basis, incorporated in the lending rates
charged, or hedges of related interest rate exposures. The cost
pass-through loans account for93% of theexisting outstanding
loan portfolio as of December 31, 2016; the remaining 7% are
substantially NSG loansand fixed-rate loans. Asmallportionof
the costpass-through loans (i.e., the adjustable rate loans) pose
some residual interestrate riskgiventhe six-monthlaginherent
in the lending rate calculation. Additionally, the Bankfunds and
invests its liquidity at matching rate structures using specific
duration gap constraints, thus avoiding any undue exposure to
interest rate risk.

The Bank mitigates its exposure to equity-induced in
come changes by managing the duration of its equity within a
band of four to six years through a combination of assigning
equity to fund certain (mostly fixed rate) assets and interest rate
swaps that are specifically issued for this purpose. While
changes in interest rates will, over the long term, result in cor
responding changes in the return on equity, the effect on a sin
gle year is relatively small. This is due to the fact that equity is
mostly funding fixed rate assetsand the interest rate exposure
on debt-funded assets is mostly passed through to the borrow
ers or hedgedthrough the use of derivative instruments.

Investment Market Risk: Investment market risk is measured

and monitored by applying quantitative techniques including
Value at Risk (VaR), stress testing, scenario analysis and dura

tion metrics. The Bankestimates VaR for a one year time hori
zon using Monte Carlo simulation. The historical data inputs
used to simulate relevant risk factors (such as interest rates,
credit spreads,and others) includeperiods of significant finan
cial stress. VaR measures are complemented by stress tests de
signed to quantify the impact of severe, unexpected market
movements on the portfolio. The Bankconducts regular stress
testing on its investment portfolio to ensure liquidity under a
variety of adverse scenarios.

Exchange Rate Risk: In order to minimizeexchange rate risk
in a multicurrency environment,the Bankfunds itsassetsin any
one currency with, on an after-swap basis, borrowing obliga
tions in the same currency, as prescribed by the Agreement. In
addition, the Bank maintains virtuallyall of its equity and eq
uity-funded assets in United Statesdollars.

Figure 10 presents the currency composition of the
Bank's assets and liabilities(after swaps) at the end of 2016and
2015.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises from the general funding needs of the
Bank'sactivities and in the management of its assets and liabili
ties. It includes the risk of being unable to fund the portfolio of
assetsat appropriate maturities and rates (funding risk); the risk
of being unable to liquidate a position in a timely manner at a
reasonable price (liquidation risk); and the exacerbation of
these two risks by having significant portions of a portfolio of
assets or liabilities allocated to a specific type of instrument
(concentration risk).

The Bank manages liquidity risk through its liquidity
policy, asset/liability management policy and its short-term

Figure 10: CURRENCY COMPOSITION OF ASSETS & LIABILITIES
December 31,2016 and 2015
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borrowing program. The Bank's liquidity policy determines a
minimumamount of liquiditywhich is designed to allow the
Bankto refrainfromborrowing for a period of timewhilecon
tinuing to meetitsownobligations. Theasset andliability man
agement policy of the Bank, in addition to optimizing theallo
cation ofequityanddebtto fundthe Bank's various assets, limits
the amountsof debt refinancing withina given period.Finally,
under the short-termborrowing program, discountnoteswith
maturitiesof lessthan one yearare issuedto manageshort-term
cash flow needs.

Retirement Plan Risk

Retirement plan risk representsthe exposureresultingfromthe
Bank's obligation to fund anychanges in the shortfallof itspen
sion and postretirement benefit plan (Plans) obligations. Be
causethe risk and return characteristicsof pension assetsdo not
match those of its liabilities, the Bank's equity is exposed to
volatilityin the Plans' funded status. The main risk measureby
the Bank related to its Plans is their active risk, which is the
volatilityof the difference in performance of the Plans' assets
and liabilities.

Changesin the valueof the Plans' liabilities are driven by
two factors, the first of which has a greater impact in terms of
volatilityand magnitude:(i) changesin the market interest rates
of high-grade, long-term U.S. corporate bonds, which are used
to discount the stream of pension liabilities cash flows and (ii)
changes in the Plans'demographics, experience, and manage
ment'sbest estimatesof future benefit changes. Changesin die
Plans' assets are also driven by: (i) fluctuations in the market
valueof the Plan's ReturnStrategies assets, whichincludedevel
oped and emerging markets equities, high yieldand emerging
markets bonds, realestate andcommodities; and (ii)changes in
interest rates, which impact the values of the Plans' Liabilities
Strategies assets, whichare invested in core,long durationand
inflation-indexed fixed income instruments.

Because 65% of the Plans' assets are invested in Return

Strategies, whose values are influenced by factors other than
interest rates, thePlans' assets aremuch less sensitive tochanges
in long-term interest rates than are the Plans' liabilities, result
ing in active risk. Underits CAP, the Bankdetermines specific
capitalrequirements for the activerisk in its Plans.

TheRisk Appetite forthe Retirement Plans, as approved
by the Boardof Executive Directors, is comprised of two risk
metrics. These metrics address the Plans' long-term financial
sustainability, and the short-term volatility of the Plansin the
Bank's financial statements. As of December 31, 2016, both
metricswerewithin their respective policylimits.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk arising from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people's actions, systems, or from external
events, that can cause financial losses, financial reporting mis
statements, and/or resultin reputational damage. Thesefailures
may be incurred while executingprocesses to meet the Bank's
objectives as operational risk is inherent in all operationsand
processes.

TheBankhaspolicies and procedures in place to mitigate
different aspects of operational risk, including the Bank's high
standardsof business ethicsand its established system of inter
nal controls. Theseare supplemented by the Bank's disaster re
covery/contingencyplanning, the Information DisclosurePol
icy, client and project integrity due diligence procedures, the
proceduresfor riskmanagementand fiduciaryarrangements in

projects, andprocurement andpurchasing policies, among oth
ers.

The Bank's Operational RiskManagement and the Inter
nal Control over Financial Reporting (ICFR) functions report
to the Chief RiskOfficer. The Bank continues to implement its
integrated Operational Risk Management Framework (ORMF),
which includes conducting the risk and control assessments,
identifying keyrisk indicators, as well as providing training to
the business units, in order to enhance its operational risks
management.

InternalControlsover Financial Reporting: The Bank follows
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) Internal Control-Integrated Framework
(the COSO Framework) for its financial reporting controls.
Managementhas establishedan annual process to report on the
effectiveness of the ICFR, while the external auditors also per
form an annual audit and issuean opinion as to the effectiveness
of the ICFR.

The Management report and externalauditors' report on
internal control over financial reporting for 2016are included
in the financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT AND OTHER
DEVELOPMENTS

Proposal for transfer of net assets from the Fund for Special
Operations (FSO) to the Bank
As part of the mandate from the G-20 proposing that MDBs
optimize their respective balance sheets, on September 1, 2016
the Bank's Board of Governors unanimously approved a pro
posal to transfer all assets and liabilities of the FSO to the Bank,
effective January 1,2017. Suchtransfer would ensure the Bank's
ability to continue to provide resources to its least developed
borrowing member countries at concessional terms, and would
result in approximately $5.2 billion of additional equity, thus
strengtheningthe Banksfinancial position.

Starting on January 1, 2017, the FSO will discontinue
financing new loans. Going forward, concessional lending
will beprovided bytheblending ofloans at regular SG spread
andloans atconcessional spreads, bothfunded from Ordinary
Capital resources.

The transfer of assets does not involve an increase
in Ordinary Capital shares, or subscriptions by member
countries. It isaccountedasan equitytransferbetweenrelated
parties, and the difference between FSO assets and liabilities
will be recognized as Additional Paid-in Capital of the
OrdinaryCapital withno impacton the nominalvalues of its
existing capitalstockor votingrights.

ADDITIONAL REPORTING AND DISCLO
SURE

BasisofReporting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
GAAP, whichrequire Management to make estimates and as
sumptions that affect the reported results (see Note B to the fi
nancial statements).

Critical Accounting policies
TheBank believes that the relevant significant accounting poli-
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ciesdiscussedbelow, used to present its financial results in ac
cordance with GAAP, may involve a high degree of judgment
andcomplexity and relate to matters thatareinherently uncer
tain.

FairValueofFinancialInstruments: The Bank uses fair value
measurements to accountfor the trading investments portfolio,
borrowings elected under the fair valueoption and all deriva
tives (mostlyinterest and currency swaps), and for disclosures
offinancial instruments. Fairvalues arebasedonquotedmarket
prices when they are available. Otherwise, fair valuesare based
on prices from external pricingservices, where available, solic
itedbroker/dealer pricesor pricesderivedfromalternative pric
ing models, utilizing discounted cash flows. Pricing models
generally use inputs from market sources such as interest rate
yield curves, currency exchange rates and option volatilities.
Theseinputshavea significant effect on the reportedfairvalues
of assets and liabilitiesand related income and expenses.Man
agement believes its measurements of fair value are reasonable
given its processes for obtaining and prioritizing observable
inputs (i.e. external prices and parameters) and the consistent
applicationof this approach from period to period.

The Bank refers to the periodic cash payment or cash re
ceipt to/from the counterparty pursuant to the provision of the
derivative contract as the "interest component." The interest
component for derivatives related to the economichedgingof
our investment securities is presented in Income from Invest
ments-Interest in the Statement of Income and Retained Earn

ings. The change in fair value of the investment securities and
related derivativesare presented in Income from Investments-
Netgains (losses). The interest component for lendingrelated
derivatives is included with Income from loans. The interest
component for borrowing derivatives and equityduration de
rivatives are recordedin Borrowing expenses, and Other inter
est income, respectively. The changes in fair value of lending
borrowing and equity duration derivatives are reported in Net
fair value adjustments on non-trading portfolios and foreign
currencytransactions. SeeNoteS to the financial statements.

Allowancefor LoanandGuarantee Losses: The Bankmaintains
allowances for losses on its loan and guarantee portfolios at
levels Management believes to be adequate to absorb estimated
losses inherent in the total portfolio at the balance sheetdate.
Setting thelevel oftheallowances requires significant judgment.
The use of differentestimatesor assumptionsas wellas changes
in external factors couldproducematerially different provisions
and allowance levels. Because of the nature of its borrowers and
guarantors, the Bankexpects that eachof its sovereign-guaran
teedloanswill be repaid. Accordingly, the level of its allowance
for loan and guarantee losses is relatively smalland mainly re
lated to the NSGloan and guaranteeportfolios.

Pension and Other PostretirementBenefits: The Bank partici
pates along withthe IICin pension and postretirement benefit
plans that cover substantially all of their staffmembers. All
costs,assetsand liabilitiesassociatedwith the plansare allocated
betweenthe Bankand the IIC based upon their employees' re
spective participation in the plans.Costsallocated to the Bank
are subsequently sharedbetween the Ordinary Capital and the
FSObased on an allocation percentage approved by the Board
of Governors. The underlying actuarial assumptions used to
determine the projected benefit obligations and the funded
status associatedwith these plans are based on financialmarket
interest rates, past experience,and Management's best estimate

offuturebenefitchangesand economicconditions.Forfurther
details, refer to Note T to the financial statements.

ADMINISTRATION AND GOVERNANCE OF
THE BANK

The Board of Governors

All the powers of the Bank are vested in the Board of Gover
nors, which consists of one Governor and one Alternate Gov
ernor appointed by each member country. The Governor or
Alternate Governor from each member country exercisesthe
voting power to which that member country is entitled, each
membercountryhaving135votesplusonevoteforeachvoting
share of the Bank's Ordinary Capital stock subscribedby that
member.The Agreement,as amended, provides that subscrip
tions to the capital stock will not become effective if the result
would be to reduce the voting power of (i) the regional devel
oping countries below 50.005%; (ii) the United States below
30%; or (iii) Canada below 4% of the total voting power.This
permits non-regional members to havea voting power of up to
15.995%, including approximately 5% for Japan. A fist of the
membersat December31,2016, showingthe voting power and
the number of shares subscribed by each member, is set forth
in the Schedule of Subscriptions to Capital Stock and Voting
Power (see Schedule 1-6to the financial statements). The Board
of Governors holds regular annual meetings.

The Board of Executive Directors

The Board of Executive Directors consists of 14 Directors: one

appointed by the United States, one elected by the
Governor for Canada, three elected by the Governors for the
non-regional member countries, and the remaining nine
elected bythe Governors for the borrowing membercountries.
Each Executive Director appoints an Alternate ExecutiveDi
rector who has full power to act for the Executive Director
when he or she is not present.Executive Directors serve full-
time, generallyfor three years.

The Board of Governors has delegated to the Board of
Executive Directors all its powers except certain powers re
served to the Governors under the Agreement.Each Executive
Director is entitled to cast the number of votes of the member
countrywhichappointed him or her,or, ifelected, the number
ofvotes that counted toward the election. All matters before the
Board of Governors and the Board of Executive Directors are
decided by a majority of the total voting power of the Bank,
except in certaincases provided in the Agreement that require
a higher percentage.

Therearesixstandingcommittees of the BoardofExecu
tiveDirectors: the Audit Committee;the Budgetand Financial
Policies Committee; the Organization, Human Resources and
BoardMattersCommittee; the Policyand EvaluationCommit
tee; the Programming Committee; and the Steering Commit
tee.

The Boardof Executive Directors, including its Commit
tees, functions in continuous session at the principal officesof
the Bankand meets as often as business requires. Unlessother
wisedecidedby the Board,the Committeesdo not vote on is
sues before their consideration but rather make, when appro
priate, recommendations to the Boardof Executive Directors.

The following is a list of the Executive Directors, the
member countries by which they were appointed or elected
and the Alternates appointed by the Executive Directorsas of
the date of this Information Statement:
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Executive Directors Alternates Member Countries

Stefania Antonella

Bazzoni

(Italy)

Marlene

Olivia L. Beco

(Belgium)

Belgium, China,
Germany,Israel,Italy,
The Netherlands and

Switzerland

MarceloBisogno
(Uruguay)

Hugo Rafael
Caceres Aguero
(Paraguay)

Bolivia, Paraguayand
Uruguay

JerryChristopher
Butler

(The Bahamas)

Cheryl Anita
Morris-Skeete

(Barbados)

The Bahamas, Barbados,
Guyana, Jamaica and
Trinidad and Tobago

Joffrey Roger
Celestin-Urbain

(France)

MariaRodriguez
de la Rua

(Spain)

Austria, Denmark,
Finland, France,Norway,
Spainand Sweden

SergioDiaz-
Granados Guida

Xavier Eduardo

Santillan

Colombia and Ecuador

(Colombia) (Ecuador)

Armando Josi
Leon Rojas
(Venezuela)

Fernando Ernesto

de Le6n de Alba

(Panama)

Panama and Venezuela

Mark Edward Lopes * United States
(United States) (United States)

Juan Bosco Marti
Ascencio

(Mexico)

Carlos Augusto
Pared Vidal

(Dominican
Republic)

Dominican Republicand
Mexico

Patricia Maria

Miloslavich Hart
(Peru)

Raul Horacio Novoa

(Argentina)

Kevin Cowan

Logan
(Chile)
»

Chile and Peru

Argentina and Haiti

Antdnio Henrique
Pinheiro Silveira
(Brazil)

FredericoGonzaga
Jayme Junior
(Brazil)

Brazil and Suriname

GuillermoEnrique
Rishchynski
(Canada)

Ian Christopher
MacDonald

(Canada)

Canada

Marlon Ramsses

Tabora Munoz

(Honduras)

Jose Mauricio Silva
(El Salvador)

Belize, Costa Rica, El
Salvador, Guatemala,
Hondurasand Nicaragua

Toshiyuki Yasui
(Japan)

Tom Matthew

Crowards
(United Kingdom)

Croatia,Japan,Portugal,
the Republicof Korea,
Slovenia and United

Kingdom

Vacant

Audit Committee of the Board of Executive Directors: The
primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to assist
the Boardof Executive Directors in overseeing the Bank's (i)
financial reporting, (ii) risk managementand internal control
processes, (iii) internal and external audit functions, (iv) com
municationwith and betweenthe ExternalAuditors, Manage
ment, the office of the Executive Auditor, the office of Institu
tional Integrity, and others responsible for risk management
and for administeringthe Bank's sanctionsprocedures, and the

Board, (v)activities in promotinginstitutional integrity, includ
ing with regard to matters involving fraud and corruption
practices, and the fiduciary aspects of the Bank's policies and
activities. The Committeehas responsibility for reviewing the
performance of and recommending to the Boardof Executive
Directors (which, in turn, recommends to the Board of Gover
nors) the appointment of the externalauditor, as well as moni
toringtheexternal auditor's independence. TheCommittee also
participates in the oversight of the internal audit function, in
cludingreviewing responsibilities, staffing, the annual internal
audit plan and the effectiveness of the internal control audit
function. The Audit Committee, which includes all the mem
bers of the Boardof Executive Directors,meets regularlyand as
circumstances dictate, and may meet periodicallyin executive
sessionswith the Bank's Managementand the externalauditors.
The Audit Committee may obtain advice and assistance from
outside advisors as deemed appropriate to perform its duties
and responsibilities.

Office ofEvaluation and Oversight: The Office of Evaluation
and Oversight, whichreportsdirectlyto the Boardof Executive
Directors, undertakes independent and systematic evaluations
of the Bank's strategies, policies, programs, activities, delivery
support functions andsystems, anddisseminates thefindings of
such evaluations so that recommendations for improvement
can be used in new operations.The Office of Evaluation and
Oversight alsoprovides oversight and support for the enhance
mentof the effectiveness of the Bank's evaluation system.

Principal Officers: The President is elected by the Board of
Governors and is the institution's chief executive officer. Under
the direction ofthe Board of Executive Directors, the President
conducts the ordinary business of the Bank, assisted by the
Executive Vice President and three Vice Presidents. The Presi
dentalso serves asthepresiding officer at meetings oftheBoard
ofExecutive Directors, andhasnovoteatsuchmeetings, except
when his vote is needed to break a tie.

The Executive Vice President is elected by the Boardof
Executive Directors and functions as the chiefoperatingofficer,
supervising the three Vice Presidents and the senior staff.
Under the direction of the Board ofExecutive Directors and the
President, theExecutive Vice President exercises such authority
and performs such functions in the administration of the Bank
as maybe determinedby the Boardof Executive Directorsand,
in the absence or incapacity of the President, exercises the au
thority and performs the functions of the President

The Vice President for Countries, the Vice President for
Sectorsand Knowledge, and the VicePresident for Financeand
Administration, areappointedbythe BoardofExecutive Direc
tors on the recommendation of the President of the Bank, and
report to the Executive Vice President. Under the direction of
the Board of Executive Directors, the President and the Execu
tive Vice President, theVice Presidents undertake thefollowing
responsibilities:
• TheVice President forCountries, the third ranking Bank

official in orderof precedence, is responsible for leading
the dialogueand relationshipof the Bankwith all26 bor
rowing member countries, assisted by five operations
departments, and 26 country offices and the Operations
FinancialManagementand Procurement ServicesOffice.
In the absence or incapacity of the Presidentand the Ex
ecutive Vice President, the Vice President for Countries
exercises the authority and performs the functions of the
President
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» The VicePresident for Sectors and Knowledge is respon
sible for developing knowledge focusing on emerging
development challenges; developing the level of sector
knowledge of countries and regions necessary to support
member countries in the design and execution of their
development projects and for the promotion of integra
tion and trade; developing and supporting the execution
of programs and projects; disseminating andtraining on
Bank knowledgeand sector expertise to member coun
tries; and developing a demand-driven learning program
forstaff skills in support ofbusinessneeds.

» The Vice President for Finance and Administration is

responsible for mobilizing and managingthe Bank's re
sources; supportingthe Bank's operational areas through
an effectiveand efficient managementand supervision of
the Bank's financial, legal, human resources, information
technology, budget, and administrative functions; and
establishing and monitoring compliance with corporate
policiesand procedures.

The following is a list of the principalofficersof the Bank
as of the date of this Information Statement:

Luis Alberto Moreno

Julie T. Katzman

Alexandre Meira da Rosa

Santiago Levy

JaimeA. Sujoy

Jos£ Juan Ruiz Gomez

Jos6 Luis Lupo

Carola Alvarez

Gina Montiel

Therese Turner-Jones

Gina Montiel

German Quintana

John Scott

President

Executive Vice President

Vice President for Countries

Vice President for Sectors and

Knowledge

Vice President for Finance

and Administration

GeneralManager and Chief
Economist, Department
of Research and Chief

Economist

GeneralManager, Country
DepartmentSouthernCone

General Manager, Country
Department Andean Group

General Manager, Country
Department CentralAmerica,
Mexico, Panama and

Dominican Republic

GeneralManager, Country
Department Caribbean Group

General Manager, Country
Department Haiti, a.i.

Secretaryofthe Bank

General Counsel and General

Manager, LegalDepartment

Gustavo De Rosa

Luis Miguel Castilla

Yeshvanth Edwin

Claudia Bock-Valotta

Nuria Simo Vila

Brigit Helms

Luis Giorgio

Marcelo Cabrol

JoseAgustin Aguerre

Hector Salazar

Finance GeneralManager and
Chief Financial Officer

GeneralManager and Chief
Development Effectiveness
Officer, Officeof Strategic
Planningand Development
Effectiveness

General Manager, Budget
and Administrative Services

Department

GeneralManager, Human
Resources Department

General Managerand
Chief Information Officer,

Information Technology
Department

General Manager, Office of
the Multilateral Investment

Fund

Chief, Office of the Presidency

Manager, Office ofExternal
Relations

Sector Manager, Infrastructure
and Energy Sector

Sector Manager, SocialSector

Ana Maria Rodriguez-Ortiz Sector Manager, Institutions
for Development Sector

Juan Pablo Bonilla

Antoni Estevadeordal

Federico Basanes

Bernardo Guillamon

Federico Galizia

Maristella Aldana

Jorge da Silva

Sector Manager, Climate
Changeand Sustainable
Development Sector

Sector Manager, Integration
and Trade Sector

Sector Manager, Knowledge
and Learning Sector

Manager, Officeof Outreach
and Partnerships

Chief Risk Officer, Office of

Risk Management

Chief, Office of Institutional

Integrity

Executive Auditor

Cheryl W. Gray is the Director of the Office of Evaluation and
Oversight.
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Ethical Matters

The Bank fosters an ethical work environment for its staffand is
committed to safeguard theactivities financed bytheBankfrom
fraud and corruption.

Codes of Ethics: The Bankrequireshighly qualified, dedicated
and motivatedemployees to maintain the highest standards of
integrity. Toassistin preserving suchinstitutional standards, the
Bank has in place a Code of Ethics and Professional Conduct
that appliesto all employees. This Code, which is available on
the Bank's website:
http://idbdocs.iadb.org/wsdocs/getdocument.aspx?docnum=37198737.
contains guidelines concerning conflicts of interest, useof Bank
information,and an employee's financialand businessinterests,
among other matters.

The Bankalso has a separateCode of Conduct applicable
to the Executive Directors. This Code, which is also available on
the Bank's website:

http://kp.iadb.org/lawlib/en/Pages/Documentos-BID.aspx sets
forth guidingprinciplescomparableto those governingemploy
ees adapted to the unique role of Executive Directors.

The Bankhas also an EthicsOfficerfor oversight of ethic
matters for Bank employees, and a Board Conduct Committee
for matters concerning Executive Directors.

OfficeofInstitutional Integrity: The Office of Institutional In
tegrity (Oil), an independent unit reporting to the President
wasestablished to promoteinstitutional integrity. The Oil com
plies with its mandatethrough the detection and investigation
of fraud, corruption and misconductand the support of initia
tives for their prevention. Allegations of corrupt or fraudulent
activities involving Bank-financed activities or Bankstaff may
be reportedto the OHin person,bytelephone, e-mail,facsimile,
regular mail, or through the allegations forms available on the
Bank's website: www.iadb.org/oii. Suchallegations maybe made
confidentially or anonymously.

External Auditors

General: The external auditorsare appointedby the Boardof
Governors. In March 2012,the Boardof Governorsappointed
KPMG LLP (KPMG) as the External Auditors of the Bank for
thefive-year period2012-2016, following a competitive bidding
process. The Board of Governors reappointed KPMG as the
Bank's External Auditor fora second five-year term,covering
the fiscal years2017 through2021.

Contracted fees forauditservices provided to the Bank by
KPMG in connection with the 2016 financial statement and

internal control audits amount to $1,225,000. In addition,
KPMG was paid $62,000 during 2016 for services related to
bond issuances. KPMG also provides audit services to trust
funds administered by the Bank and to the Bank's staff retire
ment plans, for which contracted fees related to the 2016audits
are $632,000.

ExternalAuditors' Independence: The Audit Committee is re
sponsible for, amongother matters, assisting the Board of Ex
ecutiveDirectors in overseeingthe external audit function, in
cludingensuringexternalauditors' independence.

The Agreement Establishing the Bank
The Agreementsets forth the Bank'spurpose and functions,and
its capital structure and organization. The Agreement outlines
the operations in which the Bank may engage and prescribes

limitations on theseoperations. The Agreement alsoestablishes
the status, immunities and privileges of the Bank and provides
for the disposition of the currencies available to the Bank, the
withdrawal andsuspension ofmembers and the suspensionand
termination of the Bank's operations.

TheAgreement provides that it maybe amendedonlyby
decision of the Board of Governors by a majority of the total
number of Governors,includingtwo-thirds of the Governors of
regional members, representing not less than three-fourths of
the total voting power of the member countries. The unani
mous agreement of the Board of Governors is required for the
approval of any amendment modifyingthe right to withdraw
from the Bank, the right to purchasecapitalstock of the Bank
and to contributeto the FSO, and the limitationon liability. The
Agreement provides that any question of interpretation of its
provisions arisingbetweenanymemberand the Bankor among
members of the Bank shall be submitted to the Board of Execu

tiveDirectorsfor decision. Such decisionmay then be submit
ted to the Board of Governors, whose decision shall be final.
Althoughanymembermaywithdrawfromthe Bankbydeliver
ing written notice of its intention to do so, any such member
remains liable for all direct and contingent obligations to the
Banktowhichitwassubject at the dateofdelivery ofthe notice.

Copies of the Agreement are available for inspection and
distribution at the Bank's office in Washington, D.C. The full
text of the Agreement is also available on the Bank's website at
www.iadb.org/leg/Documents/Pdf/Convenio-Eng.pdf.

LegalStatus,Immunities and Privileges
The following is a summaryof the principal provisions of the
Agreement relating to the legal status, immunities and privi
legesof the Bank in the territories of its members.

The Bankpossesses juridical personality and has fullca
pacity to contract, to acquire and dispose of immovable and
movable property, and to institute legal proceedings. Actions
may bebrought against the Bank onlyin a courtofcompetent
jurisdiction in the territories of a member in which the Bank
hasan office, hasappointed anagent forthepurpose ofaccept
ing service or notice of process, or has issued or guaranteed
debt securities. No action shall bebrought against the Bank by
members or persons acting for or deriving claims from mem
bers.

The property and assetsof the Bankare immune from all
forms ofseizure, attachment orexecution before thedelivery of
final judgment against the Bank. Such property andassets are
also immune from search, requisition, confiscation, expropria
tion or anyother form of takingor foreclosure by executive or
legislative action. The archivesof the Bank are inviolable. The
Governors, Executive Directors, their Alternates, officers and
employees of the Bankare immune fromlegal process with re
spect toactsperformed bythemin theirofficial capacity, except
when the Bank waives this immunity.

TheBank, itsproperty, otherassets, income andtheop
erations and transactions it carries out pursuantto the Agree
ment are immune from all taxation and from all customs duties
in its member countries. The Bank is also immune from any
otherobligation relating to thepaymentwithholding or collec
tion of any tax or duty.

Underthe Agreement, debtsecurities issued bythe Bank
and the interest thereonarenot subject to anytaxbya member
(a) which discriminates against such debt securities solely be
cause they are issued by the Bank, or (b) if the sole jurisdic
tionalbasis forsuch taxation is the place or currencyin which
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such debt securities are issued, made payable or paid, or the
location of any office or place of business maintained by the
Bank.

FUND FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS

General

The FSOwasestablishedunder the Agreementfor the purpose
of making loans "on terms and conditions appropriate for deal
ing with special circumstances arising in specific countries or
with respect to specificprojects". The amortization periods for
loans from the FSO are longer and the interest rates lower than
for loans from the Bank'sOrdinary Capital.

Under the Agreement, while the resources of the Ordi
nary capitaland the FSO are held in separateaccounts,they are
managed independently of each other and their assetsand lia
bilities are reflected in distinct financial statements. Adminis

trative and other expenses pertaining to the operationsof the
FSOare charged to the FSO (see Note B to the financial state
ments).

In 2016, the Bank approved 20 blended loans for a total of
$1,004 million, composed of $247 million and $757 million
from the resourcesof the FSOand the Ordinary Capital,respec
tively(2015-16 loans totaling $938 million composed of $282
million and $656 million from the resources of the FSO and

Ordinary Capital, respectively). Asof December31,2016, FSO
outstanding loans amounted to $4,510 million (2015 - $4,503
million).

At December 31, 2016, the FSO's fund balance amounted
to $5,160million (2015- $5,113million), mostly resultingfrom
subscribed contribution quotas from member governments of
the Bank less debt relief provided to the poorest borrowing
member countries and Board of Governors approved transfers.

Increase in the Resources of the FSO

As part of the IDB-9,on October 31,2011, the Board of Gover
nors authorized the increase in the resources ofthe FSO consist

ing of an additional $479million of new contribution quotas to
be paid by the Bankmembers in United Statesdollars. Member
countries had the option to make contributions either in one
installment (i.e.,their share of the $479million)or in fiveequal
annual installments of their share of the undiscounted amount

of the $479 million, established at $517.3 million, starting in
2011. Instruments of contribution amounting to $473 million
were received,of which $463 million have been paid as of De
cember 31,2016.

Proposal for Transfer ofNet Assets from the FSOto the Bank
As part of the mandate from the G-20 proposing that MDBs
optimize their respectivebalance sheets, on September 1, 2016
the Bank's Board of Governors unanimously approved a pro
posal to transfer all assetsand liabilitiesof the FSOto the Bank,
effective January 1, 2017. Following the transfer of FSO re
sources to the Ordinary Capital, the FSOresourceswillbecome
part of the Ordinary Capital and be included in the Ordinary
Capital financial statements. Such transfer would ensure the
Bank'sability to continue to provide resources to its least devel
oped borrowing member countries at concessional terms, and
would result in approximately $5.2 billion of additional equity,
thus strengthening the Bank's financialposition.

Under the Agreement, the FSO will continue to exist as a
separateaccount,but with no assetsor operations.Therefore,no
subsequent financialstatements willbe issued.

INTERMEDIATE FINANCING FACILITY
ACCOUNT (IFF)

The resourcesof the IFF are used to defray a portion of the in
terest due by borrowers on certain loans approved from the
Ordinary Capital up to December 31, 2006: a maximum of up
to 3.62% per annum of the interest rate due on such loans. The
IFF is currently funded from income earned on its own invest
ments.

IDB GRANT FACILITY

In 2007, the Board of Governors approved the creation of the
GRF for the purpose of makinggrants appropriate for dealing
with special circumstances arising in specific countries (cur
rently only Haiti) or with respect to specificprojects.The GRF
is currently funded by income transfers from the Ordinary
Capital.

As part of the IDB-9, the Board of Governorsagreed,in
principleand subject to annual approvalsby the Board of Gov
ernors, to provide $200 million annually in transfers of Ordi
nary Capital income to the GRF, beginning in 2011 through
2020.No transfers took placeduring 2016(2015- $200million).
For further information, refer to Financial highlights section-
Capitalization.

Totalgrants approved for Haiti from the GRFduring 2016
amounted to $20 million (2015 - $190 million).

FUNDS UNDER ADMINISTRATION

General

In addition to its Ordinary Capital, the FSO, the IFF, and the
GRF, the Bank administers on behalfofdonors, such as member
countries, other international organizations,and other entities,
funds for purposes consistent with the Bank'sobjectivesof pro
moting economic and social development in its regional devel
oping members. These funds are mainly used to cofinanceBank
lending projects (includingguarantees), to make non-reimburs
able loans and other financings (grants), and to fund technical
assistanceactivities,including project preparation and training.

The funds under administration are held in trust sepa
rately from Bank assets. As of December 31, 2016, the Bank
administered resources on behalf of donors of approximately
$2,584million. During 2016, the Bank received$17 million for
the administration and expense reimbursements related to
these funds.

Multilateral Investment Fund II

The MIF is a fund administered by the Bank.The MIF'soverall
focus is to support equitable economic growth and provide a
sustainable means of exiting poverty by increasing access to fi
nance, basic services, and markets and capabilities.

During 2016,the MIF approved86 operations amounting
to $84 million and increased already existing operations for $3
million. As of December 31,2016, the MIF has approved opera-
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tions amounting to $1,955 million, net of cancellations, of
which a substantial amount is technical cooperation grants.
MIF operations include technical assistance, loans, equity in
vestments and guarantees.

INTER-AMERICAN INVESTMENT

CORPORATION

The activitiesof the Bankarecomplemented by those of the IIC.
The IIC is a separate international organization, with a separate
governance structure, includinga separate Boardof Governors
and Board of Executive Directors, whose 45 member countries
arealsomembers of the Bank. The purpose ofthe IIC is to pro
mote the economic development of its regional developing
member countriesby encouraging the establishment,expansion
and modernization of private enterprises, preferably those of
small and medium-sized scale.

The funds of the IIC areseparate from those of the Bank.
During 2016, the IIC approved 39 operations, which included
equity investments and loansin the aggregate amount of $442.9
million. To date, the IIC has approvedoperations amounting to
$6.4 billion. At December 31, 2016, outstanding loans totaled
$854 million and outstanding equity investments totaled $33
million.

In 1997,the Bank approveda loan to the IIC of$300 mil
lion. Disbursements under this loan are in United States dollars

and carry a LIBOR-based interest rate. As of December 31,
2016, there was $100 million outstanding and $200 million
available for disbursement. For additional information on

changes to the operationsof the IIC effective January 1, 2016,
referto Financial highlightssection IDBGroup's Activitieswith
the Private Sector.
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT REGARDING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING

March 3,2017

The Management of the Inter-American Development Bank(Bank) is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
controlover financial reporting in the Bank. Management has evaluated the internal controlover financial reportingof the Bank's
OrdinaryCapital using the criteriafor effective internalcontrolestablished in the InternalControl - Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of SponsoringOrganizationsof the Treadway Commission.

Managementhas assessedthe effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting of the Bank's Ordinary Capital as of De
cember 31, 2016. Based on this assessment Management believes that the Bank's Ordinary Capital's internal control over financial
reporting is effective as of December31,2016.

There are inherent limitationsin the effectiveness of any internalcontrolsystem, includingthe possibility of human error and the cir
cumvention or overridingof controls. Accordingly, evenan effective internal control can provideonly reasonable assurancewith re
spectto financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internalcontrolmayvaryover
time.

KPMG LLP, an independent registeredpublicaccountingfirm, has expressedan unqualifiedopinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's
Ordinary Capital'sinternal control over financial reporting as of December31,2016. In addition, the Bank'sOrdinary Capital'sfinan
cial statements,as of and for the year ended December 31,2016, havebeen audited by KPMGLLP.

Luis Alberto Moreno

President

Jaime Alberto Sujoy

Vice President for Finance and Administration

Gustavo De Rosa

Finance General Managerand CFO
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KPMG LLP

Suite 12000
1801 K Street. NW
Washington, DC 20006

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Governors

Inter-American Development Bank:

We have audited Inter-American Development Bank - Ordinary Capital's internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31,2016, based on criteria established in InternalControl-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Inter-American Development Bank-
Ordinary Capital's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's
Report Regarding the Effectiveness of Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting of the Inter-American Development Bank - Ordinary Capital based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Inter-American Development Bank - Ordinary Capital maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31,2016, based on criteria established in Internal Control- Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the balance
sheets of the Inter-American Development Bank - Ordinary Capital as of December 31,2016 and 2015, and the related
statements of income and retained earnings, comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31,2016, and our report dated March 3,2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial
statements.

K>M& U-P

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liabilitypartnership and the U S member
firm of tho KPMG network ol independent member firms affiliated wth
KPMG InternationalCooperative ("KPMG International"),a Swiss entity
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J&6B
KPMG LLP

Suite 12000

1801 K Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Governors

Inter-American Development Bank:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Inter-American Development Bank - Ordinary
Capital as of December 31,2016 and 2015, and the related statements of income and retained earnings,
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2016. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Inter-American Development Bank - Ordinary
Capital's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Inter-American Development Bank - Ordinary Capital as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31,2016 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The supplemental information contained in Schedules 1-1 through I-6 has been subjected to audit procedures
performed in conjunction with the audit of the Inter-American Development Bank - Ordinary Capital's financial
statements. The supplemental information is the responsibility of the Inter-American Development Bank -
Ordinary Capital's management. Our audit procedures included determining whether the supplemental
information reconciles to the financial statements or the underlying accounting and other records, as applicable,
and performing procedures to test the completeness and accuracy of the information presented in the
supplemental information. In our opinion, the supplemental information contained in Schedules 1-1 through I-6
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

We also have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the Inter-American Development Bank - Ordinary Capital's internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2016, based on criteria established in Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated
March 3, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Inter-American Development Bank
- Ordinary Capital's internal control over financial reporting.

k&M&r LLT>
March 3, 2017

KPMG LLP is s Delaware limited liabilitypartnership and tho U S member
firm of the KPMG network of independent mombor firms aftihatod with
KPMG International Cooperative ("KPMG International"), a Swiss entity
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ORDINARY CAPITAL

INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

BALANCE SHEET

Expressed in millions of United States dollars

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Cash - Notes C and X

Investments - Trading- NotesD,Land X,Schedule1-1
Loans outstanding - Notes E, Fand X, Schedules 1-2and 1-3.

Allowance for loan losses

Accrued interest and other charges

On investments

On loans

On swaps, net

Currency and interest rate swaps - Notes K, L, S and X

Investments- Trading - Schedule1-1
Loans

Borrowings- Schedule1-4
Other.

Other assets

Receivable for investment securities sold

Property, net - Note H
Miscellaneous - Note E

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Borrowings- Notes I, J,K,L,S and X,Schedule 1-4
Short-term

Medium- and long-term:
Measured at fair value

Measured at amortized cost

Currency and interest rate swaps - Notes K, L,S and X
Investments - Trading - Schedule 1-1
Loans

Borrowings - Schedule 1-4
Other

Payablefor investment securities purchased
Payablefor cash collateral received
Liabilitiesunder retirement benefit plans - Note T
Due to IDBGrant Facility- Note N
Accruedintereston borrowing
Undisbursedspecialprograms - Note O
Other liabilities - Note E

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock - Note P, Schedules 1-5and 1-6
Subscribed 14,170,108 shares (2015 -13,009,464 shares)....
Lesscallableportion

Paid-in capital stock.
Capital subscriptions receivable
Receivable from members - Note G

Retainedearnings- Note Q
Accumulatedother comprehensiveincome - Note R.

Total liabilities and equity.

Decemfj•er31,

2016 2015

$ 599 $ 641

27,292 S 27,891 27,901 $ 28,542

81,952 78,745

(532) 81,420 (444) 78,301

125 98

611 590

116 852 245 933

259 83

855 645

918 1,459
22 2,054 37 2,224

_ 30

431 401

677 1,108 685 1,116

$ 113,325 $111,116

540 513

86,865

51,149 49,065

28,637 $ 80,326 29,559 $ 79,137

86 149

519 675

3,233 2,786

5 3,843 5 3,615

37 97

277 440

361 342

447 539

501 483

220 238

853 972

85,863

170,940 156,939

(164,901) (151,240)

6,039 5,699

(24) (75)

(215) (230)

20,055 19,207

605 26,460

$ 113325

652 25,253

$111,116

The accompanying notes arean integral partof thesefinancialstatements.
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ORDINARY CAPITAL

INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Expressed in millions of United States dollars

Income

Loans

Interest, after swaps - Notes E, K and S
Other loan income

Investments - Notes D and K

Interest

Net gains (losses)

Other interest income - Notes K and S

Other.

Total income

Expenses

Borrowingexpenses
Interest, after swaps - Notes I, J,K and L
Other borrowingcosts

Provisionfor loan and guarantee losses- Note F.
Administrative expenses
Specialprograms - Note O

Totalexpenses

Income before Net fair value adjustments on non-trading
portfolios and foreign currency transactions and Board

ofGovernors approved transfers.

Net fair value adjustments on non-trading portfolios and

foreign currency transactions - Notes I, J,K and S

Board ofGovernors approved transfers - Note N

Net income

Retained earnings, beginning ofyear

Retained earnings, end ofyear

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Expressed inmillions of United States dollars

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss) - Note R

Reclassification to income - amortization of net actuarial

lossesand prior service credit on retirement
benefits plans - Note T.

Recognition of changesin assets/liabilities under retirement
benefit plans - Note T.

Total other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income (loss)

Years ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

$ 2,237 $ 1,839 $ 1,659

128 107 82

2365 1,946 1,741

286 111 74

35 (51) 40

23 35 44

24 21 44

2,733 2,062 1,943

779 388 374

18 21 24

797 409 398

142 73 118

676 768 668

91 95 107

1,706 1,345 1,291

1,027 717 652

(179) 443 96

- (200)

960

(200)

848 548

19,207 18,247 17,699

$20,055 $ 19,207 $ 18,247

Years ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

848 $ 960 $ 548

(8) 42

(40) 187 (750)

(48) 229 (750)
800 $ 1,189 $ (202)

The accompanying notes arean integral partof thesefinancial statements.
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ORDINARY CAPITAL

INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Expressed in millions of United States dollars

Cash flows from lending and investing activities

Lending:

Loan disbursements

Loan collections

Net cash used in lending activities

Purchaseofproperty.

Miscellaneous assets and liabilities

Net cashused in lendingand investingactivities

Cash flows from financing activities

Medium- and long-term borrowings:

Proceeds from issuance

Repayments

Short-term borrowings:

Proceeds from issuance

Repayments

Cash collateral received (returned)

Collections ofreceivable from members

Collections of capital subscriptions

Payments of maintenanceof value to members

Net cash providedby financingactivities

Cash flows from operating activities

Gross purchases of trading investments

Grossproceedsfrom saleor maturityof trading mvestments.

Loan income collections, after swaps

Interest and other costsof borrowings,after swaps
Income from investments

Other interest income

Other income

Administrativeexpenses

Transfersto the IDBGrant Facility.
Specialprograms
Net cashprovidedby (used in) operatingactivities

Effectofexchangerate fluctuations on Cash

Net increase (decrease) in Cash

Cash, beginning ofyear.

Cash, end ofyear

Years ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

$ (9,600) $ (9,719) $ (9,423)

6,023 5,132 5,213

(3,577) (4,587) (4,210)

(59) (47) (48)

34 73

(4,561)

(30)

(3,602) (4,288)

15,569 18,787 20,928

(13,889) (13,468) (11,195)

5,116 5,909 3,867

(5,089) (6,071) (3,846)

(163) 43 169

15 16 16

346 320 315

- (4)

5,532

-

1,905 10,254

(50,758) (46,074) (56,975)

51,266 45,544 50,426

2,489 1.760 1,738

(612) (1,313) (486)

158 71 253

24 36 44

18 29 48

(717) (660) (664)

(92) (162) (134)

(109) (101) (102)

1,667 (870) (5,852)

(12) 5

106

-

(42) 114

641 535 421

$ 599 $ 641 $ 535

The accompanying notes arean integral partof thesefinancial statements.



F-8

ORDINARY CAPITAL

INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A-Origin

The Inter-American Development Bank (Bank) is an interna
tional organization which was established in December 1959,
and is owned by its member countries. These members include
26borrowing membercountries and 22 non-borrowing mem
ber countries.The fivelargestmembers by shareholdings(with
their share of total voting power)are the United States(30.0%),
Argentina (11.4%), Brazil (11.4%), Mexico (7.3%) and Japan
(5.0%). The Bank'spurpose is to promote the economic and
social development of Latin Americaand the Caribbean, pri
marily by providingloans and related technicalassistance for
specific projects and for programs of economic reform. The
primaryactivities of the Bankare conductedthrough the Ordi
nary Capital, which is supplemented by the Fund for Special
Operations(FSO), the IntermediateFinancingFacility Account
(IFF), and the IDB Grant Facility(GRF).The FSO was estab
lished to make loans on highly concessional terms in the less
developedmember countries of the Bank.The IFF'spurpose is
to subsidizepart of the interestpaymentsfor whichcertain bor
rowersare liableon loans approved from the Ordinary Capital
up to December31,2006. The GRF's purpose is to makegrants
appropriate for dealing with special circumstances arising in
specificcountries (currently only Haiti) or with respect to spe
cificprojects.

Note B - Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies
The financial statements are prepared in conformity with
UnitedStatesgenerallyacceptedaccounting principles(GAAP).
The preparation of such financialstatements requires manage
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the re
ported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosureof con
tingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements,and the reported amounts of income and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.Significantjudgments have been made in the
valuation of certain financial instruments carried at fair value,
the determination of the adequacy of the allowances for loan
and guarantee losses, and the determination of the projected
benefit obligations of the pension and postretirement benefit
plans, the fair value of plan assets, and the funded status and
net periodic benefit cost associatedwith these plans.

New Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) issued ASU No. 2014-9, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic606),whichsupersedesthe previousrevenue
recognition requirements and guidance. This new guidance
does not applyto financial instruments and guarantees.Supple
mental guidance has been issued in the form of additional
ASUs related to the revenue recognition topic. For the Bank,
these ASUs are effective in 2018, including interim periods
withinthat fiscal year. The Bankiscurrentlyevaluating the new
standard, but does not expect the ASU to have a material im
pact on its financialstatements.

In April2015,the FASB issuedthe AccountingStandards
Update (ASU) No. 2015-3, Interest-Imputation of Interest
(Subtopic 835-30): Simplifyingthe Presentation of Debt Issu

ance Costs. This ASU requires that debt issuance costs related
to amortized cost borrowingsbe presented in the balance sheet
as a deduction of the borrowings, consistent with debt dis
counts. ASUNo. 2015-03 is required to be applied retrospec
tively to all periods presented beginning in die year of adop
tion. The Bank adopted ASU No. 2015-03 for the reporting
period ended March31,2016.The impact of adopting the ASU
was a reduction to Other assets, Total assets, Borrowings -
Medium-and-long-termMeasuredat amortized cost, and Total
liabilities of $23 million. In accordance with ASU No. 2015-03,
previously reported amounts have been conformed to the cur
rent presentation,and the impact as of December31,2015 was
a reductionto Other assets,Totalassets, Borrowings - Medium
and- long-term Measured at amortized cost, and Total liabili
ties of $23 million.

In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-7, Fair
ValueMeasurement(Topic820):Disclosuresfor Investments in
Certain Entities That CalculateNet Asset Valueper Share (or
Its Equivalent) (a consensus of the Emerging Issues Task
Force). This ASU removes the requirementto categorize within
the fair value hierarchy all investments for which fair value is
measuredusing the net assetvalueper share as a practicalex
pedient. The ASU is effective for the Bank during the first
quarter of 2016,and impacted the Bank's fair value disclosures
on pension assets.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01,Fi
nancialInstruments-Overall: Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Assets and FinancialLiabilities. The changes to the
currentGAAP modelprimarilyaffect theaccounting forequity
investments, financial liabilities under the fair value option,
and the presentation and disclosure requirements for financial
instruments. The accounting for other financial instruments,
such as loans, investments in debt securities, and other finan
cial liabilitiesis largelyunchanged. For the Bank, this ASU is
effective in 2018, including interim periods within that fiscal
year. The Bankis currently in the processof assessing the im
pact that this standard will have on its financial statements.

In February 2016,the FASB issued ASU2016-02—Leases
(Topic 842)to increasetransparencyand comparability among
organizationsby recognizingleaseassetsand leaseliabilitieson
the balancesheet and disclosingkeyinformation about leasing
arrangements. The recognition, measurement, and presenta
tion of expenses and cash flows arisingfrom a leaseby a lessee
havenot significantly changedfrom previousGAAP. However,
the principaldifferencefrom previousguidance is that the lease
assetsand lease liabilitiesarising from operating leases should
be recognizedin the balance sheet. For the Bank, this ASU is
effective in 2019, including interim periods within that fiscal
year. The Bank is currently evaluating the new standard, but
does not expectthe ASUto havea material impact on its finan
cial statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Finan
cial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. This ASU removes the

probable initial recognition threshold in the current "incurred
loss" model and requires entities to reflect current estimate of
all expected credit lossesover the contractual term of the finan-
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ORDINARY CAPITAL

INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

cial assets in the allowance for credit losses. In addition to past
events and current conditions, entities are required to also in
corporate reasonableand supportable forecasts in the measure
ment of expected credit losses.The allowance for credit losses
is considered a valuation account that is deducted from the

amortized cost basis of the financial asset to present the net
carryingvalueat the amount expected to be collected on the
financial asset The ASU also expands the currently required
creditqualityindicatordisclosures in relationto the amortized
cost of financingreceivables to be further disaggregated byyear
of origin or vintage for public business entities. For the Bank,
this ASU is effective in 2020,includinginterim periods within
that fiscalyear.The Bankis currently in the processof assessing
the impact of this ASUon its financial statements.

In August2016,the FASB issuedASUNo.2016-15, State
ment of Cash Flows(Topic230):Classificationof Certain Cash
Receipts and Cash Payments.This ASU clarifies how entities
should classify certain cash receipts and cash paymentson the
statement of cash flows to reduce the current and potential fu
ture diversity in practice. For the Bank, this ASUis effective in
2018, including interim periods within that fiscal year. The
Bank is currently evaluating the new standard, but does not
expect the ASUto have a material impact on its financial state
ments.

Currency Accounting
The financialstatements are expressedin United Statesdollars,.
which is also the functional currency of the Bank. Assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar

are translated into United States dollars at market exchange
rates prevailing at the Balance Sheet dates. Income and ex
penses are translated at either market exchange rates in effect
on the dates on which they are recognizedor at an average of
market exchangerates in effectduring each month. Exceptfor
currency holdings derived from paid-in capital stock that have
maintenance of value, as described below, net adjustments re
sulting from the translation of all currencies are recorded in
Net fan: valueadjustments on non-trading portfolios and for
eign currency transactions9 in the Statement of Income and
RetainedEarnings.

Valuation and Recognition of Capital Stock
The AgreementEstablishing the Inter-American Development
Bank (Agreement) providesthat capital stock be expressed in
terms of the United Statesdollar of the weightand fineness in
effecton January 1,1959, the par valueof which wasdefined in
terms of gold (the 1959 United States dollar). The Second
Amendment to the Articlesof Agreement of the International
Monetary Fund eliminated par valuesof currencies in terms of
gold, effective April 1,1978. The General Counsel of the Bank
rendered an opinion that the Special Drawing Right (SDR),
introduced by the International Monetary Fund, became the
successor to the 1959 United States dollar as the standard of

References to captions in the financial statementsareidentifiedby
the nameof the captionbeginningwith acapital lettereverytime
they appearin the notes to the financial statements.

valuefor the Bank's capital stock,and for maintaining the value
of its currency holdings.The SDRhas a value equal to the sum
of the valuesof specific amounts of stated currencies (the bas
ket method), includingthe UnitedStatesdollar.Absenta deci
sion by the Bank's governing boards and as suggested in the
General Counsel'sopinion, the Bank is continuing its practice
of using as the basis of valuation the 1959United Statesdollar,
as valued in terms of United Statesdollars immediatelybefore
the introduction of the basket method of valuing the SDR on
July 1, 1974 (the 1974 United States dollar). The 1959United
Statesdollar value is equal to approximately1.2063 of the 1974
United States dollars, or one SDR (1974 SDR).

Instruments of subscription are received from member
countries committing to subscribe paid-in and callable capital
stock according to the corresponding capital replenishment
Paid-in and callable capital subscriptions are recorded on the
corresponding effectivedate of the individual installments, as
provided for in the replenishments. Capital subscriptions re
ceivableare deducted from Paid-in capitalstock on the Balance
Sheet Subscriptionspaid in advance are recorded as a liability
until the effective date of the corresponding installment

Maintenance ofvalue (MOV)
In accordancewith the Agreement each member is required to
maintain the valueof its currency held in the Ordinary Capital,
except for currency derived from borrowings. Likewise, the
Bank is required to return to a member an amount of its cur
rency equal to any significant increase in value of such mem
ber's currency so held, except for currency derived from bor
rowings. The standard of value for these purposes is the United
Statesdollar of the weightand fineness in effecton January1,
1959.

The amount related to MOV on member countries' cur

rency holdings is presented on the BalanceSheeteither as a li
ability, included in Other liabilities, or as a reduction of the
Equity, if the related MOV amount is a receivable.

Board ofGovernors approved transfers
In accordance with the Agreement the Board of Governors
may exercise its authority to approve transfers of Ordinary
Capital income to the FSO or other accounts (currently only
the GRF)administeredby the Bank.Thesetransfers,referredto
as "Board of Governors approved transfers", are reported as
expenses when incurred, upon approvalof disbursement, and
are currentlyfunded in accordance with the GRFfundingre
quirements. The undisbursed portion of approvedtransfers is
presented under Due to IDB Grant Facility on the Balance
Sheet.

Retained earnings
Retainedearningscomprisethe generalreserveand the special
reserve. The general reserve consists of income from prior
years,which havebeen retained to providefor possibleannual
excessof expenses over income.

The special reserve consists of loan commissions set
aside pursuant to the Agreement which are held in invest
ments.Theseinvestments maybe used onlyfor the purposeof
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meeting liabilities on borrowingsand guarantees in the event of
defaultson loans made, participated in, or guaranteed with re
sources of the OrdinaryCapital. The allocation of such com
missions to the special reservewas discontinued in 1998.

Investments

All investment securities and related derivative instruments

(mostly currency and interest rate swaps) are designated as a
trading portfolio, recorded in accordance with trade-date ac
counting, and are carried and reported at fair value, with
changes in fairvalueincluded in Income from Investments-Net
gains(losses) in the Statement of Income and Retained Earn
ings.

Loans

The Bank makes loans to its developing member countries,
agencies or politicalsubdivisionsof such members and to pri
vate enterprisescarryingout projectsin their territories. In the
case of sovereign-guaranteed loans to borrowers other than
national governments or central banks, the Bank follows the
policyof requiring a joint and several guarantee engaging-the
full faithand creditofthe nationalgovernment Non-Sovereign
Guaranteed (NSG) loans and guarantees arealso made on the
basisof market-based pricing(i) in all economic sectors (sub
ject to an exclusion list),and (ii) to any entity regardless of the
degree of private or publicsectorownership, aslong asthe en
tity doesnot benefit froma sovereign guarantee forrepayments
of its obligations and the ultimate beneficiary of the financing
is a projectin a borrowing member country (eligible entities).
In addition, the Bank makes loans to other development insti
tutions without sovereignguarantee.

Incrementaldirectcostsassociated with originatingloans
are expensed as incurredas such amountsare considered im
materialto the financial results.Front-end fees on emergency
loansaredeferredand amortized over the first fouryearsof the
loanon a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective
interest method.

Income on loans is recognized following the accrual
basis. The Bankconsidersaloan to be pastdue when the sched
uledprincipal and/orinterest payments havenot been received
on the date they arecontractually due. It is the policyof the
Bank to placeon non-accrualstatusallloans made to, or guar
anteed by,a memberof the Bankif principal, interest or other
charges withrespect to anysuchloanare overdue by morethan
180 days, unless it is determined thatallpayments of amounts
in arrears arein process andwillbe collected in the immediate
future. In addition, if loans made to a member country with
resources of the FSO or certain other funds owned or adminis
teredby the Bank are placed on non-accrual status, allOrdi
nary Capital loans made to, or guaranteed by, that member
government will also be placed on non-accrual status. On the
datea member'sloansareplacedon non-accrualstatus,unpaid
interest andothercharges accrued on loans outstanding to the
member are deducted from the income of the current period.
Interest and other charges on non-accruing loansareincluded
in income only to the extent and in the periodthat payments
haveactually beenreceived by the Bank.On the datea member

pays in full all overdueamounts, the member's loans emerge
fromnon-accrual status, its eligibility fornew loansis restored
andalloverdue charges (including those from prioryears) are
recognized asincome from loansin the currentperiod.

For NSG loans, it is the general policy of the Bank to
place on non-accrual status loans made to a borrower when
interest or other charges arepastdue by more than 90 days, or
earlier when managementhasdoubts abouttheir futurecollect
ibility. Income is recorded thereafter on a cash basis until loan
service is current and management's doubts about future col
lectibility cease to exist If the collectibility risk is considered to
be particularly high at the time of arrears clearance, the bor
rower's loansmay not emerge from non-accrualstatus.

The Bank periodically reviews the collectibilityof loans
and, if applicable, records, as an expense, provisions for loan
lossesin accordance with its determination of the collectibility
riskof the sovereign-guaranteed and NSG loan portfolios.Such
reviews consider the credit risk for each portfolio, as defined
below,aswell as the potential for loss arisingfrom delayin the
scheduled loan repayments.

For purposes of determining the allowance for loan
losses, loans are divided in two main portfolios: sovereign-
guaranteed and NSG. Forthe sovereign-guaranteed loan port
folio, the Bank does not rescheduleand has not written off any
suchOrdinaryCapital loans. In addition,becauseof the nature
of its borrowers, the Bank expects that each of its sovereign-
guaranteed loans will be repaid. Therefore, the Bank deter
mines the nature and extent of its exposure to credit risk by
considering the long-term foreign currency credit rating as
signed to eachborrowercountry by Standard8c Poor's (S8cP),
adjusted by the probabilities of default to the Bank. For the
NSG loan portfolio,the Bank managesand measurescreditrisk
using a credit risk classification system that takes into consid
eration three dimensions to reflect the risk of the borrower, the
associated securityor features of the transactionand the coun
try related risk,which allcombined producesthe incurred loss.
The finalratingmaps, one to one, to the corporateratingscale
ofS8cP.

The Bank considersa NSG loan asimpairedwhen, based
on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank
will be unableto collectallamounts due according to the loan's
original contractual terms. Specific allowances for losses on
impaired loansareset asidebasedon Management's judgment
of the present valueof expectedfuture cashflows discounted at
the loan's effective interest rate or based on the fab: value of the

collateral lessdisposalcosts.
Partial or full loan write-offs are recorded when a loss has

been "realized" through either a legalagreementor finalbank
ruptcy settlement, or when the Bank has determined with a
reasonable degree of certaintythat the relevant amountwill not
be collected.

Guarantees

The Bankmay make political risk and partial creditguarantees
either without a sovereign counter-guarantee under the limits
established for NSG operations, or with a member country
sovereign counter-guarantee. As partof its NSG lending activi-
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ties, the Bankhas issued political risk and partial credit guaran
tees designed to encourage infrastructure investments, local
capital market development, and trade-finance. The political
risk guarantees and partialcredit guaranteesmaybe offered on
a stand-alonebasisor in conjunction with a Bankloan. Political
risk guarantees cover specific risk events related to non-com
mercial factors (such as currency convertibility, transferability
of currencies outside the host country, and government non
performance). Partialcreditguaranteescoverpaymentrisksfor
debt obligations. Under the non-sovereign-guaranteed Trade
Finance Facilitation Program (TFFP), the Bank also provides
full credit guarantees for trade-finance transactions.On a case-
by-case basis,dependingupon the riskscoveredand the nature
of each individual project, the Bank may reinsurecertain guar
anteesto reduce itsexposure.Guaranteefees, net of reinsurance
premiums,are chargedand recognizedas incomeover the term
of the guarantee.

Guarantees are regarded as outstanding when the bor
rower incurs the underlying financialobligationand are called
when a guaranteed party demands payment under the guaran
tee. The outstanding amount represents the maximum poten
tial risk if the payments guaranteed for these entities are not
made. The contingent liability for probable losses related to
guaranteesoutstanding is included in Other liabilities.

The Bank manages and measures credit risk on guaran
tees without sovereigncounter-guarantee using the credit risk
classification system used for NSG operations as described
under Loans above.

The Bank reduced its sovereign-guaranteed loan portfo
lio concentration by entering into a Master ExposureExchange
Agreement (EEA) jointly with other MultilateralDevelopment
Banks(MDBs), and executingbilateraltransactions under such
framework. Conceptually, the EEA reduces portfolio concen
tration by simultaneously exchanging coverage for potential
non-accrual events (i.e., interest and principal non-payment)
between MDBs for exposures from borrowing countries in
which a MDB is concentrated, to countries in which a MDB has
no, or low,exposure.

Under an EEA,there is no direct exchangeof loan assets
and all aspects of the client relationship remain with the origi
nating MDB.However,one MDB assumes the credit risk on a
specified EEA amount for a set of borrowing countries (the
EEAsellerof protection, or EEASeller)in exchangefor passing
on the credit risk in the same amount on a set of different bor

rowing countries to another MDB (the EEA buyer of protec
tion, or EEA Buyer). If a non-accrual event occurs for one of
the countries that are part of the EEA transactions, the EEA
Sellercompensatesthe EEABuyerat an agreed upon rate. The
EEA allows for exchanges of a minimum of 10 years and a
maximumof 30 yearsmaturity, and each participatingMDBis
required to retain a minimum of 50%of the total exposure to
each country that is part of the EEA. In the event of no non-
accruals events occurring during the life of the EEA, the EEA
expiresat the end of the agreed upon period.

The trigger event for requiring the EEA Seller to make
interest payments to the EEA Buyer is defined as a payment
delay for one or more of the countries for which exposure is
included in the EEAof 180days (i.e.,a non-accrual event).The

trigger event for requiring the EEA Seller to make principal
payments to the EEA Buyer is definedas the time at whichthe
EEA Buyerwritesoff part, or all, of the SG loans to a country
coveredunder the EEA. Any principal payment made reduces
the EEAamount and the coverageof the EEAfor the country
for which the write-off occurs.

Following the trigger event the EEASellerpayscompen
sation to the EEABuyer for part of the unpaid interest based
on the EEAamount for the country in non-accrual at the inter
est rate set for the EEA transaction, currently set at USD six-
month LIBORplus 0.75%. Interest paymentsare to be made on
a semi-annual basis and cannot exceed contractual payments
related to the loans that are past due.

The EEASeller relies on the EEA Buyer to recoverout
standing amounts owed from the borrowing country in non-
accrual status. Recoveries of amounts received by the EEA
Buyer are to be shared between Buyer and Seller on a pari-
passu basis.Bythe end of the non-accrual event the EEASeller
receives back all amounts paid to the EEA Buyer if there have
been no write-offs.

The fab: valueof the guarantee givenis recordedat incep
tion as an asset (equivalentto the net present valueof the hypo
thetical guarantee fees to be received)and a liability (the non-
contingent portion of the guarantee to stand readyto perform),
respectively, included in Other assets - Miscellaneous and
Other liabilities, respectively, in the BalanceSheet. The above
mentioned asset and liabilityare amortized over the term of the
guarantee, based on the originally negotiated exposure ex
change expected to be outstanding every year.For the guaran
tees received, an asset,and a corresponding income,is recorded
equivalent to the implicit reduction hi the Bank's allowance for
loan losses, which are included in Other assets - Miscellaneous
and Other-income, respectively.

Property
Property is recorded at cost. Major improvements are capital
ized while routine replacements, maintenance and repairs are
chargedto expense. Depreciationis computed on the straight-
line method over estimated useful lives (30 to 40 years for
buildings, 10 years for building improvements and capitalized
software, and 4 to 15yearsfor equipment).

Borrowings
To ensure funds are available for its lending and liquidity op
erations, the Bankborrows in the international capitalmarkets,
offering its debt securities to private and public investors.The
Bank issues debt securities denominated in various currencies

and with various maturities, formats, and structures. The Bank

also issues discount notes to manage short-term cash flow
needs.

Asubstantialnumber of the borrowingsare carried at fan-
value on the Balance Sheet. The interest component of the
changes in fair value of these borrowings is recorded in Bor
rowing expenses-Interest, after swaps. The remainingchanges
in fair value of these instruments are recorded in Net fair value

adjustments on non-trading portfolios and foreign currency
transactions in the Statement of Income and Retained Earn

ings.
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Certain borrowings are carried at their par value (face
value),adjusted for any premiums or discounts (amortized cost
basis). The amortization of premiums and discounts is calcu
lated following the constant yield method, and is included in
Interest, after swaps, under Borrowing expenses in the State
ment of Income and RetainedEarnings.

Issuecostsofborrowingscarried at fairvalueare charged
to expenseupon issuance, whereas those of borrowings carried
at amortized cost are deferred and amortized following the
constantyieldmethod overthe lifeof the respective debt secu
rity. The unamortized balance of the borrowing issue costs is
included in Borrowings under Liabilities on the Balance Sheet,
and the amounts chargedto expenseor amortized are included
in Other borrowing costs under Borrowing expenses in the
Statementof Income and Retained Earnings.

Interest expense on borrowings is recognized on an ac
crual basis,net of the interest component of borrowing deriva
tives,is calculated in a manner that approximatesthe effective
yield method upon issuance of those borrowings, and is in
cluded under Borrowingexpenses hi the Statement of Income
and RetainedEarnings.

Derivatives

As part of its asset and liability management the Bank uses
derivatives, mostly currency and interest rate swaps, in its in
vestment loan and borrowing operations. These derivatives
modifythe interest rate and/or currency characteristics of the
operations to produce the desired interest and/or currency
type. In addition, in order to managethe sensitivity to changes
in interest rates (duration or modified duration) of its equity,
the Bankutilizes equityduration swapsto maintain the modi
fieddurationof its equitywithina definedpolicyband of four
to six years.

All derivatives are recognized on the Balance Sheet at
their fair value, are classified as either assets or liabilities, de
pendingon the nature (receivable or payable) of their net fair
valueamount, and are not designated as hedginginstruments.

The Bank refers to the periodic cash payment or cash
receipt to/from the counterpartypursuant to the provisions of
the derivative contractas the "interestcomponent." The interest
component for derivatives related to the economic hedging of
our investment securities is presented in Income from Invest
ments-Interest in the Statement of Income and Retained Earn

ings. The change in fair value of the investment securities and
relatedderivatives are presented in Income from Investments-
Netgams (losses). The interest component for lending-related
derivatives is included hi Income from loans. The interest
component for borrowing derivatives and equityduration de
rivativesare recorded in Borrowing expenses and Other inter
est income, respectively. The changeshi fair value of lending,
borrowing and equityduration derivatives are reportedin Net
fair value adjustments on non-trading portfolios and foreign
currency transactions. Realized gains and losseson non-trad
ing derivatives are reclassified from Net fairvalueadjustments
on non-trading portfoliosand foreign currencytransactionsto
Income from loans-Interest after swaps, Borrowing expenses-
Interest, after swaps, and Other interest income, respectively,

upon termination of a swap.
The Bankoccasionallyissuesdebt securities that contain

embedded derivatives. These securities are carried at fair value.

Administrative expenses
The administrativeexpensesof the Bankare allocatedbetween
the Ordinary Capital and the FSO pursuant to the allocation
percentage approved by the Board of Governors, which was
97% for the OrdinaryCapitaland 3%for the FSOin 2016,2015
and 2014.

Special programs
Specialprograms provide financing for reimbursable, non-re
imbursable and contingent recovery assistance to borrowing
member countries. Reimbursable operations are recorded as
Other assets. Non-reimbursable and contingent recovery op
erationsare recordedas Special programsexpenseat the time
of approval. Cancellationsof undisbursed balances of non-re
imbursableoperations and recuperations of contingent recov
ery financings are recognized as an offsetto Special programs
expensein the period in which they occur.

Taxes

The Bank,its property, other assets, income and the operations
and transactions it carries out pursuant to the Agreement are
immune from all taxation and from all custom duties in its

member countries.

Pension and postretirement benefit plans
The funded status of the Bank's benefit plans is recognized on
the Balance Sheet The funded status is measured as the differ

ence between the fair value of plan assets and the benefit obli
gation at December 31, the measurement date. Overrunded
benefit plans, with the fair value of plan assets exceedingthe
benefitobligation,are aggregatedand recorded as Assetsunder
retirement benefit plans while under-funded benefit plans,
with the benefitobligation exceeding the fair valueof plan as
sets, are aggregated and recorded as Liabilities under retire
ment benefit plans.

Net actuarial gains and lossesand prior service cost not
recognized as a componentof net periodicbenefitcost as they
arise, are recognizedas a component of Other comprehensive
income (loss) in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
(Loss). These net actuarial gains and losses and prior service
cost are subsequentlyrecognized as a component of net peri
odic benefit cost pursuant to the recognition and amortization
provisions of applicable accountingstandards.

Net periodic benefit cost is recorded under Administra
tive expenses in the Statement of Income and Retained Earn
ingsand includesservicecost interestcost,expectedreturn on
plan assets, and amortizationof prior servicecosts/creditsand
gains/losses previously recognized as a component of Other
comprehensive income (loss) remaining in Accumulatedother
comprehensiveincome.

Note C - Restricted Currencies

At December 31, 2016, Cash includes $192 million (2015 -
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$148 million) in currencies of regional borrowing members.
These amounts may be used by the Bank in Ordinary Capital
lending operations and for administrative expenses. Of this
amount one member country has restricted $43 million (2015
- $35 million) to be used for making payments for goods and
servicesin its territory, in accordancewith the provisionsof the
Agreement

Note D - Investments

As part of its overall portfolio management strategy,the Bank
invests in obligations of sovereign and sub-sovereign govern
ments, agency, supranational, bank and corporate entities, in
cluding asset-backedand mortgage-backedsecurities, and re
lated financial derivative instruments, primarily currency and
interest rate swaps.

The Bank invests in obligations: (i) issued or uncondi
tionally guaranteed by sovereign governments of the member
country whose currency is being invested, or other sovereign
obligationswith a minimum credit quality equivalent to AA-;
(ii) issued or unconditionally guaranteed by sub-sovereign
governments and agencies, including asset-backed and mort
gage-backedsecurities,with a minimum credit qualityequiva
lent to AA-;and (iii) issued bysupranational organizationswith
a credit quality equivalent to a AAA rating. In addition, the
Bankinvestsin senior bank obligationswith a minimum credit
quality equivalent to A+, and in corporate entities with a mini
mum credit quality equivalent to a AA- rating (private asset-
backedand mortgage-backedsecurities require a credit quality
equivalent to a AAA rating). The Bank also invests in short-
term securities of the eligible investment asset classes men
tioned above,provided that they carry only the highest short-
term credit ratings.

Net unrealizedgains (losses)on trading portfolio instru
ments held at December 31,2016 of $12 million (2015 - $(62)
million; 2014 - $31 million) were included in Income from
Investments-Net gains (losses).

A schedule of the trading portfolio instruments at De
cember 31,2016 and 2015 is shown in the Scheduleof Trading
Investmentsand Swapsin Schedule 1-1.

Note E - Loans and Guarantees Outstanding
The loan portfoliosubstantially includessovereign-guaranteed
(SG) loans as follows:

• SingleCurrency Facility (SCF) loans (LIBOR-based
and fixed-base cost rates)

• Flexible Financing Facility (FFF) loans (LIBOR-
based, fixed-based cost interest rates and local cur
rency)

In addition, the loan portfolio also includesNSGloans.

Sovereign guaranteed-loan portfolio
Currently available products
The FFF, effective January 1, 2012, is currently the only finan
cial product platform for approval of all regular Ordinary
Capitalsovereignguaranteed loans.With FFFloans, borrowers
have the ability to tailor financial terms at approval or during

the lifeof a loan, subject to market availability and operational
considerations.The FFFplatform allowsborrowers to: (i) man
age currency, interest rate and other types of exposures; (ii)
addressproject changing needs by customizingloan repayment
terms to better manageliquidityrisks;(iii) manageloans under
legacy financial products; and (iv) execute hedges with the
Bank at a loan portfolio level.

The FFF loans have an interest rate based on LIBORplus
a funding margin or actual funding cost as wellas the Bank's
spread. Borrowersalso have an option to convert to fixed-base
cost rate, local currencies and other major currencies.

The Bank also offers concessional lending through a
blending of loans from the Ordinary Capital and the FSO
(blended loans).The Ordinary Capital'sportion of the blended
loans is SCF-fixed-base cost rate loans with 30 years maturity
and 6 years grace period.

Effective January 1, 2017, the Bank offers concessional
lending from its Ordinary Capital through a blending of regu
lar and concessional financing. The concessional portion of
blended loans havea grace period and maturity of 40 years,and
a 0.25% fixed interest rate. The regular financing portion has a
25 years maturity.

NSG loan portfolio
The Bank offers loans to eligible entities without sovereign
guarantees under various terms. NSG loans can be denomi
nated in United Statesdollars, Japaneseyen, euro, Swiss francs
or local currencies, and borrowers have the option of either a
fixed, floatingor inflation-linked interest rate loan. For floating
rate loans, the interest rate resets every one, three, six or twelve
months substantially all based on a LIBOR rate plus a credit
spread. The credit spreads and fees on these loans are set on a
case-by-case basis.

The NSG Risk Framework (Framework) is structured in
three levels, namely (i) the NSG risk appetite, which limits the
amount of economiccapitalallocatedto NSGloans and guar
antees to 20% of total equity, calculated in the context of the
Bank's capitaladequacypolicy,(ii) the portfolio exposurelimits
and supplemental guidelines, whichseek to providefor portfo
lio diversification and establishlimits per project, per obligor
andgroupofobligors, per sectoraswell asper country, and (iii)
the NSG risk management best practices, whichsupport proj
ect origination and portfolio management With respect to
singleobligorlimit, the Frameworkestablishes a limit equal to

.the lesserof 2.5%of the total equity calculatedin the context of
the Bank's capitaladequacypolicy,and $500million at the time
ofapproval. Beginning on January 1,2016,and extending fora
seven-year period, NSG activities are being originated by the
Inter-AmericanInvestmentCorporation (IIC) and largelycofi-
nanced by the Bankand the IIC.

For cofinanced NSG loans, the Bank and the IIC main
tain separate legal and economic interests in their respective
share of the loan principal balance,interest, and other elements
of the lendingarrangement.

The Bank's loan chargesconsistof a lendingspread on the
outstanding amount, a credit commission on the undisbursed
balanceof the loan, and a supervisionand inspectionfee. Loan
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charges for 2016,2015 and 2014wereas follows:

2014

2015

First semester....

Second semester.

2016

Supervision

Lending Credit inspection
spread commission fee

% % %

0.85 0.25

0.85 0.25 .

1.15 0.50 -

1.15 0.50 -

These charges apply to sovereign-guaranteed loans and
NSG loans to other development institutions, comprising
approximately 93% of the loan portfolio, and are subject to
review and approval annually, or more frequently if deemed
necessary, by the BoardofExecutiveDirectors.

Income from loans-Interest,afterswapshasbeen reduced
by $322 million (2015 - $353 million; 2014 - $391 million)
representing the net interestcomponent of relatedlendingswap
transactions.

A scheduleofloansoutstanding and undisbursed balance
by country is presented in Schedule 1-2, and a schedule of
outstandingloans by currency and interest ratetype, and their
.maturitystructure at December 31,2016 and 2015is shown in
Schedule 1-3.

Inter-American Investment Corporation
In 1997, the Bank approveda loan to the IIC (a separate inter
national organization whose 45 member countries are also
members of the Bank) of $300 million. Disbursements under
this loan arein United Statesdollars and carry a LIBOR-based
interest rate. As ofDecember 31,2016 and 2015, there was $100
million recordedin Loansoutstanding.

Loan participations
The Bank mobilizes funds from commercial banks and other

financial institutions by entering into loan participation agree
ments without recourse, while reserving to itself the adminis
tration of such loans.The Bank's loan participations meet the
applicable saleaccounting criteria and are not includedon the
Bank's Balance Sheet. As of December 31, 2016, there were

$2,781 million (2015 - $3,171 million) in outstanding partici
pationsin NSG loans.

Guarantees

During2016, there were two NSG, non-trade-related guaran
teesapprovedfor$89million (2015- two for$112million). No
guarantees with sovereigncounter-guarantee wereapprovedin
2016 and 2015. As of December 31, 2016, the Bank had ap
proved, net of cancellations and maturities, non-trade related
guarantees without sovereign counter-guarantees of $598 mil
lion (2015 - $757 million) and guarantees with sovereign
counter-guarantee of $60 million (2015- $60 million).

Under the NSG TFFP, in addition to direct loans, the
Bank provides full credit guarantees on short-term trade re

latedtransactions. The TFFP authorizes lines of creditin sup
port of approved issuingbanks and non-bank financial institu
tions,with an aggregate program limit of up to $1,000 million
outstanding at any tune. During 2016, the Bank issued 57
guarantees fora total of $84 million under this program (2015
- 17guarantees fora total of $11 million).

At December31,2016, guarantees of $230million (2015
- $207million), including $62 million (2015- $11 million) is
suedunder the TFFP, wereoutstandingand subjectto call.This
amount represents the maximum potential undiscounted fu
ture payments that the Bank could be requiredto make under
theseguarantees. During2016, no guarantees outstandingwere
reinsured (2015 - $9 million). Outstanding guarantees have
remainingmaturitiesrangingfrom 6 months to 10years, except
fortraderelated guarantees, that have maturitiesof up to three
years. As of December31,2016 and 2015,the Bank's exposure
on guarantees without sovereigncounter-guarantee amounted
to $170million and $147million, respectively, and was classi
fied as follows (in millions):

Internal Credit

Risk Classification 2016

$ 84

2015 S8tP Rating

$ 88 BBB- or higher
bb+ - - BB+

bb. 5 7 BB

bb- 48 31 BB-

b+ 12 15 B+

b 2 4 B

b- 19 - B-

ccc-d. -

$

2

147

CCC-D

Total $ 170

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank's exposure on
guarantees with sovereign counter-guarantee amounted to $60
million (one guarantee rated BBB+).

Multilateral Development Banks (MDBs) Exposure Ex
change Agreement
In 2015, the Bank entered into an EEA with certain other

MDBs pursuant to which it also executed two bilateral EEA
transactions within Bank limits, which require such transac
tions to remain within 10% of the outstanding loan balanceof
the SG portfolio,and individualcountry exposuresnot exceed
ing the Bank's 10th largest SG exposure.

EachEEA transactionwas accounted for as an exchange
of two separate financial guarantees (given and received). As of
December31, 2016and 2015, the Bank is the EEA Buyer (re
ceives a financial guarantee from other MDBs) and the EEA
Seller (provides a financial guarantee to other MDBs) for the
following countriesand exposure amounts (in millions):
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EEA Seller

Country Amount

Angola. $ 85
Armenia../. 118

Bosnia 8cHerzegovina 99
Egypt 720
Georgia 97
Indonesia. 535

Jordan 144

Macedonia 130

Montenegro 116
Morocco. 990

Nigeria. 95
Pakistan 276

Serbia 195

Tunisia. 990

Turkey. 311
Total $ 4,901

S&P Rating '
As of As of

December 31, December 31,
2016 2015

B B+

BB- B+

B B

B- B-

BB- BB-

BB+ BB+

BB- BB-

BB- BB-

B+ B+

BBB- BBB-

B B+

B B-

BB- BB-

BB- BB-

BB BB+

EEA Buyer
S&P Rating

As of As of

December 31, December 31,

Country Amount 2016 2015

Argentina $ 750 B- SD
Bolivia 92 BB BB

Brazil 820 BB BB+

Chile 66 AA- AA-

Colombia 397 BBB BBB

Costa Rica 43 BB- BB

Dominican Republic. 460 BB- BB-
Ecuador. 1,066 B B

Mexico 800 BBB+ BBB+

Panama 207 BBB BBB

Trinidad &Tobago... 200 A- A

Total $ 4,901

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, no non-accrual
events have occurred,and the current carryingamount under
the guarantees given amounts to $563 million and $605 mil
lion, respectively.

IFF subsidy
The IFF wasestablished in 1983 by the Board of Governors of
the Bank to subsidize part of the interest payments for which
certain borrowers are liable on loans from the resources of the
Ordinary CapitaL The IFF interest subsidy was discontinued
for loans approved after 2006. During 2016, the IFF paid $18
million (2015 - $16 million; 2014 - $18 million) of interest on
behalfof the borrowers.

Note F - Credit Risk from Loan Portfolio

The loan portfolio creditrisk is the risk that the Bankmay not
receive repaymentof principal and/or intereston one or more
of its loans according to the agreed-upon terms. It is directly

related to the Bank's corebusiness and is the largest financial
risk faced by the Bank. The Bankhasmultiple sources of pro
tection fromthe loanportfolio credit risk, including anoverall
lending limitation, a comprehensive capital adequacy frame
work(designed to ensure thatthe Bankholdssufficient equity
atalltunesgiventhe quality andconcentration of its portfolio),
apolicyfor the treatment of non-performing loans andapolicy
for the maintenance of a loan loss allowance. The Bank's loan

portfolio creditrisk is determinedby the creditqualityof, and
exposure to, each borrower.

The Bank manages two principal sources of credit risk
from its loan activities: sovereign-guaranteed loans and NSG
loans. Approximately 93% of the loans are sovereign-guaran
teed, as of December 31,2016.

Sovereign-guaranteed loans: When the Bank lends to public
sectorborrowers, it generally requires a full sovereign guaran
tee or the equivalent from the borrowing member state. In ex
tending credit to sovereign entities, the Bank is exposed to
country risk which includes potential losses arising from a
country's inabilityor unwillingness to service its obligations to
the Bank.

Forthe Bank, the likelihood of experiencing an event of
default in its sovereign-guaranteed loan portfolio is different
than commercial lenders. The Bank does not renegotiate or
reschedule its sovereign-guaranteed loans and historically has
always received full principaland interest due at the resolution
of a sovereign eventof default Accordingly, the probabilities of
default to the Bank assigned to each country are adjusted to
reflect the Bank's expectation of full recovery of all its sover
eign-guaranteed loans. However, even with full repayment of
principal and interest at the end of the event of default the
Bank suffers an economic loss from not charging interest on
overdue interest while the event of default lasts.

The creditqualityof the sovereign-guaranteed loanport
folio as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, as represented by the
long-term foreign currency credit rating assigned to each bor
rower countryby S&P, is as follows (in millions):

Country Ratings 2016 2015

AA+ to AA- $ 583

665

28,931

22,287

21,342

2,214

$ 437

A+ to A- 640

BBB+ to BBB- 27,722

BB+ to BB- 22,150

B+ to B- 8,446

CCC+ to CC 2,194

SD. 11,176

Total $ 76,022 $ 72,765

The ratings presented above have been updated as of
December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively.

NSGloans: The Bank does not benefit from sovereign guaran
teeswhenlendingto NSGborrowers. Riskandperformance for
theseloans areevaluated by scoring the individual risk factors
separately for the borrower and for the transaction dimensions.
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In order to further enhance the Bank's management of
creditrisk,duringthe fourth quarter of 2015, the Bankimple
mented changes to its credit risk classification system to pro
vide fora more granular ratingscalethat maps, on aone to one
basis, to that of the foreign currencyS&P creditrating. It also
separated the borrower risk rating from the transaction risk
rating to provide moretransparency of the different risk factors
that determine the final score of each one of those risks which

all combined produces the incurred loss associated with the
transaction. As a result, the borrower risk assessment continues

to considerquantitative and qualitative risk factors.
The majorcredit risk factors considered at the borrower

levelof a project finance loan may be grouped into the follow
ingcategories: political risk, commercialor projectrisk, techni
cal and construction risk, and financial risk. Political risks can
be defined as the risks to a project financingemanating from
governmental sources, either from a legal or regulatory per
spective.Commercial or projectrisks concern the construction
or completion risks,economic or financial viabilityof a project
and operational risks. Financial risks consider the project's ex
posuresto cash flow generation, interest rate and foreign cur
rencyvolatility, inflationrisk,liquidity risk,and funding risk.

Credit risk evaluation related to financial institutions fol

lowsa uniform ratingsystemwhich addresses regulatory, com
petition, government support and macro-economic risk associ
ated with this sector and ultimately acts as an anchor.
Additionally, it assesses and scores the following factors: capital
adequacy, assetquality, operating policies and procedures and
riskmanagement framework; qualityof management anddeci
sionmaking; earnings andmarketposition, liquidityandsensi
tivity to market risk; quality of regulations and regulatory
agencies; and potential government or shareholder support.
The country risk is either embedded in the assessmentof the
borrower, oracting asaceiling of theborrower rating.

Separately, the Bank uses a transaction or facility risk
(LGD) model which considers the type of collateral, the senior
ity of the loan or guarantee, jurisdiction (bankruptcy and
creditors rights) and guarantees from third parties. The LGD
model is calibrated following empirical evidence of historical
loss data collected by S&P, and calculates separately the LGD
for eachindividual loanor guarantee.

The creditqualityof the NSGloanportfolio asof Decem
ber 31,2016 and 2015, excluding loans to other development
institutions,asrepresentedby the internalcreditrisk classifica
tion is as follows (in millions):

2015

Internal Credit

Risk Classification 2016

bbb- or higher....
bb+

bb.

bb-

b+

b.

b-

ccc - d

Total

S&P Rating

$ 836 $ 977 BBB- or higher
433 739 BB+

644 689 BB

1,137 . 1,000 BB-

1,057 930 B+

678 746 B

509 141 B-

515 630 CCC-D

$ 5,809 $ 5,852

In addition, as of December 31,2016, the Bank has loans to
other development institutions of $121 million (2015 - $128
million),with ratings ranging from AA to A.

Past due and Non-accrual loans

As of December31,2016, NSG loans 90 or more days pastdue
amounted to $279 million (2015 - $186 million). NSG loans
with outstandingbalances of$494million wereon non-accrual
status (2015 - $466 million), including $169 million whose
maturity wasaccelerated (2015 - $156million). There were no
sovereign-guaranteed loans past due, impaired or in non-ac
crual status as of December 31,2016 and 2015.

Impaired loans
The Bank's outstanding balanceof NSG loans classified as im
paired was $494 million at December 31, 2016 (2015 - $466
million;2014 - $394million). All impaired loans have specific
allowances for loan losses of$334 million (2015 - $235 million;
2014 - $183 million).

A summary of financial information related to unpaired
loans affecting the results of operations for the years ended
December 31,2016,2015, and 2014 is as follows (in millions):

Years ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Averagerecordedinvestment

during the period $509 $415 $354

Loanincome recognized 25 9 18

Loan income that would have been

recognizedon an accrualbasis

duringthe period 31 24 27

Allowance for Loan and Guarantee Losses

Sovereign-guaranteed portfolio: A collective evaluation of
collectibility is performed for sovereign-guaranteed loans and
guarantees. Historically, virtually allthe sovereign-guaranteed
loan portfolio hasbeen fully performing. The Bankdoes not
reschedule sovereign-guaranteed loansandhasnot writtenoff,
andhasno expectation of writing off,suchloans. However, in
the past the Bankhasexperienced delays hi the receipt of debt
service payments, sometimes for more than six months. Since
theBank does notcharge interest onmissed interest payments
for these loans, suchdelay in debtservice payments isviewed
asa potential impairment asthe timingof the cash flows may
not be met in accordance with the terms of the loan contract
A collective allowance is recognized for this exposure.

NSG portfolio: For NSG loansand guarantees, a collective loss
allowance is determined based on the Bank's credit risk clas
sificationsystem that maps on a one to one basisto that of the
S&P foreign currency credit rating, with an estimated proba
bilityof default timehorizonof threeyears (fiveyears in2015).
Based upon (i) the probability of defaultrate foreachtransac
tion,(ii) theamount of credit exposure and(iii) the loss given
default ratio (LGD), the required level of the collective loss
allowance is determined.
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The Bankhasspecific loss allowances for impaired loans,
which areindividuallyevaluated, as describedin Note B.

The changes in the allowance for loan and guarantee
losses for the years ended December31, 2016, 2015and 2014
were as follows (in millions):

2016 2015 2014

Balance, beginningof year $ 446 $ 373 $ 255

Provision for loan and

guarantee losses 142 73 118

Write-ofT (53) - -
Balance, end of year. $ 535 $446 $373

Composed of:

Allowance for loan losses $ 532 $ 444 $ 370

Allowance forguarantee losses(l)- 3 2 3

Total $ 535 $446 $373

(l) Theallowance for guarantee losses is included in Otherliabilities in
the Balance Sheet.

The changes in the allowance for loan and guarantee
losses by portfolio for the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014 were as follows (hi millions):

Sovereign-guaranteed portfolio:

Collective allowance 2016 2015 2014

Balance, beginningofyear. $ 5 $ 14 $ 5

Provision (credit) for loan and

guarantee losses (3) (9) 9
Balance, end of year. $ 2 $ 5 $ 14

NSG portfolio:

Specific allowance 2016

Balance, beginningof year. $ 235

Provision for loan and

guarantee losses 152

Write-off. (53)
Balance, end ofyear

Collective allowance

Balance, beginningof year

Provision (credit) for loan and

guarantee losses

Balance, end of year.

2015 2014

$183 $ 88

52 95

$ 334 $235 $183

2016 2015 2014

$ 206 $176 $162

(7) 30 14

$ 199 $206 $176

Except for the impaired loans on the NSG portfolio, all
loansand guarantees havebeen collectively evaluated for im
pairment.

During 2016, there were no significant changes to the
Bank's policywith respect to the allowance for loanand guar-

antee losses. During2015, the impactof the enhancements to
the methodology used to calculate the collectiveallowance for
NSGloanandguarantee losses wasnot significant whencom
pare to the 2014 methodology.

Troubled debt restructurings
The Bankdoesnot reschedule its sovereign-guaranteed loans.
A modification of a NSG loan is considered a troubled debt

restructuring when the borroweris experiencing financial dif
ficultyand the Bank has granteda concessionto the borrower.

A restructuredloan is consideredimpairedwhen it does
not perform in accordancewith the contractual terms of the
restructuringagreement A loan restructuredunder a troubled
debt restructuring is consideredimpaired,until its extinguish
ment but it is not disclosed as such after the year it was re
structured,if the restructuringagreement specifiesan interest
rateequalto or greater than the ratethat the Bank waswilling
to acceptat the time of the restructuring for a new loan with
comparable risk, and the loan is not unpaired based on the
terms specifiedin the restructuring agreement.

During 2016, there were two troubled debt restructur
ings of NSG loans classifiedas impaired, with an outstanding
balanceof$100million and a specific allowanceforloan losses
of $86million. Such loan agreementswere mainly modified to
provide an additional facility to cover cost overruns, extend
the repayment date and commitment periods. There have
been no paymentdefaults afterthe restructurings weremade.

During2015, therewasa troubleddebt restructuring of
one NSG loan classifiedas impaired,with an outstanding bal
ance of $26 million. The restructuringwas implemented pur
suant to a plan that was approved unanimously by the bor
rower's creditors.As a result,the principalmodification to the
Bank's loan agreement consistedof an extensionof the repay
ment date. The immediate effect of the restructuring was a
reduction of the specific loan loss allowance by approximately
$4 million. There have been no payment defaults since the
restructuring wasmade.During2014, therewereno troubled
debt restructurings or paymentdefaults associated with loans
previously modified in troubled debt restructurings.

Note G - Receivable from Members

Receivable from members, which amounted to $215 million

and $230 million at December 31,2016 and 2015,respectively,
includes non-negotiable, non-interest-bearing demand notes
that havebeen accepted in lieu of the immediate paymentof
allor any partof a member's subscribed paid-in capital stock,
and non-negotiable, non-interest-bearing term notes received
in payment of MOV obligations. These obligations are shown
as a reduction of Equity on the Balance Sheet

In 2009, the Bank reached an agreement with one of its
borrowingmember countries regarding that member's MOV
obligations outstanding with the Ordinary Capital in the
amountof $252 million and agreed on a paymentschedule of
16 annual installments starting in 2010. As of December31,
2016, the amount outstanding was $142 million (2015 - $158
million).
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Note H - Property
At December 31,2016and 2015, Property, net consists of the
following (in millions):

Land,buildings, improvements, capitalized

software and equipment, at cost

Less: accumulateddepreciation

Total

2016

$810

(379)

$431

2015

$750

(349)

$401

Note I - Borrowings
Medium- and long-term borrowings at December 31, 2016
consist ofloans, notes and bonds issued in various currencies at
contracted interest rates ranging from 0.0%to 11.02%, before
swaps, and from (0.64%) (equivalent to 3 month JPY LIBOR
less58basispoints) to 7.08%, afterswaps, withvariousmaturity
dates through 2044.A schedule of the medium- and long-term
borrowingsand swapsat December31,2016 and 2015is shown
in Schedule 1-4.

The Bankalso has a short-term borrowing program (the
DiscountNote Program) under whichdiscount notes are issued
in amounts of not less than $100,000 and maturities ofno more
than 360days.AtDecember31,2016,the weighted average rate
of short-term borrowingswas0.49% (2015- 0.19%).

Borrowing expenses havebeen reducedby the net inter
estcomponentof relatedborrowingswaptransactionsamount
ing to $1,155million during 2016(2015- $1,480million;2014
- $1,641 million).

As of December 31, 2016and 2015, the maturitystruc
tureofmedium- andlong-term borrowings outstanding byyear
of maturity is as follows (in millions):

2016
2017 $ 11,740

2018 16,230

2019 15,187

2020 ;. 11,024

2021 7,276

2022 to 2026 15,622

2027 to 2031 870

2032 to 2036 8

2037 to 2041 629

2042 to 2044 1,175

Total $ 79,761

2015!
2016 $ 13,379

2017 11,908

2018 16,073

2019 10,739

2020 9,705

2021 to 2025.... 12,689

2026 to 2030.... 1,636

2031 to 2035 8

2036 to 2040.... 2

2041 to 2044.... 2,435

Total $ 78,574

Note J - Fair Value Option
The Bankhas elected the fair value option under GAAP for
most of its medium-and long-termdebt, to reducethe income
volatility resulting fromthe accounting asymmetry of marking
to marketborrowing swaps through incomewhile recognizing
all borrowings at amortized cost. Individual borrowings are
electedfor fairvaluereportingon an instrument byinstrument
basis,and the electionis made upon the initial recognition of a
borrowing and may not be revoked once an election is made.

However, incomevolatility still resultsfrom the changesin fair
valueof the Bank's lending swaps,which are not offset by cor
responding changes in the fairvalue of loans,as all the Bank's
loans are recorded at amortized cost In order to address this

income volatility, the Banktakes into consideration all of its
non-tradingfinancial instruments(i.e., borrowings, loansand
derivatives) in determining its fair value option elections for
borrowings.

The changes hi fair value for borrowings elected under
the fair value option have been recorded in die Statement of
Income and Retained Earnings for the years ended December
31,2016,2015, and 2014 as follows (hi millions):

2016 2015 2014

Borrowing expenses-Interest,
after swaps $ (1,349) $ (1,350) $ (1,503)

Net fairvalueadjustmentson
non-trading portfoliosand
foreigncurrencytransactions.. 850 2,558 1.257

Totalchangesin fair value
included in Net income $ (499) $ 1,208 $ (246)

The difference between the fair value amount and the

unpaid principal outstanding of borrowings measured at feu-
value as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, was as follows (in
millions):

2016 2015

Fairvalue. $ 51,506(,) $ 49,411(l)
Unpaidprincipaloutstanding 50,618 48,062
Fairvalue overunpaidprincipal

outstanding $ 888 $ 1,349

<" Includes accrued interest of$357 million and $346 million in 2016
and 2015,respectively.

Note K - Derivatives

Riskmanagement strategyand useof derivatives: The Bank's
financial risk management strategy is designed to strengthen
the Bank's ability to fulfill its purpose. This strategy consists
primarily of designing, implementing, updating, and monitor
ing the Bank's interrelated set of financial policies and guide
lines, andutilizing appropriate financial instruments andorga
nizational structures. The Bank faces risks that result from
market movements, primarily changes in interest andexchange
rates, which are mitigated through its integrated asset and lia
bility management framework. The objective of the assetand
liability management framework is to align thecurrency com
position, maturity profile and interest ratesensitivity character
istics of the assets and liabilities foreach liquidity and lending
product portfolio in accordance with the particular require
mentsfor that productand withinprescribed risk parameters.
When necessary, the Bankemploys derivatives to achieve this
alignment. These instruments, mostly currency and interest
rateswaps, are usedprimarily for economic hedging purposes,
but are not designated as hedging instruments for accounting
purposes.

A significant number of the current borrowing opera
tionsinclude swaps toeconomicallyhedge aspecific underlying
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liability, producing the funding required (i.e., the appropriate
currency and interest rate type). The Bank also uses lending
swaps to economicallyhedge fixed-rate, fixed-base cost rate
and local currency loans, and investment swaps that hedge a
particular underlyinginvestment security and produce the ap
propriate vehiclein which to invest existingcash. Included in
the Other category, the Bank utilizes interest rate swaps to
maintain the duration of its equity within a prescribed policy
band of 4 to 6 years.See Schedules1-1 and 1-4for further de
tails about investment and borrowing swaps.

Financialstatements presentation: All derivative instruments
are reported at fair value. The Bank's derivative instruments
and their relatedgains and lossesare presented in the Balance
Sheet the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings and the
Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss)as follows (in mil
lions):

Balance Sheet

Derivatives

not

Designated
as Hedging

Instruments

Currency

swaps

December 31,2016'" December 31,2015 <•>

Balance Sheet Location Assets

Currency and interest

rate swaps

Investments- Trading. S 218

Loans. 837

Borrowings. 343

Accrued interest and

other charges
-On swaps, net (11)

Currencyand interest
rate swaps

Investments• Trading. 41

Loans. 18

Borrowings. 575

Other. 22

Accrued interest and

other charges
-Onswaps, net 90

Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Interest rate

swaps

74

14

2,710

(60)

12

505

523

5

$ 2,133 $ 3.806

69

644

551

14

I

908

37

<•> Balances arereported gross, priorto counterparty nettingin accordance with

existingmasternettingderivativeagreements.

108

2

2378

(103)

41

673

208

5

Statement of Income and Retained Earnings and State
ment ofComprehensive Income (Loss)

Derivatives not

Designated as Location ofGain or (Loss) Years ended December 31,
Hedging Instruments from Derivatives 2016 2015 2014

Currency swaps

Investments - Trading Income from Investments:

Interest S (67) $ (63) S (13)

Net gains(losses) 164 101 14

Net fairvalueadjustments on
non-tradingportfoliosand
foreign currencytransactions 106 234 236

Loans Income from Loans-Interest,

aftcrswaps. (99) (89) (102)

Net fairvalueadjustments on
non-trading portfoliosand
foreign currencytransactions 365 478 349

Borrowings Borrowing expenses-Interest,
aftcrswaps 514 673 837

Net fairvalueadjustments on
non-tradingportfoliosand
foreign currencytransactions (650) (2,083) (1,288)

Interest rate swaps

Investments- Trading Income from Investments:

Interest (72) (84) (69)

Net gains (losses) 69 5 8

Loans Income from Loans-Interest,
aftcrswaps (223) (264) (289)

Net fairvalueadjustments on
non-tradingportfoliosand
foreigncurrency transactions 185 67 (242)

Borrowings Borrowing expenses-Interest,
afterswaps. 641 807 804

Net fairvalueadjustments on
non-tradingportfoliosand
foreign currencytransactions (633) (135) 389

Other Other interest income 23 35 44

Net fairvalueadjustments on
non-trading portfolios and
foreign currencytransactions (15) (11) (6)

Futures Income from Investments-

Net gains (losses) L 2 1
$ 309 5(329) $ 672

Currently, the Bank is not required to post collateral
under its derivativeagreements.Should the Bank's credit rating
be downgraded from the current AAA, the standard swap
agreements detail, by swap counterparty, the collateral require
ments the Bank would need to satisfy in this event. The aggre
gate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk re
lated contingent features that are in a liability position at
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December 31, 2016 is $1,944 million (2015 - $1,746 million)
(after consideration of master netting derivativeagreements).If
the Bank was downgraded one notch from the current AAA
credit rating, it would be required to post collateral in the
amount of $1,060 million at December 31, 2016 (2015 - $641
million).

The following table provides information on the contract
value/notional amounts ofderivative instruments as of Decem

ber 31,2016 and 2015(in millions). Currencyswapsare shown
at face value and interest rate swaps are shown at the notional
amount of each individual payableor receivable leg.

December 31,2016
Derivative type/ Currency swaps Interest Rate swaps

Rate type Receivable Payable Receivable Payable
Investments

Fixed $ 150 $ 5,922 $ - $ 7,325

Adjustable 6,142 - 7,325

Loans

Fixed - 1,071 12 7,615

Adjustable 3,358 130 7,615 12

Borrowings

Fixed 14,279 313 50,625 348

Adjustable 1,003 17,792 4,202 54,371

Other

Fixed - - 1,630 300

Adjustable - - 300 1,630

December31,2015

Derivative type/ Currency swaps Interest Rate swaps

Ratetype Receivable Payable Receivable Payable

Investments

Fixed $ - $ 4,822 $ - $ 8,416

Adjustable 4,949 - 8,416

Loans

Fixed - 745 31 8,455

Adjustable 3,473 2,107 8,455 31

Borrowings

Fixed 14,263 186 49,841 349

Adjustable 1345 18,111 4,402 53,387

Other

Fixed - - 2,036 350

Adjustable.... - - 350 2,036

The Bank's derivatives are subject to enforceable master
netting agreements (the Agreements). The Bankhas made the
accountingpolicy election to present all derivative assets and
liabilities on a grossbasis.The grossand net informationabout
the Bank's derivatives subjectto the Agreementsas of December
31,2016 and 2015 are as follows (in millions):

Description

Derivatives

Description

Derivatives

Gross Amounts

of Assets

Presented in the

Balance Sheet"'

$ 2,133

Gross Amounts

of Liabilities

Presented in the

Balance Sheet'21

$ (3,805)

December 31,2016

Gross Amounts Not Offset

in the Balance Sheet

Financial

Instruments

$ (1,861)

Collateral

Received01

$ (209)

Gross Amounts Not Offset

in the Balance Sheet

Financial

Instruments

$ 1,861

Collateral

Pledged

December 31,2015

Net Amount

$ 63

Net Amount

$ (1,944)

Gross Amounts Gross Amounts Not Offset

ofAssets in the Balance Sheet
Presented in the Financial Collateral

Description BalanceSheet "> Instruments Receivedm Net Amount
Derivatives $ 2,382 $ (1,782) $ (549) $ 51

Gross Amounts Gross Amounts Not Offset

of Liabilities in the Balance Sheet
Presented in the Financial Collateral

Description Balance Sheetm Instruments Pledged Net Amount

Derivatives $ (3,528) $ 1,782 $ - $ (1,746)

'" Includes accrued interest of $79 million and $158 million, in 2016 and 2015.

respectively, presented In the BalanceSheet under Accrued interest and
other charges- On swaps,net

m Includesaccrued interest of $(37) million and $(87) million, in 2016 and 2015,

respectively, presentedin the BalanceSheetunder Accruedinterestand
other charges- On swaps,net

(]| Cash collateral amounts to $277 million (2015 - $440 million). The

remainingamountsrepresentoff-Balance SheetUS. Treasury securities
received ascollateral bythe Bank.

The Bank enters into swaps and other over-the-counter
derivatives directly with trading counterparties. These deriva
tivesare entered into under trade relationshipdocuments based
upon standard forms published by the International Swapsand
Derivatives Association (ISDA), in particular an ISDA Master
Agreement(ISDA Agreements).

Close-out netting provisions
The close-out netting provisions of the ISDA Agreements pro
vide for the calculationof a single lump sum amount upon the
earlytermination of transactionsfollowing the occurrence of an
event of default or termination event. The setoff provisions of
the ISDA Agreementsallow the non-defaulting party to deter
mine whether setoffapplies.If so, any lump sum amount calcu
latedfollowing the earlytermination of transactionspayable by
the non-defaulting party to the other party may be applied to
reduce any amounts that the other party owesthe non-default
ing party under other agreements between them. This setoff, if
enforceable in the circumstances of a given early termination,
effectively reduces the amount payable by the non-defaulting
party under the applicableISDA Agreement

Terms ofcollateral agreements

Currendy, the Bank is not required to post collateral under its
ISDA Agreements. The performance of the obligations of the
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Bank's counterparties may be supported by collateral provided
under a credit support annex (CSA). The CSA provides for
credit support to collateralize the Bank's mark-to-marketexpo
sure to its counterparties in the form of U.S. Dollars and U.S.
TreasuryObligations. The Bankmaysell,pledge,re-hypothecate
or otherwise treat as its own property such collateral, where
permissible,subject only to the obligation (i) to return such col
lateral and (ii) to pass on distributions with respect to any non
cash collateral.

If an event of default has occurred, the Bank may exercise
certain rightsand remedieswith respectto the collateral These
rights include (i) all rights and remedies available to a secured
party; (ii) the right to set off any amounts payableby the coun
terparty with respect to any obligations against any collateral
held by the Bank; and (iii) the right to liquidate any collateral
held by the Bank.

The Bank classifies the cash collateral received under Cash

flowsfrom financingactivitiesin the Statementof Cash Flows as
this collateral primarily relates to borrowing swaps.

Note L - Fair Value Measurements

The frameworkfor measuring fair value establishes a fair value
hierarchythat prioritizesthe inputs to valuationtechniquesused
to measurefair value.The hierarchygivesthe highestpriority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assetsor
liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable in
puts (Level3). The three levelsof the fair value hierarchy are as
follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets;

Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not

active;or pricing models for which all significant
inputs are observable, either directly or indi
rectly, for substantially the full term of the asset
or liability;

Level 3 - Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs
that are both significant to the fair value mea
surement and unobservable.

The Bank's investment instruments valued based on

quoted market prices in active markets, a valuation technique
consistentwith the market approach,may includeobligationsof
the UnitedStatesand certainother sovereign governments. Such
instruments are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierar

chy.
Substantially all other Bank investment instruments are

valued based on quoted prices in markets that are not active,
external pricing services, where available, solicited broker/
dealer prices or prices derived from alternative pricing models,
utilizingavailableobservable market inputs and discounted cash
flows. Thesemethodologies applyto investments in obligations
of governments and agencies,obligationsof sub-sovereigns and
supranational, corporate bonds, asset-backed and mortgage-
backedsecurities,bank obligations,and related financialderiva

tive instruments (primarily currency and interest rate swaps).
These instruments are classified within Level 2 of the fair value

hierarchy and are measured at fair value usingvaluation tech
niques consistent with the market and income approaches.

The main methodology of external pricing service pro
viders involves a "market approach" that requires a predeter
mined activityvolumeof market prices to developa composite
price.The market prices utilized are provided by orderly trans
actionsbeingexecutedin the relevantmarket;transactionsthat
are not orderlyand outlyingmarket prices are filteredout in the
determination of the composite price. Other external price
providers utilize evaluated pricing models that vary by asset
class and incorporate available market information through
benchmark curves, benchmarking of like securities, sector
groupings,and matrix pricing to prepare valuations.

A small number of investment securities are also valued

with prices obtained from brokers/dealers. Brokers/dealers'
prices may be based on a variety of inputs ranging from ob
served prices to proprietary valuation models. The Bank re
viewsthe reasonabilityof brokers/dealers' prices via the deter
mination of fair value estimates from internal valuation

techniques that use availableobservable market inputs.
Medium- and long-term borrowings elected under the

fair value option and all currency and interest rate swaps are
valued using quantitative models, including discounted cash
flow models as well as more advanced option modeling tech
niques, when necessary,depending on the specificstructures of
the instruments. These models and techniques require the use
of multiplemarket inputs including market yieldcurves,and/or
exchange rates, interest rates, spreads, volatilitiesand correla
tions. Significant market inputs are observable during the full
term of these instruments. The Bank also considers, consistent
with the requirements of the framework for measuring fair
value,the impact of its own creditworthinessin the valuationof
its liabilities. These instruments are classified within Level 2 of

the fair valuehierarchy in viewof the observability of the sig
nificant inputs to the models and are measured at fair value
using valuation techniques consistent with the market and in
come approaches.

Level 3 investment, borrowing and swap instruments, if
any, are valued using Management's best estimates utilizing
available information including (i) external price providers,
whereavailable, or broker/dealer prices;when lessliquidityex
ists,a quotedpriceis out of date or pricesamongbrokers/deal
ers vary significantly, other valuation techniques may be used
(i.e., a combination of the market approach and the income
approach) and (ii) market yield curves of other instruments,
used as a proxy for the instruments' yield curves, for borrow
ings and related swaps. These methodologies are valuation
techniquesconsistent with the market and income approaches.

The following tables set forth the Bank's financial assets
and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value as of Decem

ber 31, 2016and 2015by levelwithin the fair value hierarchy
(in millions). As requiredby the framework for measuring fair
value, financial assets and liabilities are classified in their en

tiretybasedon the lowestlevelof input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.



F-22

ORDINARY CAPITAL

INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Financial assets:
Fair Value

Measurements

Assets December 31, 2016"1 Level 1 level 2 level 3
Investments - Trading:

Obligations of the
United States Government

and its corporations and
agencies $ 2,037 S 2,037 S - S •

U.S. Government-

sponsored enterprises 462 - 462

Obligations of non-U.S.

governments 5,900 1,844 4,056

Obligations of non-U.S.

agencies 8,319 - 8,319

Obligations of non-U.S.

sub-sovereigns 1,440 - 1,440

Obligations of

supranational 1,683 - 1,683

Bankobligations,!1 6,881 - 6,881

Corporate securities 490 - 490

Mortgage-backed securities 171 - 171

Asset-backed securities 34 - 2(1 II

Total Investments -

Trading 27,417 3,881 23.522 14

Currency and interest

rate swaps 2,133 - 2.133

Total S 29,550 $3,881 525,655 S 14

"' Represents the fairvalueof the referredassets,includingtheir accruedinterest
presented on the BalanceSheet under Accrued interest and other charges - On
investments of S125millionfor trading investmentsand under Accruedinterestand
other charges - On swaps, net of S79 million for currency and interest rate swaps.

'-'' Mayincludebank notesand bonds, certificates of deposit,commercial paper,
and money market deposits.

Fair Value

Measurements

Assets December 31,2015'" Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments - Trading:

Obligations of the
United Slates Government

and its corporations and

agencies S 3,977 S 3,977 S - $ -
U.S. Government-

sponsored enterprises 296 - 296

Obligations of non-U.S.
governments 5,757 1,813 3,944

Obligations of non-U.S.
agencies 8,633 - 8,633

Obligations of non-U.S.
sub-sovereigns 1,496 - 1,496

Obligations of
supranational 2,501 - 2,501

Bank obligations01 5,023 - 5,023
Corporate securities 55 55

Mortgage-backed securities. 213 - 213
Asset-backed securities 48 - 34 14

Total Investments -

Trading 27,999 5,790 22,195 II
Currency and interest

rateswaps 2,382 • 2,382 •
Total S 30,381 $ 5,790 S 24,577 _$ 14

111 Representsthe fairvalue of the referred assets, including iheir accrued interest

presentedand money on the BalanceSheetunder Accrued interest and other
charges- On investments of S98millionfortradinginvestments and under Accrued
interestand other charges- On swaps,net of SI58 millionforcurrencyand interest
rate swaps.

t:i Mayinclude bank notes and bonds, certificatesof deposit, commercial paper,
and money market deposits.

Financial liabilities:
Fair Value

Measurements

Liabilities December 31, 2016"' Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Borrowingsmeasured

at fair value S 51,506 S $ 51,506 S

Currency andinterest
rate swaps 3,806

S 55,312

3,806

S "-",,312Total $ S

'" Represents thefairvalue ofthi referred liabilities including theiraccrued interest

presented on the BalanceShett under Accrued interest on borrowings of S357million

forborrowings and under Acirued interestand other charges-Onswaps net of S(37)
millionlor currency and intct :st rate swaps.

Liabilities

Fair Value

Measurements

December 31,2015'" Lei d l Level 2

S 49,411

3,528

Level 3

Borrowingsmeasured

at fair value

Currencyand interest

rate swaps

S 49.411

3,528

s S

Total S 52,-.;9 s S

"' Represents thefairvalue of he referred liabilities, including theiraccrued interest
presentedon the Balance Shetl under Accruedintereston borrowingsof S346million
for borrowings and under Accrued interest and other charges-On swaps, net of S(87)
millionforcurrencyand inter:st rateswaps.

As of December 31, 2016and 2015, the investment port
folio includes $14 trillion of securities classified as Level 3. The

pricing information for these securities is not developed or ad
justed by the Bank, «nd is obtained through external pricing
sources.

The significant anobservableinputs used in the fair value
measurements of the Bank's investments in asset-backed securi

ties classified as Level 3 are prepayment rates, probability of
default, and loss severity in the event of default. Significant in
creases (decreases) in any of those inputs in isolation would
result in a significanty lower (higher) fair value measurement.
Generally, a change in the assumption used for the probability
of default is accompanied by a directionally similar change in
the assumption used lor the loss severity and a directionally op
posite change in the assumption used for prepayment rates.

The Treasury Division is responsible for mark-to-market
valuations for financial statement purposes of investments, bor
rowings, and derivatives, including those with significant unob
servable inputs, and reports to the Treasurer of the Bank. The
AccountingDivision is responsiblefor monitoring, controlling,
recording and reporting fair values related to investments, bor
rowingsand all derivatives. The two groups work in closecoor
dination to monitor the reasonableness of fair values. Such

monitoring includes but is not limited to validation against
counterparty values, internally developed models, and indepen
dent price quotes for similar instruments, when available.

The tables below show a reconciliation of the beginning
and ending balances of all financial assets measured at fair value
on a recurring basi; using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) for the years ended December 31,2016,2015 and 2014
(in millions). There were no Level 3 financial liabilities at De-
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cember 31,2016,2015 and 2014.

Financial assets:
FairValue Measurements Using

Significant
Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Year Ended December 31,2016

Currency
and

Investments- Interest

Trading Rate Swaps Total

$14 $- $ 14Balance, beginningof year

Total gains includedin Net income*".
Settlements

Balance, end of year.

Total gains for the year included in

Net income attributable to the

changein unrealizedgainsor
losses related to assets still held

atthe end of the year"'

Balance, beginningof year
Totalgains includedin Net income"'.
Settlements.

Balance, end of year.

Total losses for the year included in

Net income attributable to the

changein unrealized gainsor

losses relatedto assets still held

at the end of the year("

Balance, beginningofyear.

Totalgains includedin Net income"'
Settlements.

Balance, end of year.

Totalgainsforthe yearincluded
in Net income attributable to

the changein unrealizedgains

or losses related to assets still held

held at the end ofthe year $

2

$14

$ 1

— _J2J
$- $ 14

$- $ 1

FairValue Measurements Using
Significant

Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

Year Ended December 31,2015

Currency
and

Investments- Interest

Trading Rate Swaps Total

$ 15 $- $ 15

(2) (2)

$ 14 $- $ 14

SO) $ (1)

FairValue Measurements Using
Significant

Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

Year Ended December 31,2014
Currency and

Investments- Interest Rate

Trading Swaps Total

$ 20 $- $ 20

2 - 2

(7)
- (7)

$ 15 s- $ IS

("Gains(losses) on Level3 financial assets arereported in Income from
Investments-Net gains(losses) in the Statementof Income and Reta
ined Earnings.

There were no transfers between levels during 2016,
2015 or 2014, for securities held at the end of those reporting
periods. The Bank's policy for transfers between levels is to
reflect these transfersas of the beginning of the reporting pe
riod.

The Bank accounts for its loans and certain borrowings
at amortized cost with their corresponding fair value disclo
sures included in Note X - Fair Values of Financial Instru

ments.

The fair value of the loan portfolio, which amounted to
approximately $83,597 million as of December 31, 2016
($81,060 million as of December 31, 2015), was determined
using a discounted cash flow method (income approach) by
which cash flows are discounted at (i) applicable market yield
curves adjusted for the Bank'sown funding cost plus its lend
ing spread, for sovereign-guaranteed loans, and (ii) market
yield curves consistent with the borrower's S&P credit rating
equivalent, for NSG loans.The Bank is one ofvery few lenders
of development loans to Latin American and Caribbeancoun
tries and, it does not sell its loans nor does it believe there is a

comparable market for its loans.Therefore, this methodology
has been developed based on valuation assumptions that man
agement believes a market participant in an assumed transac
tion would use in pricingthe Bank'sloans.The Bank considers
that, for its sovereign-guaranteed loans, multilateral lending
institutions that share the Bank'sdevelopmental mission would
constitute the most appropriate assumed market participants
to which the Bank would sell its loans in an orderly transac
tion. The valuation assumptions used include observable in
puts, such as the market yield curves mainly basedon LIBOR,
and unobservable inputs, such as internal credit risk assump
tions. Due to the factthat the unobservableinputs areconsid
ered significant, the fair value disclosure of the Bank's loan
portfolio has been classifiedas Level 3.

The fairvalue of borrowingsrecordedat amortized cost,
which amounted to approximately $29,317 million as of De
cember 31, 2016 ($30,436 million as of December 31, 2015),
was determined using the same inputs and valuation tech
niques as disclosed above for the borrowings recorded at fair
value.Such valuationtechniques arebasedon discounted cash
flowsor pricingmodels (income approach) and utilize market
observable inputs. Accordingly, the fair value disclosure for
borrowings recorded at amortized cost is considered Level 2
under the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the EEA guarantees given, which
amounted to approximately $560 million as of December 31,
2016(2015 - $605million) wasdetermined usingadiscounted
cash flow method (income approach) by which cash flowsare
discounted at applicable market yield curves adjusted for the
Bank's own fundingcost plus its lendingspread. The valuation
assumptions used include observable inputs, such as the mar
ket yield curves mainly based on LIBOR, and unobservable
inputs, such as internalcredit risk assumptions.Due to the fact
that the unobservable inputsareconsidered significant, the fair
valueof the Bank's EEA guarantees given have been classified
as Level 3.

As a result of a NSG loan restructuring, the Bank re-
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ceived certainfinancial assetsin lieuof repayment. Suchfinan
cial assets are carried at a fair value of $21 million as ofDecem

ber 31, 2016 and reported hi Other assets - Miscellaneouson
the Balance Sheet. The fair value of such financial assets are

measuredusingdiscountedcashflowmodelswithmarketyield
curves and proxy option adjusted spreads, consistent with the
incomeapproach.As certain inputs are unobservable and sig
nificant to the valuation, the fair value of such financial assets
is classified as Level 3.

Note M - Commercial Credit Risk

Commercialcredit risk is the exposure to losses that could re
sult fromthe defaultof one of the Bank's investment, tradingor
derivative counterparties. The mam sources of commercial
credit risk are the financial instruments in which the Bank in

vests its liquidity. The primaryobjective in the management of
the liquid assets is the maintenance of a conservativeexposure
to credit, market and liquidity risks. Consequently, the Bank
investsonly in high quality debt instruments issued by sover
eign and sub-sovereign governments, agencies, supranational,
banks and corporate entities, including asset-backed and
mortgage-backed securities, as further discussed in Note D -
Investments. In addition, the Banklimits its capitalmarket ac
tivities to authorized counterparties, issuers and dealers se
lectedon the basisof the Bank's risk management policies, and
establishes exposureand term limits for those counterparties,
issuers and dealers based on their size and creditworthiness.

As part of its regular investment, lending, funding and
asset and liabilitymanagement activities,the Bank uses deriva
tive instruments, mostly currency and interest rate swaps,pri
marily for economic hedging purposes. The Bank has estab
lishedexposurelimits for each derivative counterpartyand has
entered into master derivativeagreementsthat contain enforce
ableclose-outnetting provisions.These master agreementsalso
provide for collateralization hi the event that the mark-to-
market exposure exceeds certain contractual limits. The Bank
does not expect nonperformance by any of its derivativecoun
terparties.As of December31,2016, the Bankhad received eli
giblecollateral(U.S. Treasuriesand cash) of $328million (2015
- $705million), as required under its master derivativeagree
ments.

The derivative current credit exposures shown below
represent the maximum potential loss, based on the gross fair
value of the financial instruments without consideration of

close-out netting provisions on master derivative agreements,
the Bank would incur if the parties to the derivativefinancial
instruments foiled completely to perform according to the
terms of the contracts and the collateralor other security,if any,
for the amount due proved to be of no value. As of December
31, 2016 and 2015, such credit exposures, prior to consider
ation of any master derivative agreements or posted collateral,
were as follows (in millions):

Investments- Trading Portfolio
Currency swaps
Interest rate swaps

Loan Portfolio

Currency swaps
Interest rate swaps

BorrowingPortfolio
Currency swaps
Interest rate swaps

Other

Interest rate swaps

2016

$ 194

34

818

18

381

677

23

2015

55

8

624

1

588

1,079

39

Note N - Board ofGovernors approved transfers
As part of the ninth general increase in the resources of the
Bank(IDB-9), the BoardofGovernors agreed, in principleand
subjectto annualapprovals by the Boardof Governors, to pro
vide $200 million annually in transfers of Ordinary Capital
income to the IDB Grant Facility, beginning in 2011 through
2020.During 2011- 2015, the Bank approved income transfers
from the Ordinary Capital in the amount of $200million each
year for a total of $1,000million.

Consistent with G-20 recommendations to Multilateral

Development Banks to seek further financial efficiencies, in
April 2016 the Boardof Governors reaffirmed its supportfor
Haiti's reconstruction and development and agreed to con
sider further transfers of Ordinary Capital income (up to a
total amount of $1,000 million), consistent with the disburse
mentneedsof the GRF's operations in Haiti, and maintaining
the GRF's fundbalance at $300 million asof January 1ofeach
year. OrdinaryCapital incometransfers remainsubject to the
requirementsof the Agreementand other applicable financial
policies. As a result, no Ordinary Capital income transfers
wereapprovedby the Boardof Governorshi 2016.

Such incometransfers are recognized asan expense when
approvedby the Boardof Governorsand funded in accordance
with the IDBGrant Facility funding requirements. The undis
bursedportion ofapprovedtransfersis presentedunder Due to
IDBGrant Facilityon the BalanceSheet.

Note O - Undisbursed special programs
The following is a summary of changesin Undisbursedspecial
programsfor the yearsended December 31,2016 and 2015(in
millions):

Undisbursedspecialprogramsas of January 1

Special programs approved.

Cancellations

Specialprograms, net

Disbursements.

Undisbursed special programs asof December31...

2016 2015

$238 $244

100 105

(9) (10)

91 95

(109) (101)

$220 $238
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Note P - Capital Stock and Voting Power
Capital stock
On February 29, 2012, the IDB-9 entered into effect providing
for an increase in the Bank's Ordinary Capital of $70,000 mil
lion, subscribed by Bank members in five annual installments
beginning hi 2012.Of this amount, $1,700million was paid-in
capital stock and the remainder constituted callable capital
stock.

On February 29, 2016, the effective date of the fifth and
last installment, 1,160,644 shares in the amount of $14,001 mil
lion were made effective($340 million paid-in; $13,661 million
callable).

In 2009, Canada subscribed to 334,887 shares of non
voting callablecapital stock.The terms and conditions of Cana
da'ssubscription stipulated that the subscription was on a tem
porary basis, with Canada having the right to replace its
temporary subscription with shares issued under a future capi
tal increase, asand wheneffective. Accordingly, whenthe IDB-9
becameeffective, Canada exercised its right, and from 2012to
2015 replaced a total of 181,212 non-voting callable shares in
the amount of $2,186 million with an equal amount of voting
callableshares. In addition, in July2014 and 2015,Canada re
turned the remaining non-voting callable shares (83,722 and
69,953 in the amount of $1,010 million and $844 million, re
spectively).

A scheduleof subscriptions to capitalstockispresentedin
Schedule 1-5. The changesin subscribedcapitalduring the years
ended December 31,2016 and 2015 were as follows (in millions,
except for share information):

Subscribed capital

Balance at

January 1,2015

Subscriptions

during 2015

Canada's replacement

of callablecapital.... (45303)

Canada's return

of callablecapital.... (69,953)

Balance at

December 31,2015... 13,009,464 5,699 151.240 156.939

Subscriptions

during2016 1,160.644 340 13.661 14,001

Balance at

December31.2016... 14.170,108 S 6,039 $ 164,901 $ 170,940

Shares Paid-in Callable Total

1,958,339 $ 5,357 $ 138,901 $ 144,258

1.166381 342 13,729 14,071

(546) (546)

(844) (844)

Voting power
Under the Agreement, each member country shall have 135
votes plus one vote for each voting share of the Bank held by
that country. The Agreement also provides that no increasein
the capital stock subscription of any member shall have the ef
fect of reducing the voting power of the regional developing
members below 50.005%, of the United States below 30%, and
of Canadabelow 4%of the total votingpower, leaving the re
maining voting power available for non-regional membersat a

maximum of 15.995%, including approximately5%for Japan.
Total capital stock subscriptions and the voting power of

the member countries as of December 31, 2016 are shown in

the schedule of subscriptions to capital stock and voting power
hi Schedule 1-6.

Note Q - Retained Earnings
The composition of Retainedearnings as of December 31,2016
and 2015 is as follows (in millions):

General reserve.

Specialreserve..
Total

2016

$ 17390

2,665

$ 20,055

2015

16342

2,665

$ 19,207

Note R - Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Currently,Other comprehensive income (loss) in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income (Loss) is comprised of the effectsof
the pension and postretirement benefits accounting require
ments. Refer to Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, Currency Accounting, for additional information. The
following is a summary of changes in Accumulatedother com
prehensiveincome for the years ended December 31,2016,2015
and 2014 (in millions):

Balanceat January1,2014

Recognitionof changes in

assets/liabilities under

retirementbenefitplans:

Prior service credit

Net actuarial losses

Balance at December 31,2014

Recognition of changesin

assets/liabilities under

retirementbenefitplans:

Prior service credit

Net actuarial gains

Reclassification to income-

amortization oft

Prior service credit

Net actuarial losses

Balance at December 31,2015

Recognition ofchangesin

assets/liabilities under

retirementbenefitplans:

Net actuarial losses

Reclassification to income-

amortization of:

Prior service credit

Net actuarial losses

Balance at December 31,2016

Translation Adjustments
Allocation

General Special Pension
Reserve Reserve Adjustments Total

S (100) $ 263 $ 1,174

(100)

(100)

22

(772)

(487)

22

(772)

424

65 65

122 122

(3) (3)

45 45

(258) 653

(40)

(ID

3

(40)

(H)

3

S (100) $ (306) $ 605
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The amortization of prior service cost (credit) and net
actuarialgainsand losses, if any,is a componentof the net peri
odicbenefitcost reported under Administrative expenses in the
Statementof Incomeand RetainedEarnings. Referto NoteT -
Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans, for additional infor
mation.

Note S - Net FairValue Adjustments on Non-trading Portfo
lios and Foreign Currency Transactions
Net fair valueadjustments on non-trading portfolios and for
eign currency transaction gains and losses for the years ended
December31, 2016, 2015and 2014comprisethe following (in
millions):

Years ended December 31,

2016

Fairvalueadjustments - gains(losses)(l>
Borrowings $ 850

Derivatives

Borrowingswaps. (1,283)

Lendingswaps 550

Equityduration swaps. (15)

Currencytransaction gains(tosses)on

borrowingsand loans

at amortized cost, and other. (281)

2015 2014

$ 2358 $ 1,257

(2,218)

545

(11)

(899)

107

(6)

(431) (363)

$(179) $ 443 $ 96

'"Amountsincludeforeign currencytransactiongainsand losses, as
detailed below.

Net fair value adjustments of $(179) million (2015 - $443
million;2014- $96 million) mostly relate to changesin the fair
valueof (i) borrowings at fair valuedue to changes in the Bank's
own credit spreads, (ii) lending and certain borrowing swaps
due to changesin USD interest rates, which are not offsetwith
changesin the value of the related loans and borrowings since
theyare not recordedat fairvalue,as wellas (iii) equityduration
swapsdue to changesin USDinterest rates.

The Bank transacts in multiple currencies. However,as
sets and liabilities, after swaps,are substantiallyheld hi United
Statesdollars.The Bankseeksto minimizeexchangerate riskby
matchingthe currenciesof its liabilities with those of its assets
and by maintaining substantiallyall its equity in United States
dollars. Accordingly, exchange rate fluctuations have a mini
mum impact on earnings. The impact of foreign exchange
fluctuations, included in the table above, for the years ended
December31,2016,2015 and 2014,comprise the following (in
millions):

Years ended December 31,

2016

Currency transactiongains (losses):

Borrowings, at fairvalue. $ 367

Derivatives, at fair value

Borrowingswaps (402)

Lendingswaps 328

Currencytransactiongains(losses)

related to:

Borrowingsat amortizedcost

Loans.

Other.

TotaL $

293

11

(303)

11

(281)

2015

$ 1,953

(1,955)

434

432

73

(440)

(64)

(431)

2014

$ 1.730

(1.699)

327

358

80

(338)

(105)

(363)

(5)

Note T - Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

The Bankhas three definedbenefitretirementplans(Plans)for
providing pension benefits to employeesof the Bank and the
IIC: the StaffRetirement Plan (SRP) and the Complementary
StaffRetirement Plan(CSRP) for international employees, and
the Local Retirement Plan(LRP) for nationalemployees of the
Bankin thecountryoffices. The Plansare fundedbyemployee,
Bankand IIC contributions in accordance with the provisions
of the Plans. All Bank and IIC contributions to the Plans are

irrevocable and are held separately in retirementfunds solely
for the paymentof benefits under the Plans.

The Bank also provides health care, tax reimbursement,
and certain other benefits to retirees. Employees who retire,
receive a monthly pension from the Bank or the IIC, and meet
certain requirements, are eligible for postretirement benefits.
Retirees contribute toward the Bank's health care program
based on an established premium schedule. The Bank and the
IIC contribute the remainder of the actuariallydetermined cost
of future postretirement benefits under the Postretirement
Benefit Plan (PRBP). While all contributions and all other as
sets and incomeof the PRBP remain the property of the Bank,
they are held and administered separatelyand apart from the
other property and assetsof the Bank solelyfor the purpose of
payment of benefits under the PRBP.

Since both the Bank and the IIC participate in the SRP
and the PRBP, each employer presents its respective share of
these plans. The amounts presented below reflect the Bank's
shareof costs,assetsand obligationsof the Plansand the PRBP.

Obligations and funded status
The Bank uses a December 31 measurement date for the Plans

and the PRBP. The following table summarizes the Bank's
changein benefitobligation,change in plan assets,and funded
statusof the Plansand the PRBP, and the amounts recognized
on the Balance Sheet for the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014 (in millions):
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Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefit*

2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

Changein benefit obligation

Benefitobligation, beginningof
ofyear. S3.75I $3,874 $3,251 $ 1,785 $ 1,940 $ 1326

Service cost 88 107 80 40 55 43

Interest cost 152 147 154 73 75 75

Net transfersinto the plan"'... (54) - 1 (40)

Plan participants'contributions 24 25 25

Retireedrug subsidyreceived.. • - - I 1 -

Plan amendment .... (65) (22)

Benefitspaid (133) (128) (123) (39) (37) (34)

Net actuarial (gains)losses. .. 102 (274) 486 44 (184) 352

Benefitobligation,end ofyear. 3,930 3.751 3374 1,864 1.785 1.940

Change In plan assets

Fairvalueof planassets.
beginning ofyear. 36J9 3715 3329 1355 1,534 1,467

Nettransfers intothe plan"1... (54) - I (40)

Actualreturnon planassets.. . 286 (27) 231 118 (21) 123

Employercontribution 50 54 52 27 29 28

Planparticipants'contributions 24 25 25

Benefitspaid (133) (128) (123) (39) (37) (34)
Fairvalueof planassets,end

Fundedstatus,end ofyear

3.812

. S (118)

3,639

S (H2)

3,715

$ (159)

1,621

S (243)

1355

$ (230)

1.584

$ (356)

Amounts recognizedin

Accumulated other

comprehensive

income consist of:

Net actuarial losses . S 216 $ 192 $ 263 S 164 $ 151 $ 247

.

$ 263

(73)

S 91

(84)

S 67

(22)

$ 216 $ 192 S 225

111 Includes $51millionand$36millionof pensionandpostretirement benefit
obligations/pensionassetstransferredto the IICasa resultof certainemployees

transferred from the Bank to the IIC, in connection with the transfer to the IIC of

operationaland administrative functions and non-financial resources associated

with NSG activities.

Liabilities under retirement benefit plans presented on
the Balance Sheet comprises the funded status of those benefit
plans that are in an under-funded position. In 2016 and 2015,
the Plans were under-funded with aggregate fair value of the
Plans'assetsof$5,433 millionand $5,194 millionand aggregate
benefit obligations of $5,794 million and $5,536 million, re
spectively, contributingto the total liabilityof $361 millionand
$342 million as of December 31,2016 and 2015.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Plans,which
excludes the effectof future salary increases, was $3,566 mil
lion, $3,397 million, and $3,488 million at December 31, 2016,
2015and 2014, respectively.

Net periodic benefit cost, recognized in Administrative
expenses, and other changesin plan assetsand benefitobliga
tions recognized in Other comprehensive income (loss) for the
years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 consist of the
following components (in millions):

Net periodic benefit cost:
Pension Benefits

2016 2015 2014~

Service cost $ 88 $ 107 $ 80

Interest cost 152 147 154

Expected return on planassets (209) (203) (204)

Amortization of:

Prior service credit

Netactuarial losses 1^ 26 -
Netperiodic benefit cost S 32 _$ 77 _S 30

Ofwhich:

Ordinary Capital'sshare $ 31 $ 75 $ 29

• FSO'sshare 1 2 1

Postretirement Benefit*

2016 2015 2014

$ 40 $ 55 $ 43

73 75 75

(89) (86) (85)

(U) (3) .

2 19 -

$ 15 $ 60 $ 33

$ 15 $ 58

2

$ 32

1

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligation recognized in
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Pension Benefits Postret

2016

$ 15

11

(2)

irement Benefits

Net actuarial(gains)losses

Amortization of:

Prior service credit

Net actuarial losses.

2016 2015 2014

S 25 $ (45) $ 459

(1) (26)

$ 24 $ (71) S 459

2015 2014

S (77) $ 313

(65) (22)

3

(19)

Totalrecognized in Other
comprehensive income (loss).. S 24 $ (158) $ 291

Totalrecognizedin net
periodic benefit cost
and Other comprehensive

$ 56 $ 6 $ 489 $ 39 $ (98) $ 324

The Bank allocates the net periodic benefit cost between
the Ordinary Capital and the FSOin accordancewith an alloca
tion percentageapproved by the Board of Governorsfor admin
istrative expenses.

The Bank estimates that net actuarial losses of $8 million
and $8 million will be amortized from Accumulated other com

prehensive income into net periodic benefit cost during 2017
for the Plans and the PRBP, respectively. In addition, the esti
mated PRBPprior service credit that will be amortized during
2017 amounts to $11.3 million.

Actuarial assumptions
The actuarial assumptions used in Plans' valuations are based
on financial marketinterestrates,pastexperience, and Manage
ment's best estimate of future benefit changes and economic
conditions. Changes in these assumptions will impact future
benefit costs and obligations. Actuarial gains and losses occur
when actual results are different from expected results.Actuar
ial gainsand losses recognized in Accumulated other compre
hensiveincome, which exceed 10% of the greater of the benefit
obligation or market-related valueof plan assetsat the begin
ning of the period, are amortized to income over the average
remaining service period of active employees expected to re
ceive benefits under the SRP, LRPand PRBP, which approxi-
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mates 11.7, 10.9 and 11.3 years, respectively. Unrecognized
prior servicecredit is amortized over7.8 years.

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the
benefit obligations and net periodicbenefit costwereas follows:

Weighted-average

assumptions used

to determine

. ,. ... .. Postretirement
benefit obligations Pension Benefits Benefits
at December 31, 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

Discount rate-SRP... 4.06% 4.24% 3.88%

Discount rate-LRP... 4.13% 4.32% 3.94%

Discount rate - PRBP 4.16% 4.35% 3.97%

Rateof salary

increase SRP. 4.15% 4.11% 4.16%

Rateof salary

increase LRP 5.74% 5.71% 5.78%

Rate of inflation 2.22% 2.15% 2.20% 2.22% 2.15% 2.20%

Weighted-average

assumptionsused to

determine net periodic
. . , , _ . _ _A Postretirement
benefit cost forthe year Pension Benefits „ _

ended December 31. 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

Discount rate - SRP... 4.24% 3.88% 4.85%

Discount rate - LRP... 4.32% 3.94% 4.94%

Discount rate - PRBP 4.35% 3.97% 4.99%

Expectedlong-term

returnon planassets 6.25% 6.25% 6.75% 6.25% 6.25% 6.75%

Rateof salary

incrcaseSRP 4.11% 4.16% 4.30%

Rateof salary

increase LRP 5.71% 5.78% 5.90%

Rate of inflation 2.15% 2.20% 2.29% 115% 2.20% 2.29%

The expected long-term return on the Plans' assetsrepre
sents Management's best estimate, after surveyingexternal in
vestment specialists, of the expected long-term (10 years or
more) forward-looking rates of return of the asset categories
employedby the Plans, weightedby the Plans' investment policy
assetallocations. Accumulatedand projected benefitobligations
are measuredas the presentvalue of expected payments. The
discount rate used is selected in referenceto the year-end yield
of AA corporatebonds within the approvedCitigroup Pension
Liability index, with maturitiesthat correspond to the payment
of benefits. For the assumed rate of inflation, the Bank has es

tablished a process by which a range of inputs is reviewed, in
cluding 10-year forward looking expert opinion forecasts, the
average of the 10yearand 30 yearU.S. Treasury Inflation Pro
tected Securities (U.S. TIPS) breakeven inflation rate, and his
toricalaverages.

Forparticipants assumedto retirein the United States, the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation wasdetermined
usingthe following healthcarecost trend ratesat December31:

2016 2015 2014

Health care cost trend rates

assumedfornext year:

Medical (non-Medicare) 6.00% 6.50% 7.00%

3.50% 3.75% 6.00%

9.00% 10.00% 6.00%

Dental 4.50% 5.00% 5.00%

Rate to which the cost trend rate

is assumed to decline (the ultimate

trend rate)

4.50% 4.50% 4.50%

2.50% 2.50% 4.50%

6.00% 6.00% 4.50%

Dental 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate

2021 2021 2019

For those participants assumed to retire outside of the
United States, a 7.00% health care cost trend rate was used for

2016 (2015 - 8.00%; 2014 - 6.00%) with an ultimate trend rate
of4.50% reached in 2023.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant
effecton the amounts reported for the PRBP. A one-percentage
point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would
have the following effects as of December 31, 2016 (in mil
lions):

l-Pcrccntage 1-Pcrccntagc
Point Increase Point Decrease

Effect on total ofservice and

$24 $(17)

Effecton postretirementbenefit

308 (232)

Plans' assets

The assets ofthe Plans and the PRBParemanagedprimarilyby
investment managers employed by the Bank who are provided
with investment guidelines that take into account the Plans'
and the PRBP's investment policies. Investment policies with
long-term strategic asset allocations have been developed so
that there is an expectation of sufficient returns to meet long-
term funding needs. The policies allocate 65% of the Plans'
portfolios to growth-oriented assets (the Return Strategies),
and 35% of assets to nominal and inflation-indexed US fixed

income (the Liabilities Hedging Strategies), to partially-hedge
the interest rate and inflation exposure in the liabilitiesof the
Plans and PRBP, and to protectagainstdisinflation.

The Plans' Return Strategies allocate between 45% and
61%to a well-diversifiedpool ofdeveloped and emerging mar
kets equities,approximately 3% to emerging markets debt, 3%
to commodity index futures, between 0%and 2%to publicreal
estate, between 2% and 3% to private real estate, and between
0% and 2% to high yield fixed income. The Plans' Liabilities
Hedging Strategies allocate 5% to core fixed-income, 15%to
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long duration fixed income and 15% to U.S. inflation-indexed
securities.

The PRBP's Return Strategies allocate 54% to a well-di
versifiedpoolof developed and emergingmarketsequities, 3%
to emerging marketsdebt,3%to commodity index futures, 3%
to public real estate, and 2% to high yield fixed income. The
PRBP's Liabilities Hedging Strategies allocates 15% to long
duration fixed income, 5% to core fixed income and 15% to
U.S. inflation-indexed securities.

The investment policies targetallocations as of Decem
ber 31,2016 are as follows:

SRP LRP

U.S.equities 25% 28%

Non - U.S.equities 24% 24%

Emergingmarketsequities 4% 4%

Public real estate. 2% 0%

Longdurationfixed incomebonds... 15% 15%
Core fixed income 5% 5%

Highyieldfixedincome 2% 0%

U.S.inflation-indexed bonds. 15% 15%

Emergingmarketsdebt 3% 3%

Private real estate 2% 3%

Commodity indexfutures 3% 3%

Short-term investment funds. 0% 0%

Stabilization Reserve Fund:
Core fixed income 50% 50%

Short-term investment funds 50% 50%

PRBP

26%

24%

4%

3%

15%

5%

2%

15%

3%

0%

3%

0%

50%

50%

Investment and asset class risk is managed by the con
tinuous monitoring of each asset class level and investment
manager. Investments are rebalanced monthly toward policy
targetsusing cash flows and rebalancing exercises. Investment
managersare generally not allowed to invest more than 5% of
their respective portfolios in the securities of a single issuer
other than the U.S. Government. The use of derivatives by an
investment manager for the Plans and PRBP is limited, and
subject to specificapproval by the Managing Committees of the
Plans and PRBP.

For the Plans and PRBP, the included asset classes are

described below:

• U.S. equities: For the Plans and PRBP, commingled
funds that invest, long-only, in U.S. common stocks.
Managementof the funds replicates or optimizes the all
capitalization (cap) Russell3000 Index, forthe SRPonly,
approximately20%of US. equities assets are managed
in separate accountsholding individual stocks;

• Non - US. equities: Forthe Plans and PRBP, commin
gled funds that invest, long-only, in non-U.S. common
stocks. Managementofthe funds replicates or optimizes
the large/mid-cap MSCI EAFE Index; for the SRP only,
half of non-U.S. equities assetsare actively-managed in
separate accountsholding individual stocks;

• Emerging markets equities: For the Plans, an actively-
managed commingled fund that invests, long-only, in
emerging markets common stocks. Management of the
fund selectssecurities,based upon fundamental charac

teristics,which aregenerally comprisedwithin the large/
mid-cap MSCI Emerging Markets Free Index; for the
PRBP, an actively-managed commingled fund and an
actively managed mutual fund that invest, long-only, in
emerging marketscommon stocks. Management of the
fund optimizes the large/mid-capMSCI EmergingMar
kets Free Index;
Public real estate: For the SRP and PRBP, individual

(separate) account which holds, long-only, real estate
securities. The account is actively-managed basedupon
fundamental characteristics, investing in securities gen
erallycomprisedwithin the MSCIU.S. REIT Index;
Long duration fixed income bonds: For the SRP and
PRBP, long duration fixed income assets areinvestedin
separate accounts holding individual bonds generally
comprised within the Barclays CapitalU.S. Long Gov
ernment/Credit Bond Index. For the LRP a mutual fund

that invests,long-only, in longdurationgovernmentand
creditsecurities. Management of the fund invests in se
curitiesgenerally comprised within the Barclays Capital
U.S. Long Government/Credit Bond Index;
Core fixed income: For the Plans and PRBP, actively-
managed commingled funds that invest, long-only, in
intermediateduration government and credit securities.
Management of the funds select securities,based upon
fundamental characteristics, which are generally com
prised within the Barclays CapitalU.S. Aggregate Bond
Index;

High yield fixed income: Forthe SRP, assetsareinvested
in individual securities, and for the PRBP, in a com

mingled fund. Forboth plans, the investible universe is
generally comprised ofthe securitieswithin the Barclays
CapitalHigh Yield 2%Constrained Index, aswellasop
portunistic investments in non-index securities. High
yield securitiesare financial obligationsof US. compa
nies, ratedbelow investment-gradeby at leastone of the
nationallyrecognized statistical ratingorganizations;
U.S. inflation-indexed bonds: For the Plans and PRBP,

investment in individual U.S. Treasury Inflation Pro
tected Securitieshi accounts managedinternally;
Emerging markets debt: For the Plans and PRBP, ac
tively-managed commingled funds that invest, long-
only, in emerging markets fixed income. The funds in
vest in sovereign and sub-sovereign United States
dollar- and local-denominated debt. Management of
the fund investsin securities generally comprisedwithin
the J.R MorganEMBI GlobalDiversified Index;
Private real estate: For the Plans only,anopen-endcom
mingled fund which invests,long-only, in U.S. real estate
properties. The fund is actively-managed based upon
fundamental characteristics of the properties;
Commodity index futures: Forthe SRPand PRBP, sepa
rate accounts which hold, long-only, commodity index
futuresgenerallycomprisedwithin the S8tP GSCI Index.
Forthe LRP, investment in a commingled fund that in
vests, long-only hi commodity index futures, Manage
ment of the fund replicates or optimizes the Bloomberg
Commodity Index.
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Effective January 1, 2015, the Board of Executive Direc
tors approved the Long-term Funding Policy for the Plans,
which established stable contribution rates of 20% (SRP), 25%
(LRP), 12% (PRBP) of salaries, fora five-year initialterm. Bank
contributions made in excess (deficit) of the actuary's theoreti
cal contribution rate are allocated (withdrawn) to (from) the
Stabilization ReserveFunds(Reserve Fund). The Target Strate
gicAsset Allocation for the ReserveFundsis 50%cashand 50%
Core Fixed Income.

The following tablesset forth the investments of the Plans
and PRBP as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, which are mea-

Plans' Assets:

Category of Investments Level 1
Equity securities

U.Sequities $

Non - US. equities

Public real estate

Government and diversified bonds

Longduration US. GovernmentandAgencybonds
Longduration diversifiedbonds
High yield fixedincome bonds
US. inflation-indexed bonds

Short-term investment securities

Total
Investments measured at net asset value

Equity funds
US equities

Non - US. equities

Emergingmarket equities
Government and diversified bond funds

Longduration diversifiedbonds..;
Core fixed income

Emerging marketsdebt —
Private real estate fund

Commodity index futures fund
Short-term investment fund

Total investments

Other liabilities

Total

suredat fair valueand presented togetherwith their weighted
average allocation, by levelwithin the fair valuehierarchy (in
millions).As requiredby the fair valuemeasurementsaccount
ing framework, theseinvestments are classified in theirentirety
based on the lowest levelof input that is significant to the fair
valuemeasurement,except forcertaininvestment funds which
classification within the fair value hierarchy depends on the
abilityto redeem their corresponding shares at their net asset
value in the near term.

Level 2

182 $ -

411 -

72
-

188 .

30 275

- 69

547

58

1,488 351

Level 3

Fair Value

Measurements

December 31,2016

Weighted
Average

Allocations

$ . $ 182 5%

- 411 11%

-
72 2%

. 188 5%

- 305 8%

- 69 2%

- 547 14%

- 65 1%

1,839

764 20%

477 12%

145 4%

70 2%

218 6%

109 3%

115 3%

5 0%

72 2%

3,814 100%

(2)

$ 3,812
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Categoryof Investments
Equity securities

US equities
Non - US. equities
Public real estate

Government and diversified bonds

Longduration US. Governmentand Agency bonds.
Longduration diversifiedbonds
High yield fixedincome bonds
US. inflation-indexed bonds

Short-term investment securities

Total

Investments measured at net asset value

Equityfunds
US equities
Non - US. equities
Emerging marketequities

Government and diversified bond funds

Longduration diversifiedbonds
Core fixed income

Emergingmarkets debt
Private real estate fund

Commodity index futures fund
Short-term investment fund

Total

PRBP Assets:

Categoryof Investments
Equity securities

Emergingmarkets equities
Public real estate

Government and diversified bonds

Longduration US. Government and Agencybonds.
Longduration diversifiedbonds
US. inflation-indexed bonds

Short-term investment securities

Total

Investments measured at net asset value

Equityfunds
US equities
Non - US. equities
Emergingmarkets equities

Government and diversified bond funds

Longduration diversifiedbonds
Core fixed income

Emerging marketsdebt
High yield fixedincome
Total investments.

Other assets

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fair Value

Measurements

December 31,2015

Weighted
Average

Allocations

$ 183 $ . $ - $ 183 5%

129 - - 129 3%

71
- -

71 2%

174 . . 174 5%

29 265 - 294 8%

- 65 - 65 2%

539 - - 539 15%

69 (3) - 66 2%

1,194 327 1,521

721 20%

722 20%

136 4%

70 2%

191 5%

108 3%

106 3%

4 0%

60 1%

$ 3,639 100%

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fair Value

Measurements

December 31,2016

Weighted
Average

Allocations

$ 32 $ . $ - $ 32 2%

49
- -

49 3%

79 . . 79 5%

- 132 - 132 8%

225 - - 225 14%

69 3

135

- 72

589

5%

454 -

412 26%

378 23%

26 1%

16 1%

105 7%

45 3%

32 2%

1,603 100%

18

$ 1,621
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Category of Investments

Equity securities
Public real estate

Government and diversified bonds

Long duration U.S.Government and Agency bonds.
Long duration diversifiedbonds
U.S. inflation-indexed bonds

Short-term investment securities

Total

Investments measured at net asset value

Equityfunds
US equities
Non - U.S. equities

Emerging markets equities
Government and diversified bond funds

Long duration diversifiedbonds
Core fixed income

Emerging markets debt
Highyieldfixedincome
Total investments

Other assets

Total

Fair Value Weighted
Measurements Average

Level | Level 2 Leve13 December 31,2015 Allocations

$ 48 $ - $ -

Investment securities that are measured at fair value

based on quoted market prices in active markets, a valuation
technique consistent with the market approach, include U.S.,
non-U.S. and public real estate individual equity holdings, fixed
income mutual funds, U.S. treasury and U.S. inflation-indexed
bonds and short-term investment securities. Such securities are

classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
Investment securities that are measured at fair value

based on quoted market prices for similar assets in active mar
kets, a valuation technique consistent with the market ap
proach, include corporate, non-U.S. government, high yield and
municipal bonds, asset and commercial mortgage backedsecu
rities. Such securities are classified within Level 2 of the fair

value hierarchy.
Proprietary investment managers' commingled funds in

vesting in U.S. equities, global equities, emerging markets eq
uities and debt, fixed income funds, commodity index futures
and/or short-term debt investments, which are not publicly-
traded, but the holdings within the funds are measured at fair
value based on the net asset value of the investment funds as

they are redeemable with the investeein the near term at their
net asset value per share at the measurement date. This valua
tion technique is consistent with the market approach.

Contributions

Contributions from the Bank to the Plans and the PRBPduring
2017are expected to be approximately$55 million and $30 mil
lion, respectively. All contributions are made in cash.

Estimated future benefit payments
The following table shows the benefit payments, which reflect
expected future service, as appropriate, expected to be paid in
each of the next five years and in the aggregate for the subse
quent five years (in millions). These amounts are basedon the

75

229

61

413

130

130

48

75

130

229

61

543

3%

15%

403 26%

362 24%

56 4%

15 1%

84 -1 i

48 3%

28 2%

1,539

16

S 1,555

100%

same assumptions u.;ed to measure the benefit obligation at
December 31, 2016.

ESTIMATED FUTURE BENEFIT PAYMENTS

Year Plans

S lit

PRBP

2017. S 51

2018. 151 51

2019. 157 57

2020. 165 61

171

9712022- 2026 375

Note U - Variable Interest Entities

An entity is a variable interest entity (VIE) if: (i) it lacks equity
that is sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial support from other
parties; or (ii) the equity investors lack certain characteristic of
a controlling financial interest who have decision-making
rights about the entity's operations; or (iii) it has equity inves
tors who do not absorb the expected losses or receive the ex
pected returns of the entity proportionally to their voting
rights.

A VIEis consolidatedby its primary beneficiary, which is
the party involved with the VIE that has the power to direct the
activities that most significantly impact the VIE's economic
performance,and has the obligation to absorb a majority of the
expectedlossesor tru right to receive a majority of the expected
residual returns, or both. An enterprise may hold a significant
variable interest in a VIE, which is not consolidated because the

enterprise is not the primary beneficiary, or the VIE is consid
ered immaterial for tie reporting entity's financial statements.

The Bank has identified loans and guarantees to VIEs in
which it is not the primary beneficiary but in which it is
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deemed to hold significant variable interest at December 31,
2016.The majorityof these VIEsdo not involvesecuritizations
or other typesof structured financing. These VIEsare mainly:
(i) special purpose vehicles or investment funds, where the
sponsor, the general partner or fund manager does not have
substantive equityat risk;(ii) operatingentitieswherethe total
equity investment is considered insufficientto permit such en
tity to financeits activities without additional subordinatedfi
nancialsupport; and (iii) entities where the operating activities
are so narrowlydefined bycontracts (e.g.concessioncontracts)
that equity investors are considered to lack decision making
ability.

The Bank's involvement with these VIEs is limited to

loans and guarantees,which are reflectedas such in the Bank's
financial statements. Based on the most recent available data

from these VIEs, the size of the VIEs measured by total assets
in which the Bank is deemed to hold significant variable inter
ests totaled $6,016 million at December 31,2016 (2015 - $6,327
million).The Bank's total loans and guarantees outstanding to
these VIEs were $418 million and $28 million, respectively
(2015 - $463 million and $49 million, respectively). Amounts
committed not yet disbursed related to such loans and guaran
tees amounted to $56 million (2015 - $77 million), which com
bined with outstanding amounts results in a total maximum
Bank exposure of $502 million at December 31, 2016 (2015 -
$589 million).

The Bank is.considered the primary beneficiary of two
entities and has made loans amounting to $37 million to VIEs.
The Bank's involvement with these VIEs is limited to loans,
which are reflected as such in the Bank's financial statements.

Based on the most recent available data, the size of these VIEs

measured by total assets amounted to approximately $37 mil
lion (2015 - $32 million), which is considered immaterial and,
thus, not consolidated with the Bank's financial statements.

Note V - Reconciliation ofNet Income to Net Cash Provided

by (Used in) Operating Activities
A reconciliationof Net income to Net cash provided by (used
in) operating activities, as shown on the Statement of Cash
Flows, is as follows (in millions):

Years ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Net income $ 848 $ 960 $ 548

Difference between amounts accrued

and amounts paid or collected for.

Loan income. 124 (186) (3)

Income from investments. (151) (51) 170

Other interest income 1 1

Other income (6) 8 4

Interestand other costs of borrowings,

afterswaps. 185 (904) (88)

Administrativeexpenses,including

depreciation (41) 108 4

Special programs (18) (6) 5

Net fairvalueadjustments on non-trading

portfoliosand foreigncurrency transactions 179 (443) (96)

Transfers to the IDBGrant Facility (92) 38 66

Net (increase) decrease in tradinginvestments... 508 (530) (6349)

Net unrealizedlosses(gains)on trading .,,. ....
(12) 62 (31)

investments.

Provisionfor loanand guaranteelosses. 142 73 118
Net cash provided by (used in) operating $

activities ___ ______

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities

Increase(decrease)resulting from exchangerate

fluctuations:

Trading investments $ 6 $ (46) $ (131)

Loansoutstanding 25 (2) (9)

Borrowings 23 (71) (111)

Note W - Segment Reporting
Management has determined that the Bank has only one re
portable segment since it does not manage its operations by
allocatingresources based on a determination of the contribu
tions to net income of individual operations. The Bank does
not differentiatebetween the nature of the products or services
provided, the preparation process,or the method for providing
the services among individual countries. For the years 2016,
2015and 2014,loans made to or guaranteed by three countries
individuallygenerated in excessof 10%of loan income, before
swaps,as follows (in millions):

Argentina..

Brazil.

Mexico

Years ended December 31,

2016

435

350

501

2015

$402

282

463

2014

$369

253

443
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Note X - Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the
Bank in measuring the fair value for its financial instruments,
as also discussed in Note L - Fair Value Measurements:

Cash: The carrying amount reported in the Balance Sheet for
cash approximates fair value.

Investments: Fair values for investment securities are based on

quoted prices, where available; otherwise they are based on
external pricing services, independent dealer prices, or dis
counted cash flows models.

Loans:The fair value of the Bank's loan portfolio is estimated
using a discounted cash flowmethod.

Swaps: Fair values for interest rate and currency swaps are
based on discounted cash flowsor pricing models.

Borrowings: The fair values of borrowings are based on dis
counted cash flowsor pricing models.

The following table presents the fair valuesof the financial
instruments, along with the respectivecarrying amounts, as of
December 31,2016 and 2015 (in millions):

2016'" 2015 ">
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value

Cash $ 599 $ 599 $ 641 $ 641

Investments-Trading 27,417 27,417 27,999 27,999

Loansoutstanding, net 82,031 83,597 78,891 81,060

Currencyand interestrate
swapsreceivable

Investments-Trading 222 222 59 59
Loans 836 836 624 624

Borrowings 1,052 1,052 1,660 1,660

Others. 23 23 39 39

Other assets

Miscellaneous °> 563 560 605 605

Borrowings

Short-term 540 540 513 513

Medium-and long-term:
Measured at fair value.... 51,506 51,506 49,411 49,411

Measured at amortized

cost 28,781 29,317 29,696 30,436

Currency and interest rate
swapspayable

Investments - trading. 132 132 196 196

Loans 566 566 726 726

Borrowings 3,103 3.103 2,601 2,601

Others 5 5 5 5

Liabilities

Other liabilities'2' 563 560 605 605

'" Includes accrued interest

111 Amounts are related to (he EEA guaranteesgiven.

Note Y - Contingencies
In the normal course of its business, the Bank is from time to
time named as a defendant or co-defendant in various legal
actionson different groundsin variousjurisdictions. Although
therecanbeno assurances, basedon the information currently
available, the Bank's Management does not believe the out
comeof any of the various existing legal actions will have a
material adverse effect on its financial position, results of op
erations or cash flows.

Note Z - Related party transactions
In connectionwith the implementation of the reorganization
of the non-sovereign guaranteed activities of the IDB Group
effective January1,2016,the Bankand the IIC entered into one
year, renewable service level agreements for certain adminis
trative and overhead services that include human resources

and information technologysupport provided by the Bank,as
well as loan origination, execution and monitoring services
providedto the Bank. The total fees for the services provided
by the Bank to the IIC, and those provided by the IIC to the
Bankare $12millionand $51million,respectively, for the year
ended December 31,2016.

Note AA - Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated subsequentevents through March
3,2017, which is the date the financial statements were issued.
As a result of this evaluation, there are no subsequent events
that require recognition or disclosure in the Bank's financial
statementsas of and for the year ended December 31, 2016,
exceptas disclosed below:

As part of the mandate from the G-20 proposing that
MDBsoptimize their respective balance sheets, on September
1,2016 the Bank's Boardof Governorsunanimouslyapproved
a proposal to transfer all assets and liabilitiesof the FSOto the
Bank,effective January1,2017. Suchtransfer wouldensure the
Bank's abilityto continue to provideresourcesto its leastdevel
oped borrowing member countries at concessionalterms, and
would result in approximately $5.4 billion of additional assets,
$0.2 billion of additional liabilities, amounting to approxi
mately$5.2billionof additional equity,thus strengthening the
Bank's financial position.

Starting on January 1, 2017, the FSO will discontinue
financing new loans. Going forward, concessional lending
willbeprovidedbythe blendingofloansat regularsovereign-
guarantee spread and loans at concessional spreads, both
funded from Ordinary Capital resources.

The transfer of assets does not involve an increase

in Ordinary Capital shares, or subscriptions by member
countries. It is accounted as an equity transfer between
related parties, and the difference between FSO assets and
liabilities willbe recognizedas Additional Paid-in Capital of
the Ordinary Capital with no impact on the nominal values
of its existing capital stock or voting rights.
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SCHEDULE 1-1

SCHEDULE OF TRADING INVESTMENTS AND SWAPS (1)
December 31,2016

Expressed in millions of United Statesdollars

United States All

Euro dollars Others currencies

Obligations ofthe United States
Government and its corporations
and agencies:

Carrying value - 2,488 - 2,488 <2)
Averagebalanceduring year - 6,157 - 6,157
Net losses for the year - (2) - (2)

Obligationsofnon-US. governments,
agencies, sub-sovereigns, and supranationals

Carryingvalue 317 10,875 6,051 17,243
Averagebalanceduring year 334 14,973 6,188 21,495
Net gains(losses) forthe year - (16) 1 (15)

Bankobligations:
Carryingvalue 14 6,853 - 6,867
Averagebalanceduring year 125 6,177 30 6,332
Net gains for the year - 6 - 6

Corporate securities:
Carryingvalue - 479 10 489
Average balanceduring year - 221 52 273
Net losses forthe year - (3) - (3)

Asset-backedand mortgage-backed securities:
Carryingvalue 151 54 - 205
Averagebalanceduring year 171 65 - 236
Net gains for the year 5 - - 5

Totaltradinginvestments:
Carryingvalue 482 20,749 6.061 27,292
Average balanceduring year 630 27,593 6,270 34,493
Net gains(losses) for the year 5 (15) 1 (9)

Net interest rate swaps:
Carrying value(3) - 29 - 29
Average balance duringyear - (52) - (52)
Net gains for the year - 39 - 39

Currency swapsreceivable:
Carrying value(J> - 6,321 - 6321
Average balanceduring year - 6,217 - 6,217
Net gains for the year - 11 - 11

Currencyswapspayable:
Carrying value(,) (317) - (5,860) (6,177)
Average balanceduring year (334) - (6,073) (6,407)
Net losses forthe year - - (6) (6)

Totaltradinginvestments and swaps:
Carryingvalue 165 27,099 201 27,465
Average balanceduring year 296 33,758 197 34,251
Net gains(losses) for the year 5 35 (5) 35
Return for the year (%) (Non-GAAP measure) 1.69 0.93 N/A 0.92

<" Excludes accrued interest.

01 Includes obligations issued orguaranteed byGovernment-Sponsored Enterprises (GSE), suchasdebtandmortgage- andasset-backed securities, of $461 million. GSE
obligationsarenot backedby the full faithand creditof the UnitedStatesGovernment.

111 Carrying value of currency swaps represents the fair value ofeach individual receivable or(payable) leg, classified bytheircurrency. Currency andinterest rate swap
agreements arestated in the Balance Sheet asassets orliabilities, depending onthe nature (receivable or payable) of thenet fair value amountof theseagreements.

N/A - Not available.
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SCHEDULE OF TRADING INVESTMENTS AND SWAPS(I)
December 31,2015

Expressed in millions of United States dollars

Obligationsof the United States
Government and its corporations
and agencies:

Carryingvalue.
Average balanceduring year
Net losses for the year

Obligations of non-U.S.governments,
agencies, sub-sovereigns, and supranationals

Carryingvalue
Averagebalanceduring year
Net gains(losses) forthe year

Bankobligations:
Carryingvalue
Average balanceduring year
Net losses for the year

Corporate securities:
Carryingvalue
Average balance duringyear
Net gains(losses) for the year.

Asset-backedand mortgage-backed securities:
Carryingvalue
Average balance duringyear
Net lossesforthe year

Total trading investments:
Carryingvalue
Average balanceduring year
Net losses forthe year

Net interest rate swaps:
Carrying value<3)
Averagebalanceduring year
Net losses for the year

Currencyswapsreceivable:
Carryingvalue *3>
Average balanceduring year
Net gains forthe year

Currencyswaps payable:
Carrying value<3)
Average balance duringyear
Net lossesfor the year

Totaltrading investmentsandswaps:
Carryingvalue
Averagebalanceduring year
Net losses for the year
Return for the year(%) (Non-GAAP measure)

'" Excludes accrued interest

121 Includes obligations issued orguaranteed byGovernment-Sponsored Enterprises (GSE), suchasdebtandmortgage- andasset-backed securities, of $296 million. GSE
obligations arenot backedby the full faithandcreditof the UnitedStatesGovernment.

°> Carrying valueof currency swaps represents the fair valueofeachindividual receivable or(payable) leg.classified bytheircurrency. Currency andinterest rate swap
agreemenu arestated in theBalance Sheet asassets orliabilities, depending onthenature (receivable orpayable) of thenet fair value amount of theseagreements.

N/A - Not available.

United States All

Euro dollars Others currencies

4,254 4,254 (2)
- 5,381 - 5,381

" (5) * (5)

346 1335 4.767 18318

297 14,177 4383 19,057

1 (29) (3) (31)

326 4.658 29 5,013

306 4,918 10 5,234

- (7) - (7)

. . 55 55

-

171 43 214

184 77 261

230 117 - 347

(1) - - (1)

856 22,194 4,851 27,901

833 24,764 4,636 30,233

- (41) (3) (44)

. (26) . (26)
- (44) - (44)

- (6) - (6)

. 4,968 . 4,968

- 4,846 - 4,846

-
15

-
15

(329) . (4,679) (5,008)

(278) - (4,580) (4,858)

- -
(16) (16)

527 27,136 172 27,835

555 29,566 56 30,177

- (32) (19) (51)
0.01 0.22 N/A 0.20
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SCHEDULE OF LOANS™
December 31,2016 and 2015

Expressed in millions of United States dollars

F-37

SCHEDULE 1-2

Undisbursedportion of
approved loans

Total

oustanding
balance 2015Total Signed

$ 4321 $ 2,911 S 11,359

141 116 274

114 80 265

57 57 120

1,136 991 955

7,445 5,091 14.529

762 492 642

1,842 1,084 7.832

1,212 908 1.333

493 203 2,625

703 643 4.128

537 507 2.011

665 149 2.524

104 84 86

- -
4

277 256 918

204 189 1.612

3,345 2,083 14.220

345 345 542

602 363 2,692

1,054 869 1,104

1,528 553 2,644

68 68 397

372 357 640

1.765 1,415 2,088

456 456 2,194

459 265 1.007

$ 30,007 $ 20,535

$ 30,711 $ 22,625 $ 78.745

Currency in whichoutstanding
Outstandingbalance - 2016 balance iscollectible

Member in whose Non- Non-borrowing Borrowing
territory loans have Sovereign- sovereign- country country
been made guaranteed guaranteed Total currencies'21 currencies

Argentina $ 11,399 $ 199 $ 11,598 $ 11,594 $ 4

Bahamas 276 - 276 276

Barbados 264 - 264 264

Belize. 116 - 116 116

Bolivia 1,206 33 1,239 1,239

Brazil 13,776 975 14,751 14,660 91

Chile. 582 203 785 785

Colombia 8,432 69 8,501 8,494 7

Costa Rica. 927 507 1,434 1,434

Dominican Republic 2,859 119 2,978 2,973 5

Ecuador. 4,298 271 4,569 4,569

El Salvador. 1,788 178 1,966 1,966

Guatemala 2,156 297 2,453 2,453

Guyana 89 89 89

Haiti - 4 4 4

Honduras. 871 103 974 974

Jamaica. 1.690 78 1,768 1,768

Mexico. 13,688 526 14,214 14,197 17

Nicaragua 559 75 634 634

Panama 2,556 477 3,033 3,033

Paraguay. 969 195 1,164 1,164

Peru. 2,504 562 3,066 3,066

Suriname 470 - 470 470

Trinidad and Tobago 665 - 665 665

Uruguay. 1,751 447 2,198 2,198

Venezuela. 2,098 - 2,098 2.091 7

Regional 33 612 645 645 -_
Total2016 $ 76,022 $ 5,930 $ 81,952 $ 81,821 J 131

Total2015 $ 72,765 $ 5,980 $ 78,745 $ 78,685 $ , 60

'" Thistableexcludes outstanding participated non-sovereign-guaranteed loansof$2,781 million at December 31,2016(2015 -

guaranteesoutstandingof $230millionat December31,2016 (2015- $207million).

|2)Includes$2,566millionof loans in borrowingcountrycurrencies,whichhavebeenswappedto UnitedStatesdollars.

$3,171 million). This table also excludes
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SCHEDULE 1-3

SCHEDULE OF LOANS OUTSTANDING BY CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE TYPE,
AND MATURITY STRUCTURE™
December 31,2016

Expressed in millions of United States dollars

Currency/Rate type

United States dollars

Fixed-base cost

Adjustable
LIBOR-based floating.

Others

Fixed-base cost

Adjustable ,
LIBOR-based floating.

Loansoutstanding
Fixed-base cost

Adjustable
LIBOR-based floating.

Total

Amount

Weighted'4'
average

rate

(%)

Average
maturity
(years)

$ 26,978

1,908

50,333

4.63

3.24

2.38

7.32

6.32

8.27

1,118

1,579

36

8.73

6.99

0.46

5.95

8.00

3.62

28,096

3,487

50,369

4.79

4.94

2.37

7.27

7.08

8.27

$ 81,952 3.31 7.88

MATURITY STRUCTURE OF LOANS OUTSTANDING

December 31,2016

Expressed in millions of United States dollars

Year ofmaturity

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022 to 2026

2027 to 2031

2032 to 2036

2037 to 2041

2042 to 2046

Total

Average maturity (years)

'" Informationpresentedbeforecurrencyand interestrateswaps.

(2) IncludesLIBOR-based floatingloans.

(,) Includes a total of S1,033 million in fixed rate loans.

M) Theweightedaveragerateof the totalportfolio,afterswaps,was2.93%.

Fixed-base cost(3) Adjustable(2)

$ 3,385

Total

$ 2,702 $ 6,087

2,490 3,037 5,527

2,493 3,193 5,686

2,169 3,152 5,321

2,001 3,461 5,462

8,379 17,920 26,299

5,091 14,563 19,654

2,052 4,469 6,521

572 661 1,233

147 15 162

$ 28,096 $ 53,856 $ 81,952

7.27 8.19 7.88



INFORMATION STATEMENT-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS F-39

ORDINARY CAPITAL

INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SCHEDULE 1-3

SCHEDULE OF LOANS OUTSTANDING BY CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE TYPE,

AND MATURITY STRUCTURE*1*
December 31,2015

Expressed in millions of United States dollars

Currency/Rate type

United States dollars

Fixed-base cost

Adjustable
LIBOR-basedfloating.

Others

Fixed-base cost

Adjustable
LIBOR-basedfloating.

Loansoutstanding
Fixed-base cost

Adjustable
LIBOR-based floating.

Total

Amount

Weighted «>
average

rate

(%)

Average
maturity
(years)

$ 28,754 4.65 7.50

2,139 2.89 6.36

44,940 1.81 8.43

883 8.08 6.65

1,989 3.85 9.31

40 0.50

4.75

4.12

29,637 7.47

4,128 3.35 7.78

44,980 1.81

3.00

8.43

$ 78,745 8.03

MATURITY STRUCTURE OF LOANS OUTSTANDING
December 31,2015
Expressed inmillions of United States dollars

Year ofmaturity

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021 to 2025

2026 to 2030

2031 to 2035

2036 to 2040

2041 to 2045

Total

Averagematurity (years)

(,)Information presented before currencyand interestrateswaps.
<2) Includes LIBOR-based floating loans.
(3) Includes a total of SI,009 million in fixed rate loans.

(4> Theweighted average rateof the totalportfolio, afterswaps, was 2.56%.

Fixed-base cost(3) Adjustable(2) Total

$ 2,667 $ 2,853 $ 5,520

2,512 2,932 5,444

2,450 2,927 5,377

2,441 3,048 5,489

2,121 2,894 5,015

8,692 16,703 25,395

5,561 12,704 18,265

2,431 4,312 6,743

617 690 1,307

145 45 190

$ 29,637 $ 49,108 $ 78,745

7.47 8.37 8.03
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SCHEDULE 1-4

SCHEDULE OF MEDIUM- AND LONG-TERM BORROWINGS AND SWAPS

December 31,2016

Expressed in millions of United States dollars

Currency
Direct borrowings swaP agreements

Wgtd. Wgtd.
avg. Average Amount*21 avg. Average
cost maturity payable cost maturity

Currency/Rate type Amount (%) (years) (receivable) (%) (years)

Euro

Fixed $ 316 0.33 0.36 $

(316) 0.33 0.36

Adjustable. 307 4.96 1.86 192 (0.64) 1.46

(307) 4.% 1.86

United States dollars

Fixed 52,655 2.17 4.27 91 5.53 0.23

Adjustable. 12310 0.94 2.38 17,521 0.94 3.75

(497) 1.01 2.67

Others

Fixed 13.961 4.45 3.93 222 1.30 1.46

(13,961) 4.45 3.93

Adjustable. 212 2.70 2.47 79 2.88 3.32

(199) 2.20 1.93

Total

Fixed 66,932 2.64 4.18 313

(14,277)

Adjustable 12,829 1.06 2.37 17,792

(1,003)

Principal at facevalue 79,761 2.38 3.89 2,825

Fairvalueadjustments 511 (689)

Net unamortized discount (463) 232

Total S 79,809 2.38 3.89 S 2368

Interest rate

swap agreements Net currencyobligations

Amount01

payable
(receivable)

Wgtd.
avg.

cost

(%)

Average
maturity
(years)

Amount0'

payable
(receivable)

Wgtd.
avg.

cost

(%)

Average
maturity
(years)"'

s . . $ 316 0.33 0.36

- - -
(316) 0.33 0.36

- - -
499 2.80 1.71

- - -

(307) 4.96 1.86

348 5.25 0.96 53.094 2.20 4.25

(50,625) 2.04 3.99 (50,625) 2.04 3.99

54,345 1.03 3.78 84.176 1.00 3.57

(4,176) 0.85 1.55 (4,673) 0.86 1.67

- - - 14.183 4.40 3.90

- -
(13.961) 4.45 3.93

26 (0.64) 1.83 317 2.47 2.63

(26) 1.23 1.83 (225) 2.09 1.92

348 67393 2.65 4.15

(50,625) (64.902) 2.55 3.96

54,371

(4,202)
84,992

(5,205)

1.01

1.16

3.56

1.69

(108) 82.478 1.14 3.84

(53) (232)

108<» (123)

S (53) $ 82,123 1.14 3.84

10As of December31,2016, the average repricingperiod of the net currencyobligationsforadjustable rateborrowingswas 3.1months.

"' Currencyswapsarcshownat facevalueand interestrateswapsarcshownat the nationalamountof eachindividualpayable or (receivable) leg,classified by their currency. Bothcurrency

and interestrateswapsareadjusted,in total,to fairvalueas indicated. The net fairvalueamountpayable fromcurrencyswapsandthe net fairvalueamount receivable frominterestrate

swapsof $2,367millionand SS3million,respectively, shownin the abovetable,arerepresented by currencyandinterestrateswapassetsat fairvalueof S9I8 millionandcurrencyand

interestrateswapliabilities at fairvalueof $3,233million, includedon the Balance Sheet.

l!> Representsthe unamortized discounton zerocoupon interestrateswaps.
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SCHEDULE 1-4

SCHEDULE OF MEDIUM- AND LONG-TERM BORROWINGS AND SWAPS
December 31,2015
Expressed in millions of UnitedStatesdollars

Directborrowings Currency swapagreements
Wgtd. Wgtd.
avg. Average Amount0' avg. Average
cost maturity payable cost maturity

Currency/Rate type Amount (%) (years) (receivable) (%) (years)

Euro

Fixed $ 326 0.33 1.36 S

- - - (326) 0.33 1.36

Adjustable 316 4.96 2.86 575 (0.23) 0.61
- - - (316) 4.96 2.86

United States dollars

Fixed 51,870 2.19 4.62 91 5.53 1.23

Adjustable. 11,910 0.42 2.60 17,516 0.38 4.07

- - - (826) 0.18 1.01

Others

Fixed. 13,934 4.66 4.20 95 1.34 3.79

- (13,934) 4.66 4.20

Adjustable 218 2.53 3.54 18 (1.12) 1.04
- Z Z (203) 2.16 2.89

Total

Fixed 66,130 2.70 4.51 186

- (14.260)

Adjustable 12,444 0.57 2.63 18,109

Z Z Z (».345)

Principalat facevalue.... 78,574 2.36 4.21 2,690

Fair valueadjustments 990 (914)
Netunamortized discount (917) 251

Total $ 78.647 2.36 4.21 $ 2,027

Interest rate

swap agreements Net currency obliga tions

Amount0'

payable
(receivable)

Wgtd.
avg.

cost

(%)

Average
maturity
(years)

Amount*2'

payable
(receivable)

Wgtd.
avg.

cost

(%)

Average
maturity
(years) '•>

$ - - $ 326 0.33 1.36

- - - (326) 0.33 1.36

- - - 891 1.61 1.41

— — — (316) 4.96 2.86

349 5.25 1.96 52,310 2.21 4.59

(49,841) 2.05 4.30 (49,841) 2.05 4.30

53362 0.42 3.95 82.788 0.41 3.78

(4,377) 0.42 2.47 (5,203) 0.38 2.24

- - - 14.029 4.64 4.20

- - - (13,934) 4.66 4.20

25

(25)
(0.50)

1.23

2.83

2.83

261

(228)
1.99

2.06

3.30

2.89

349 66.665 2.71 4.49

(49.841) (64,101) 2.61 4.27

53387 83.940 0.43 3.76

(4.402) (5.747) 0.70 2.30

(507) 80,757 0.56 4.06

(700)

507«»

(624)

(159)

$ 79.974 0.56$ (700) 4.06

"' AsofDecember 31,2015, theaverage repricing periodofthenetcurrencyobligations foradjustable rateborrowings was3.1months.
19Currencyswapsareshownat facevalueand interestrateswapsareshownat thenMionilamountofeachindividual payable or (receivable) leg.classified bytheircurrency. Bothcurrency

andinterestrateswapsareadjusted, in total,to fairvalueas indicated. Ihe net fairvalueamountpayable fromcurrencyswapsand the net fairvalueamountreceivable frominterestrate
swapsof $2,027millionand $700million,respectively, shownin the abovetable,are representedbycurrencyand interestrateswapassetsat fairvalueof S1.459millionand currencyand
interest rate swap liabilitiesat fair value of S2.786million, included on the BalanceSheet

{" Represents theunamortized discount on zerocouponinterest rateswaps.
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SCHEDULE OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO CAPITAL STOCK

December 31,2016 and 2015
Expressed inmillions ofUnited States dollars*'1

Paid-in

portion of
subscribed

Members Shares capital
Argentina. 1,609,442 $ 672.9
Austria. 22,630 9.6

Bahamas 29,548 15.1

Barbados 19,306 8.1

Belgium 46,545 19.8
Belize 16,516 9.3

Bolivia. 129,293 54.0

Brazil 1.609,442 672.9

Canada. 567,039 241.7

Chile. 441,995 184.8

China 424 0.2

Colombia 441,995 184.8

Costa Rica 64,684 27.0

Croatia. 6.895 2.9

Denmark. 24,061 10.3

Dominican Republic. 86,317 36.1
Ecuador. 86,090 36.0

ElSalvador. 64,514 27.0

Finland 22,630 9.6

France. 268,659 . 114.5

Germany. 268,659 114.5

Guatemala 81,728 34.7

Guyana. 22,768 10.5
Haiti. 64,514 27.0

Honduras 64,684 27.0

Israel 22,315 9.5

Italy. 278,459 117.4
Jamaica 81,728 34.7

Japan 708,831 302.1

Korea,Republicof. 424 0.2
Mexico. 1,034,609 432.6

Netherlands 2837 14.6

Nicaragua. 64,514 27.0

Norway. 24,061 10.3

Panama. 64,514 27.0

Paraguay. 64,514 27.0

Peru. 215,445 90.1

Portugal 7,667 3.2
Slovenia. 4,214 1.8

Spain. 278,460 117.4

Suriname. 12,524 7.2

Sweden 46,257 19.7

Switzerland 66,705 28.4

Trinidad and Tobago 61,244 26.0
UnitedKingdom 136,461 58.1
UnitedStates 4,253,664 1.813.1

Uruguay. 172,646 72.2
Venezuela. 482,267 249.3

Total2016 14.170.108 $ 6.039

Total2015 13,009,464 $ 5,699

(l)Data are rounded; detail may not add up to total because of rounding.

Callable

portion
of subscribed

capital
Total

2016

SCHEDULE 1-5

Total

2015

$ 18,742.5 $ 19,415.4 $ 17,704.1

263.4 273.0 250.5

341.4 356.5 327.1

224.8 232.9 212.3

541.7 561.5 515.4

189.9 199.2 181.5

1,505.7 1,559.7 1,422.1

18,742.5 19,415.4 17,704.1

6,598.8 6,840.4 6,280.3

5,147.2 5,332.0 4,861.8

5.0 5.1 4.5

5,147.2 5,332.0 4,861.8

753.3 780.3 711.3

80.2 83.2 76.2

280.0 290.3 266.4

1.005.2 1,041.3 949.3

1,002.5 1,038.5 9472

751.3 778.3 709.7

263.4 273.0 250.5

3,126.4 3,240.9 2,975.5

3,126.4 3,240.9 2,975.5

951.2 985.9 905.1

264.1 274.7 252.0

751.3 778.3 709.7

753.3 780.3 711.3

259.7 269.2 247.0

3,241.8 3,359.2 3,070.0

951.2 985.9 905.1

8,248.8 8,550.9 7,850.8

5.0 5.1 4.5

12,048.4 12,480.9 11,380.8

325.6 340.3 340.2

751.3 778.3 709.7

280.0 290.3 266.4

751.3 778.3 709.7

751.3 778.3 709.7

2,508.9 2,599.0 2369.8

89.2 92.5 84.8

49.0 50.8 46.5

3,241.8 3,359.2 3,070.0

143.8 151.1 138.6

538.3 558.0 512.2

776.3 804.7 738.7

712.8 738.8 678.2

1,588.0 1,646.2 1,511.3

49,500.7 51,313.8 47,113.0

2,010.5 2,082.7 1,898.9

5,568.5 5,817.8 5,817.8

$ 164,901 $ 170,940

$ 151,240 $ 156,939
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ORDINARY CAPITAL

INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

SCHEDULE 1-6

SCHEDULE OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO CAPITAL STOCK AND VOTING POWER

December 31,2016

Member countries
Regionaldeveloping members

Argentina

Bahamas.

Barbados.

Belize

Bolivia.

Brazil

Chile

Colombia.

Costa Rica

Dominican Republic

Ecuador.

El Salvador.

Guatemala.

Guyana.

Haiti.

Honduras

Jamaica.

Mexico

Nicaragua.

Panama.

Paraguay.

Peru.

Suriname.

Trinidad and Tobago.

Uruguay.

Venezuela

Totalregionaldevelopingmembers..

Canada.

United States. ,

Non-regional members

Austria.

Belgium
China.

Croatia.

Denmark.

Finland.

France.

Germany.

Israel

Italy.

Japan

Korea,Republicof.

Netherlands.

Norway.

Portugal.

Slovenia

Spain

Sweden

Switzerland.

United Kingdom

Totalnon-regionalmembers

Grand total.

% of total

Subscribed Number number of

votingshares of votes votes'"

1.609,442 1,609,577 11.354

29348 29,683 0.209

19306 19,441 0.137

16316 16,651 0.117

129,293 129,428 0.913

1,609,442 1,609,577 11.354

441,995 442,130 3.119

441,995 442.130 3.119

64,684 64.819 0.457

86,317 86,452 0.610

86,090 86.225 0.608

64314 64,649 0.456

81,728 81,863 0.577

22,768 22,903 0.162

64314 64,649 0.456

64,684 64,819 0.457

81,728 81,863 0.577

1,034,609 1,034,744 7.299

64,514 64,649 0.456

64314 64,649 0.456

64,514 64,649 0.456

215,445 215,580 1.521

12324 12,659 0.089

61.244 61,379 0.433

172,646 172,781 1.219

482,267 482,402 3.403

7.086,841 7,090,351 50.015

567,039 567,174 4.001

4,253,664 4,253,799 30.006

22,630 22,765 0.161

46,545 46,680 0.329

424 559 0.004

6,895 7,030 0.050

24,061 24,196 0.171

22,630 22,765 0.161

268,659 268,794 1.896

268,659 268,794 1.896

22315 22,450 0.158

278,459 278,594 1.965

708,831 708,966 5.001

424 559 0.004

2837 28,342 0.200

24,061 24,196 0.171

7,667 7,802 0.055

4,214 4,349 0.031

278,460 278,595 1.965

46.257 46,392 0.327

66,705 66,840 0.471

136,461 136,596 0.964

2.262364 2,265,264 15.979

14.170,108 14,176388 100.000

"> Dataarerounded; detailmaynotaddto totalbecause ofrounding.



F-44

O'DB
The issuance of this Information Statementand any pro

spectus and the offering and sale of debt securities are not a
waiverby the Bankor by any of its members, Governors, Execu
tive Directors, their Alternates,officers or employees of any of
the rights, immunities, privileges, or exemptions conferred
upon any of them by the Agreement Establishing the Inter-
American Development Bankor by any statute, lawor regula
tion of any member of the Bank or any political subdivision of
anymember,allof which areherebyexpressly reserved.

No person is authorized to give any information or to
makeanyrepresentation not contained or incorporated by ref
erence in this Information Statement oranyprospectus; andany
information or representation not contained or incorporated by
reference hereinmust not be relied upon ashavingbeenautho
rizedby the Bankor by any dealer, underwriter or agent of the
Bank. Neither this Information Statement nor any prospectus
constitutes an offer to sellor solicitation of an offerto buy debt
securitiesin any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlaw
ful to make suchan offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction.
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